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" SIR,

(No. 43.) \
SIR’ - N v ! : M
I HAVE the honour to inform you that abody of 600 Fenians entered this Province

{ /
i

o o .. No. 1.

Cory of & DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon, Viscount Moxtk to the
! ‘Right Hon. Epwarp Carvwety, M.P. ‘
" o : Governﬁlent House, Ottawa, June 1, 1866.

(Received June 14, 1866.) '
- (Answered, No. 56, June 16, 1866, page 77.)

this morfing. They crossed the Niagdra River at Black Rock, near Buffalo,'in.the State
of New York, and established themselyves in the village of Fort Erie in Canada. - I am
now occupied in-taking measures for meeting the emergency.

A I have, &c. |
. The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell. M.P., (Signed) MONCK.
‘ &e. - &e. &e. - - R '
.~ No.2, .

N
!

Coey of a.DEéPA’]‘.‘CH from Grovernor-General the Riglit ﬁon;_y&scount Moxck to the
Right Hon. Epwarp Carpwery, MP, " -

_ Government House, @ttawa, June 4, 1866.
(Receised-Tune 18, 1866.)
(Answered, No. 63, June 22, 1866, page 77.)
of the 1st Jupe,.I have the honour to state

(No. 45.) _
REFERRING to my despétéh (No. 43)*

. for ;your information, that the body of Fenian conspirators who crosséd the frontier from

- pushed on by rail to Chippewa, a force consisting of “artillery and regular troops under .

Buffalo to Fort Erie on the morning of Friday, June 1st, proved to be between 800 or
900 men, and seem to have been wéll armed. . o

. 1 had -previously had information that some such attempt would shortly be made
and a party of volunteers-had been stationed at Port Colborne in anticipation of an
attack. ' S )

I have not yet had time to receive: official accounts of
from telegraphic reports which
statement of what occurred which I think may be considered authentic.

Immediately on the receipt of the intelligence of the invasion, Major-General Napier

the military operations, but

Colonel Peacocke, .16th Regiment.

Chippewa. is about nineteen miles from Fort Erie,
and there is no ' railway

commanication between the two places, On arriving at

*Chippewa, Colonel Peacocke moved on\in the direction of Fort Erie. On the morning. -

of Saturday, June 2nd, ‘the body 'of volunteérs stationed as already mentioned at
Port Colborne, left that place by rail which runs patallel to the shore of Lake Erie and
went in the direction” of Fort Erie as far as a place called Ridgway; here they left the
railway and proceeded on foot, apparently with the intention - of effecting & junction with -

Colonel Peacocke and his force. . ‘ . . -
-They came upon the Fenians encamped in the bush and immediately attacked them,

.but were outnumbered’ and compelled to retire on Port Colborne. This occurred some

time on Saturday June 2nd. .

No. 1.

No. 2.

a
* See above.

have reached me I am able to give the following = -

Colonel Peacocke in the mean time was. advancing in the direction of Fort Erie .

from Chippewa along' the banks of the Niagara river, but was mnot able to reach the
former place before night-fall. ' o o '
+ The Fenians however did not await his arrival, but re-crossed the river during the
.E' . . ‘ . : B 2 .

-
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“night between the 2nd and 3rd June, to the number of about 750 men, and as appears
from the accompanying felegram from Mr. Consul Hemans, were immediately arrested. -
by the authorities of the United States. : TN,

. I am happy to be able to inform you- that the officers of the United States
Government appear to have exerted themselves to prevent any assistance being
‘supplied to the invaders. I transmit -copies of telegrams' received on this subject

; from Mr. Consul Hemans. S ‘ i .

' e have sixty-five prisoners in owr possession who. have been by.my direction
committed to the common gaol at Toronto to await trial. '

I think it is creditable both to the military and militia authorities in Canada, that
. they were in a position within twenty-four hours after the invasion of the Province at a
./ point of the enemy’s own selection, to place opposite to him such a force as compelled his
' precipitate retreat without even risking an engagement. ° ‘ )

I shall not fail to send you more full particulars when I shall have received the -

official reports from the officers engaged, but the main facts are as I have stated them.

-

above. - T .
; \ ' I have, &e.
The Right Hon, Edward Cardwell, M.P. (Rigned) MONCK.
&c. & &e\ . R
Incl. 1 in No. 2. , " -Tnclosure 1 in No.2,

TrrLEGRAM from Buffalo fo. Viscount Monck, Ottawa,

| / | ‘ ¢ June 3, 1866
7 WHOLE Fenian force,dbout 850 strong, evacuated Canada at 8 a.1.,.700 of thet,
with the leaders, lying at this moment in arrest under guns of Michigan war-steamer. -

(Signed) © H. 'W. HEMANS.

Incl. 2 in No. 2. . Inclosure 2 in No. 2.
TerEcrAM from Buffalo to Viscount Moncs, Ottawa.

' a . : B June 2, 1866.
FENIANS broke up encampment at 2:30 .y, and marched about four miles down
. river, said to be half-starved and much demoralized. Possession of six guns is undoubted.
» River patrolled all night by armed tug-boats chartered by United States’ Attorney.-
' Several captures made, and no reinforcements believed to have crossed over. Have
uniformly telegraphed to General Napier. ' - o

.- . : British Consul, T -

(Sighed) H. W. HEMANS.

¥

Incl. 3in No. 20 o . ‘Inclosure 3 in No. 2.
TrLEGRAM from Buffalo to Viscount Monck, Ottawa.

- - o " June 3, 1866,
FRONTIER from Erie to Oswego placed by General Grant in charge of
General Barry, of United States’ Artillery to-day : thirteen companies under his command,
with power t0 add according to emergencies. A revenue cutter just arrived to.patrol -
river. A British gun-boat much wanted in those waters. . ‘ a '
g : ' .(Signed) H. W. HEMANS. °

~




No.8” . . ‘ No.3.

Cc‘)PY of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount MONCK to the ,
: Rwht Hon Epwarp Carpwrrr, M.P. ‘ '

Glovernment House, Ottawa, June 8, 1‘866.
(NO 4:( ) s (Recexved June 23, 1866.) .
SIR, b (Answered, No. 67, June 23,1866, page 77.)
. IN continuance of the nanatwe contained in my despatch ‘No. 45% of the 4th of  * Page l.
June, I have the honour to report that no furthe1 invasion of Canadlan territory has taken
placc on the part of the Fenians. i

I am still without official reports of ihe proceedings at Fort Erle, but the circum-
stances of the last week have called so largely on the time of, the military officers as to
render correspondence very difficult. )

1 have no reason‘to doubt the substantial accuracy of the account  which I sent you -
in my last despatch. Co

Immediately after the first news of the invasion leached me the whole Volunteer 7
force of the Province was placed on active duty. -

I haye the utmost satisfaction in reporting to you the admirable spirit in which the
exigencies of the moment were met both by the administration and the population of the
Province. The former placed unreservedly at my disposal, for employment by the officers
of Her Majesty’s forces, the cntire resources of the country. The latter responded - | /
instantaneously to the call to arms, and I am sure I do not exaggerate when I say that, .
within twenty-four hours after the issue of the order, 20,000 men were tunder arms; and ,
that within forty-eight hours after the same time, they, in combination with the recrular '
troops, were dlsposed by the Lieutenant-General Commandmcr in positions whlchlendered
the Province secure fromi attack.

With the assistance’ of the officers and men of the shlps of war now in the
St. Lawrence, a flotilla of steamers has been chartered by the Provincial*Goverrment,
and fitted up as temporary gun-boats for service both on the River St.@Lawrence and the
Lakes.. -~~~ s 0P

I am happy also, to6 be in a position to mform you that the Government of the
_United States is exerting” itself in an energetm manner to arrest the further progress of
' the Fenian movement Within its territories. - N

- Tinclose a copy of a Proclamadtion Wlnch has been 1ssued by the, Pxesldent and of an
order addressed by the Attorney-General of the United - States desiring the arrest of all
prominent persons connected with the conspiracy.

This latter has been acted on, as I am informed, but not officially, by the arrest of
General Sweeney and by the stopparre on the railroads oi members of the Fenian -

- conspiracy who are proceeding northwards, '

Under the circumstances of our own complete state of pr epalatlon, and of the steps
which are being taken by the Government of the United States, T am persuaded ‘that all
real danger is at an. end, tnless the force of Fenians assembled on the frontier should .
betake themselves to acts of plunder which I do not anticipate.’

Parliament is to assemble this day, and it is intended at once to suspend the Habeas

.+ Corpus Act,"and .to extend to. Lower Canada the Act at present in operation in Upper -
Canada (Consohdated Statutes, Upper Canada, cap. 99), providing for the trial by Mlhtm .

Courts-martlal of the prisoners, | ;
. ' X have, &ec.
The Right, Hon. Edward Cardwe]l MP, . - (Sig ned) MONCK.
&c &c &e - . - o ;
BUTER ' ) “ |
o - Inclosure 1 in No. 3. - ' - Incl. 1 ;,; No.

A PROCLMIA TION. . : S
la ' .
WHEREAS it -has become known to me that certain’ evﬂ-dlsposed persons have, .
within the . territory and jurisdiction of the United States, begun and set on foot, and
. have provided and prepared, and are still engaged in providing and preparing means for a s
military expedition-and enterprise; which expedition and enterprise is to be carriéd on '
. from the territory and jurisdiction of the United States, against Colonies, districts, and
people of British North America, within the domain of Grea,t Britain and Ireland, with
. - which said- d_lstncts, and people, a,nd ngdom, the Umted States are at peace. And

O .
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~whereas the proceedmgs aforesaid constitute a high misdemeanor, forbidden by the laws
of the United States, as well as by the laws of nations. Now, therefme, for the purpose
of preventing the carrying on of the unlawful expedition :md enterprise aforesaid, from
the territory and jurisdiction of the United States, and to maintain public peace, as well
as the national honour, and enforce obedience and respect 1o the laws of the United
States. I, Andrew Johnson President of the United btates, do admonish and warn all
good citizens of the United States against taking part in or in any way aiding, counten-
ancing, or abetting said unlawful proccedings, and T do exhort all J udges, Magistrates,

+ « Marshals, and officers in the service of the United States, to cmpluy all their lawful

Incl. 2 in No. 3.

No. 4.

fncl. 1 in No. 4,

<
~

authority and power to prevent and defeat the aforesaid unlawful procecdings therein, and
nursuant to the Act of Congress in such case inade and provided. T do furthermore
authorize and empower Ma]or-Geneml Gee G Meade, Commandant of the military and
naval forces of the United States, and the Militia thereof, to arrest and prevent the
setting on foot and carrying on the expedition and enterprise aforesaid. !

In testimony whereof 1 have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the United
States to be affixed. ¢

Done at the city of Washington, this bth of June, in the year of our Lord 1866, and
_independence of the United States the ninetieth.

(Signed) ANDREW JOHNSON.
(By. the President.)

Inclosure 2 in No. 3. Ty .
Attorney-General’s Office, Washingtbn, June 5; 1866
BY direction of the President you are hereby instructed to cause the arrest of all
prominent or conspicuous persons called Fenians who you may have probable cause to
. believe have been or may be guilty of violation of the neutrality laws of the United States.
~ (Signed) JAMES SPEED, Attorney-General.

No. 4

Cory of a DESPATGH from Governm-Genel al the Rmht Hon. Viscount MoNck to the
Right Hon. Epwarp CARDWELL, M.P.

&

Government House, Ottawa, J une 11, 1866.
: (Received June 25, 1866.) :
No. 51.) (AuswerPd No. 72, June 30, 1866, page 78,)
SIr, (Answered further, No 4, July 7, 1866. page 79.)

I HAVE the honour to inclose four copies of the official Canada Gazette, containing
copies of two Acts assented to by me in Her Majesty’s name: ““An Act to authorize the
Apprehension and Detention until the 8th day of June, 1867, of such Persons as shall be
suspected of committing Acts of Hostility or conspiring a«ramst Her Majesty’s Person
and Government;” “ An Act to Protect the Inhabitants of Lower Canada against
Lawless Aggressmns from SubJects of Foreign Countrles at peace with Her MaJesty »

I have, &c.
The Right Hon. Edward Cardw ell, M.P,, (Signed) MONCK.
&e. T &e. &e. . -

Inclosuge 1 in No. 4.

> - (No. 3,200.)
Car. L.

AN Acr to authorize the apprehension and detention until the eighth day of June, one
thousand eight hundred. and sixty-seven, of such persons as “shall be suspected of
committing “acts of hostlllty or conspiring against Her Majesty’s Person and
Government.

[Assented to 8th Juné, 1866.]

Wasreas certain evil disposed persons being subjects or citizens of foreign countries
. at peace with: Her-Majesty, have lawlessly mvaded this Province, with hostile intent, and
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whereas other similar lawless invasions of and hostile incursions into the Province are
threatened ; Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Council
and Asscmbly of Canada, enacts as follows :— ,

1. All and every person and persons who is, are, or shall be within prison in this
Province at, upon, or after the day of the passing of this Act, by warrant of commitment
signed by any two Justices of the Peace, or under capture or arrest made with or without
Warrant, by any of the officers, non-commissioned officers or men of Her Majesty’s
Regular, Militia or Volunteer Militia Forces, or by any of the officers, warrant officers, or
men of Her Majesty’s Navy, and charged; .

With being or continuing in arms against Her Majesty within this Province;

Or with any act of hostility therein ; R

Or with having cntered this Province with design or intent to levy war against

Her Majesty, or to commit any felony thercin ;

Or with levying war against Her Majesty in company- with any of the subjects or -

citizens of any foreign State or country then at peace with Her Majesty;
Or with entering this Province in company with any such subjects or citizens with
intent to levy war on Her Majesty, or to commit any act of felony therein ;

Or with joining himself to any person or persons whatsoever, with the design or intent :

to aid and assist him or them, whether subjects or aliens, who have entered or
may enter this Province with design or intent to levy war on Her Majesty, or to
commit any felony within the same ;

Or charged with high treason or treasonable practices, or suspicion of high:treason,
or treasonable practices; ~

May be detained in safe custody, without bail or mainprize, until the eighth day of June, k

one thousand eight hundred and sixty-seven, and no Judge or Justice of the Peace shall
bail or try any such person or persons so committed, captured, or arrested without order
from Her Majesty’s Executive Couricil, until the eighth day of June, one tliousand eight

hundred and- sixty-seven, any law or statute to the contrary notwithstanding ; provided, -

that if within fourteen days after the date of any warrant of commitment, the same or a
copy thereof certified by the party in whose custody such person is detained, be not
countersigned by a clerk of the Executive Council, then any person or persons detained
in custedy under any such warrant of commitment for any of the causes aforesaid by
virtue of this Act, may apply to be and may be admitted to bail. N i

2. In cases where any person or persons have been, before the passing of this Act

or shall be during -the time this Act shall continue in force, arrested, committed, or -

detained in custody by force of a warrant of commitment of ary two Justices of the

Peace for any of the causes in the preceding section mentioned, it shall and may be lawful

for any person or persons to whom such warrant or warrants have been or shali be
directed to detain such person or persons so arrested or committed, in his or their custody
in any place whatever within this Province, and such person or persons to whom such
,warrant or- warrants have been or shall be directed, shall bc deemed and taken to be to all
intents and purposes lawfully authorized to detain in safe custody, and to be the lawful
gaolers and keepers of such persous so arrested, committed or detained, and such place or
places where such person or persons so arrested, committed, or detained, are or shall be
detained in custody, shall be deemed and taken to all intents and purposes to be lawful
prisons and gaols for the detentibn and safe custody of such person and persons
respectively ; and it shall and may be lawful to and for Her Majesty’s Executive Couneil,
-by warrant signed by a clerk of the said Executive Council, to change- the person or
persons by whom and the place in which such person or persons so arrested, conymitted,
or detained, shall be detained in safe custody. ’

3. The Governor may, by proclamation, as and so often as he may see fit, suspend the
operations of this Act, or within the period aforesaid again declare the same to be in full
force and effect, and, upon any'such proclamation, this Act shall be suspendéd ar of full
force and effect as the case may be. ’

4. This Act may be altered, amended, or repealed during the present session of ‘
. Parliament.

—_—




Incl. 2 in No. 4,

1

" No, 5.

6
inclosure 2 in No. 4.

(No. 3,201.)

CCae I . e

Ax Act to protect the inhabitants of Lower Canada against ]awless aggressrons from
subjects of foreign countries at peace with Her Majesty.-

-
-

- [Assented to 8th June, 1866.]

FOR the protectlon of the inhabitants of Lower Canada against lawless aggressxons
from subjects of foreign countries at peace, with Her Majesty: Her Majesty, by and
with the advice and consent of the Legislative Council and Assembly of Canada, enacts
as follows :—

1. In case any person, being a citizen-or subject of any foreign state or country at
peace with Her Majesty, be or continues in arms against Her Majesty within Lower Canada,
or commits any act of hostility therein, or enters " Lower Canada with design or intent to
‘levy ‘war against Her Majesty, or to commit any felony therein, for which any person

would, by the laws of Lower Canada, be liable to suffer death, then the Governor may

order the assembling of a Militia General Court Martial for the trial of such person,
agreeably to the Militia. laws; and upon being found guilty by such court-martial of
offending against this Act, such person shall be “sentenced by sugh court-martial to suﬁ'er
death, or such other punishment as shall be awarded by the Court.

2 If any subject of Her Majesty, within Lower Canada, levies ‘War aﬂamst Her
Majesty, in company with any of the subjects -or citizens™ of any foreign state or country
_ then at peace with Her Majesty, or enters Lower Canada in company ‘with any such subjects
or citizeéns with intent to levy war on Her Majesty, or to commit any such act of felony as
aforesaid, or if with the design or intent to aid and assist, he joins himself to any person or -
persons whatsoever, whether subjects or aliens, who have entered Lower Canada with .
design or intent to levy war on Her Majesty, or to commit any-such felony within the
same, then such subject of Her Majesty may be tried and punished by a Militia court-
martial in like manner as any titizen or subject of a foreign state or country at peace with
Her Majesty, is liable under, this Act to, be tried and punished. :

3. Every citizen or subject of any foreign state or country who offends against the
provisions of this Act, is guilty of telony, and may, notwithstandingthe . provisions
hereinbefore contained, be prosecuted and tried before “ The Court of Queens Bench ¥ in

the exercise of its criminal jurisdiction in and for any district in.Lower Canada, in the -

same manner as if the offence had been committed in such district, and upon convxctlon
, shall suffer death as a felon.

No. 5. .~

CorY of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Monck to the
Right Hon. EpwArD CARDWELL, M.P.

" (No. 52.) | o Government House, Ottawa, June 13, 1866

SIR, ‘ ' (Received June 27, 1866.) -

1 HAVE to transmit herew1th for your information, a copy of a despatch whlch I
addressed to Her Majesty’s Minister at ‘Washington, i reference to the proclamation of
the President of the United States relative to the Fenla,n organization. . ,
. - : I have, &ec. ;
The Right Hon, Edward Cardwell, M.P.," T (Slgned) MONCK.

&e. &e. &e. : :
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Inclosure in No. 5.
Viscount Monck to Sir F. Bruce.

Sz, ' Government House, Ottawa, June 11, 1868.

I HAVE learnt from the public press the terms of the proclamation which the
President of the United States of America has ptomulgated against the hostile designs
of the Fenians on the Province the government of which I have * the honour to administer,

- I'have also, by the same means, been made acquainted with the orders issued by the
Attorney-General of the United States and other officers of the Administration of that
country for the apprehension of the persons of Fenian conspirators and the stoppage and
seizure of arms and other supplies intended to be used by them against Canada.

Inclosure in No. 5.

As these proceedings of the Government of the United States have materially -

tended to defeat the hostile purposes of the Fenians against this Province, I shall feel
much obliged if you will convey to the Secretary of State for the United ‘States my
acknowledrrments of the course which has been adopted by that Government in reference
to this matter. /
! I have, &c.
His Excellency the Hon. Sir F. Bruce, G.C.B., (Signed) MONCK.
&e. - &e. &e. ‘

' ; No. 6.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Vlscount Moxnck to the
Right Hon. Epwarp Carpwerr, M.P.

Government House, Ottawa, June 14, 1866.
gNO 53.) : - (Received June 27, 1866.)
(Answered, No, 71, June 30, 1866, page 78.)

I HAVE the honour to transmit for your information the reports* to the'Lieutenant-
Greneral commanding Her Majesty’s Forces of the several officers whose names are noted
in the margin relatan' to the proceedings connected w1th the late Fenian invasion at
Fort Erie, Canada West

I think these documents substantially corroborate the accounts “hmh I gave you,

from telegraphic and other information, in my despatches Nos. 43, 45, and 47 of the 1st,

4th, and 8th instant.

From all the information I havé received, I am now satisfied that a very large and
comprehensive plan of attack had been arranged by the party which is popularly known
as the Sweency-Roberts section of the Fenian Brotherhood.

This plan of invasion, in addition to the attempt on the Niagara frontier—the only
one which actually occurred—-appears to have embraced attacks on the line of the
Richelieu and Lake Champlain, and also on the frontier in the neighbourhood of Prescott
and Cornwall,ewhere I have reason to think the principal demonstration was intended.

For the latter object, large bodies of men sent by railroad from almost all parts of
the United States were assembled at a place called Malone, in the State of New York,

No. 6.

Pages 1 and 3,

and at Potsdam, also in the State of New York; and, with a view to the former, .

St. Albans and its neighbourhood, in the State of Vermont was selected as the place of
assemblage.

Lar(re supplies of-arms, accoutrements, and ammunition were also attempted to be
forwarded by railroad to these points; but, owing to the active intervention of the
authorities of the United States, as soon as it became apparent that a breach of inter-
national law had been committed by these persons, a very large portion of these supplies
never reached their destination.

It is not easy to arrive at a trustworthy estimate of the number of men who actually
arrived at their different points of rendezvous.

It has been reported at times that there were at Potsdam, Malone, and the inter-
vening country as many as 10,000 men, and similar rumours have been from time to
time circulated of the force at St. Albans and its neighbourhood.

From the best opinion I can form, however, I should be inclined to think that the

Colonel Booker, June 2, 1866. Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel to the Secretary of State, June 8, 1866;

. Statement of Naval Force Return of Troops. Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel to the Secretary of State,

Montreal, June 11; Lxeutenant—Colonel Deunis, June 4; Captain Akers, June 7; Colonel Lowry, June 4, 1866.
Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel to the Secretary of State, Montreal, June 11, 1866.
[82] y ! . Cc . _3‘

*\Iaentenant-General Sir J. Michel to the Secretary of State, June 8; Colonel Peacocke, June 4; I.xeutenant- '
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numbler',of Fenians in the vicinity of St Albans never exceeded 2,000 men, and that
8,000 would be a fair. allowance for those assembled at Potsdam, Malone, and the

. surrounding country. . | .
' The men have been represented to me as having, many of them, served in the late

civi] war' in the United States, to -have had a considerable amount of small arms of 4.

good and efficient deseription. I have not heard of their possessing any artillery, and I
* am informed that they were deficient in the supply of ammunition, and totally destitute
of all the other equipments of an organized force. S

“ZThey appear. to have relied very much on assistance from the inhabitants of the
provinee, as the force which in%gded Fort Erie brought with them, as I am told, a large
quantity of spare arms fo put into the hands of the sympathizers whom they expected to

" join them. . k : ¢
! I have in my former despatches noticed the measures which wetre adopted by the
"Provincial Government, in order to place at the disposal of ‘the Lieutenant-General
eommanding* Her Majesty’s forces the provincial resources available for defence both by
land and water, o , " : _
The Reports of the officers of the army and volunteers, which I transmit, will acquaint
you with the manner in which these means were used by the officers in command, .
I am hippy to be able to bear my tribute to the energy and good faith exhibited by -
the American Government and ‘its officials in checking all infraction of international
obligations on the part of any portion of its: citizens from the moment that it became -
evident that an invasion of the Provinee by'the Fenians had actually taken place. The
determination of the Government of the United States to stop the transportation of men
and supplies to the places of assembly rendered. evén temporary success on the part of
the Fenians impossible, while the largé forces which the Lieutenant-Genetal comimanding
was able to concentrate on each of the points threatened, had the.effect of deterring
from an attack the portion of the conspirators who had already arrived at their- places of
rendezvous. : . ‘ ' _
. .No invasion in force occurred, except at Fort Erie, a slight incursion took place at a
place called at St. Armand, about thirteen miles from:St. John’s, on' the borders of the
County of Missisquoi, which ended in the capture of about sixteen prisoners without any
lo$s on our side, D N ‘ A
The latest aceounts I have received announced that the men who had congregated at
the different points of assembly were being transmitted to' their homes at the expense of
_ the Goveinment of the United States, most of the leaders having been arrested and held
to bail to answer for their conduct. - ' '
Although I deplore the loss which the Volunteer force engaged on the 2nd June, at
Limestone %idgé, has siiffered amounted to six killed and thirty-one wounded, I think it
is a higtter for congratulation that a movement which might have been so formidable
: has collapsed ‘with so small an amount of loss, either of life or property.

I think it is also 4 source of satisfaction that such strong proofs have been afforded
of the spitit which animates the Canadian people, of. theit loyalty to the Throne, of their
appreciation of the free institutions under which they live, and of their readiness at all

. times to prove theif sengeé of the value of those institutions by incurring expense and
pérsoitdl risk in the defence of them. o - S _

'The period of the yeéar at which the people has-been called on to make these. sacri-

fices of tirie by serving in the Volunteer ranks has been the most inconvenient that could
be seléeted, yet I hive never heard a murmur from any quarter at the necessity for
suspending industrial ocenpation invalving the risk of losing a whole “year's production,

, while I Havé feceivéd information of a good deal of discontent; on the|part.of those who
Wt anxious to give their services, but whose presence in the ranks was In&b} -considered
nécessdry. ‘ E ST g

' I hidvé 6 exptess my véery high semse of the services performed by Lieutenant-
General Sir J. Michel and the officers under his command in the able’ dispositien of the -
troops both regulir and volunteers. -The officets of the Royal Navy stationed at Quebee
and Montreal deserve the highest credit for the rapidity with which they extemporized
guii-boats for the fefence of the St. Lawrence and the Lakes. : ‘ ,

" 1have alteady spoken of the admirable spirit displayed by the Volunteer force; both
officers and men. T have every reason to believe that their conduct as regards discipline
and ordef his éntitled thém to as much commendation as does their spirit of patriotism.
and gelf-reliance. =~ = ] : g

., 1 desire particularly to bring before your netice the ability and energy exhibited by
Coloriel Macdotigall,” Adjutant-General of l\}/filitia, with a view to having his service§

. spedially ttientiofied to His Roy4l Highneys the Commander-ii-Chief, | o
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This officer has not yet been one year in Canada, yet so admirable is the system of
organization which he has established, that he is able within a few hours to assemble on
any given ;point over. a line of more than 1,000 miles, masses of Volunteers, who at the
time the order was given were scatteted over the country pursuing their ordinary avoca-
tions. : :

While I attribute full ¢redit to the excellent spirit of the people for its share in this
effect, T think the administrative ability which has given practical operation fo the good
feeling of the population ought to have its meed of praise, and in the interests of the
public service on some possible future emergency ought not to be left without official
record. o -

"There are prisoneys in our hands to the number of about 150. I have not yet received
official returns of them, whose trinl will be proceeded with at an early day.

I confidently expect within a few days to be able to dismiss to their homes the great
majority of the Volunteers, and my firm-conviction is, that this disturbance will produce
beneficial cffects by discrediting Fenian enterprises, exhibiting the futility of any attempt
at invasion of the Province, and showing the absence of all disaffection amongst any
portion of the people of Canada. K ,

- 1 have, &c.
The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell, M.P., ‘ (Signed) . MONCK.
. &e. &e. &e. ,

Inclosure 1 in No, 6. ;
i

Lieutenant-General Sir J. MicueL to the SECRETARY OF STATE FOrR WAR.

"My Lorp, i3] ead-Qua{ters, Montreal, June 8, 1866.

I HAVE the honour to forward Reports, as per m
from the 1st to the 4th of June, on the Niagara frontier.

It appears by those Reports that Colonel Peacocke, of the 16th Regiment, with a
force, as per margin,} arrived at Chippawa on the evening of the 1st of June, and that
hearing a Fenian force was encamped at Black Creck, he endeavoured to arfange for the
morning of the 2nd a combined movement with the Volunteer force, as per margin.]
under Colonel Booker, at Port Colborne. During the night, however, the Fenians
rempved to Ridgeway, and circumstances did not permit’ Colonel Peacocke to move so
early as the hour proposed. I may here incidentally state that some diserepancies exist
between the reports of Colonels Peacocke and Booker as to the time named for junction,
it will be seen by the slight sketch subjoined that the Fenians had moved during the
night, three miles nearcr Port Colborne, and three miles further from Colonel Peacocke’s
force.

The consequence of this was that the Volunteers came on the enemy unexpectedly ;
and although they attacked him with much gallantry, and suffered severely, as may
be seen by the subjoined list of killed and wounded, were, from want of support, and
from other causes connected with their state (as new to warfare), worsted by the enemy
and forced to retire to Port Colborne, but without much molestation.

The enemy then turned their attention to a small party of Volunteers under
Colonel Dennis, who had seized Fort Erie, to which place they had, in a steam-tug, on the
morning of the 2nd proceeded. ) ‘

Colonel Dennis’ party, I believe, took some forty prisoners, but the report from that
officer has not yet reached me. . .

Colonel Peacocke’s column having been reinforced by Lieutenant-Colonel Villier’s
47th Regiment with a force as per margin,§ arrived on the evening of the 2nd within
two miles and a half of Fort Erie, and on the morning of the 8rd proceeded $o that
place. e ‘

The great body, however, of the enemy on the night of the 2nd had recrossed the

arein* referring to operations:
+

river. They were immediately seized by the United States’ authorities, and ‘placed in

arrest.
Colonel Peacocke in his march picked up a considerable number of prisoners,

Although the result of these operations, in.a military point of view, were not so”

satisfactory to me as I could have wished, still I fecl that from the total want of cavalry
the change of the position of the enemy during the night of the st could not have been

* Colonel Peacocke’s, June 4 ; Lieutenant-Colonel Booker's; List of Killed and Wounded.
+7400 Regulars, 6 guns. i 840 Volunteers.
§ 150 Regulars, 760 Volunteers; total, 900 Infautry.

C2

Incl, 1 in No. 6.
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discovered, nor Colonel Peacocke’s change of hour for operations to commence have been
made known to Colonel Booker, and therefore that the partial failure must be attributed
to one of those mischances in warfare, which it is difficult to provide against, and only
possible when all the appliances of war are within our grasp.
. . I have, &c. -
(Sigried) J. M[CHEf} Lieutenant-General,
Commanding the Forces in British North Awmerica.
The Right Hon. the Secretary of State for War,
War Office, London.

ve
P2y

I 2 in No. 6. - Inclosu};e 2 in No. 6.

- Colonel Peacocke to Major-General NAPIER.
SIr, Fort Erie, June 4, 1866.
* I HAVE the honour to make the following report of my operations in the field
lnce the 1st instant :— .
In compliance with a telegram received from you, I joined at 2 o’clock, at Hamilton,
' . with 200 men of my own battalion ; the force proceeding from Toronto to St. Catherine’s
consisting of one batiery of Royal Artillery, under the comimand of Lieutenant-Colonel
Hoste, C.B., and 200 men, 47th Regiment, under the command of Major Lodder.

You had also placed under my command for the. defence of the frontier seven
companies of Volunteer force stationed at St. Catherine’s, under the command of
Lieutenant-Colonel Cuirie, the Queen’s Own Regiment of Volunteers at Port Colborne
and the 13th Dattalion of Volunteer Militia, commanded by Licutenant-Colonel Booker
at Dunnville, and you had informed me that I should be reinforced at St. Catherine’s
that evening by 800 men. T

Your instructions were that I was to make St. Catherine’s my base, to act according
to my own discretion as to advancing on Clifton or elsewhere, and to attack the enmemy
as soon as I could do so with a forcesufficient to ensure success. - A

On arriving at St. Catherine’s, I received telegrams to th. effect that the Ferians,
about 800 strong, were marching on the suspension bridge, and were actually two or
three miles from Chippewa. I pushed on immediately to the bridge, leaving orders for
all troof¥s arriving at St. Catherine’s to follow me as soon as possible. .

On reaching the bridge I heard the enemy had not yet reached Chippewa ; and
being anxious to save the bridge over the creek, I pressed on with the four hundred

Infantry in the train, preceded by a pilot-engine, the battery marching by road in
onsequence of the reported want of platform accommodation at the Chippewa station.
It\was dark when we arrived at Chippewa. We bivouaced there that night.

i~z \ -\l here received numerous reports from scouts sent out by Mr. Kirkpatrick, the reeve.
> They agreed generally in the statement that the Fenians had entrenched themselves

e roughly g little below Fort Erie, at Frenchman’s Creek, and had sent on a party towards

Chippawa.\_Their strength was variously estimated from 800 to 1,500.

I resolved on effecting a junction with the force at Port Colborne, to which place I
had already ordered the battalion from Dunnyille. ‘

. ¢ ‘With this Bquct in view, 1 selected Stevensville as the point of junction, and having
) explained to Captain Akers, Royal Engineers, who accompanied the force from Toronto,
g what my object was, and that this point was chosen because, judging from the informa-

tion received, we could not be anticipated at it till the evening. )
. I dispatched that officer at 12 o’clock to communicate with the officer commanding
at Port Colborne, to make him conversant with my views, and to order him to meet me
: at Stevensville between 10 and 11 o’clock next morning, informing him that I should start
at 6 o’clock.

I continued to send out scouts during the night, and to receive reports which made
me believe that my information was correct, and that the enemy had not left their camp.

At about 2 o’clock I received a telegram from Colonel Booker, despatched before he
was joined Ly Captain Akers, informing me that he had given order to attack the enemy
at Fort Erie. B , A ‘

At about half-past 3, I received another one from Captain Akers, despatched after
he had reached Port Colborre, saying that the enemy is at French Creek, and proposing
that Lieutenant-Colonel Booker’s force should advance on Fort Erie, and join us at
Frenchman’s Creek. .

At about half-past 4 o’clock I was joined by the seven companies of Volunteer force
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from St. Catherine’s, formed into a battalion 350 strong, under Colonel Currie, and by
the expected reinforcement under “Lieutenant-Colonel Villiers, 47th Regiment, which
consisted of 150 men, 47th, and of the 10th Royals, 415 strong, under Major Boxall.
~ The Volunteers, being unprovided with means of carrying provisions and of cooking
them, had not been able to comply with an order I bhad sent the previous evening, that -
ey were to bring provisions in their haversacks.
I saw that the absolute necessity of furnishing' them with some would cause 2 delay, ‘
and X telegraphed to Port Colborne that I should be one hour later in starting: Lo
. marched at 7 o’clock, leaving the garrison Volunteer battery from St. Catherine’s ¥ <"+
; under Caytain Stoker, to hold Chippawa. o
r The was oppressively hot, and our guides took us by a road much longer than
f necessary. en about three miles from Stevensville, at about 11 o’clock, I received a
] few lines from\Lieutenant-Colonel Booker, written at half-past 7 o’clock, to the effect
3
g
|

that he had just \teceived my telegram, but that he was attacked in force by the enemy
at a place three miles south of Stevensville; at the same time I received information
that he had retired\on Ridgway. I encamped a mile further on at a place called
New Germany, across droad leading due south to Stevensville!
] At about 4 o’clock, having gathercd-information that the enemy was falling back on
; Fort Erie, I left everything behind which would encumber the men and started to
| follow them. ) .
! At the moment of starting we received an important accession to our strength by
§ the arrival of the Cavalry Body Guard of his Excellency the Governor-General, fifty-five
strong, under Major Denison. )
] We marched until dark, and halted two miles and a half from Fort Erie, the men
sleeping on their arms and due precaution being observed. ,
During the night I sent out scouts to collect information. It appeared that the -
r Fenians on retiring had posted themselves at once near the Old Fort, some said they had
£ becn reinforced, some that they were attempting to recross into the United States.
i . I also heard that threc companies 16th Regiment, and three companies 60th Rifles,
: had arrived at our vacated camp at New Germany, and that a force had reached Black
 Creek, also that ten more companies of Volunteer Militia had arrived at Port Colborne.
; The Volunteer garrison battery which I had left at Chippawa joined me, during
7 _the night. : T
. Anxious to prevent the escape of the Fenians, I sent word to the officers commanding . [, .. .
at those three places'that I was going to attack Fort Erie and asked when they would be j?ff e
i able to-co-operate. ) '
Subsequently fresh reports of attempts of the Fenians to escape having reached me,
I determined on advancing at once. ‘
We, were about to move when Licutenant-Colonel the Honourable Hillyard Cameron
came into~camp and informed me that they had escaped.
" 'This ifﬂ:el&gence caused great mortification in my little force. I desired Major
Denison to, scour-thé country and enter the town, he sent me a message that he was
- informed that there were still a body of Fenians about the Old Fort.
We at once marched in that direction skirmishing through the woods, and though
Major Denison soon informed me that they really had escaped, as many scouts and farm
people assured us they had not escaped We took a long sweep through the woods, our
right on Lake Erie, a few stragglers' vere seen and four reported shot.
On entering the Old Fort, traces were found of its having been recently occupied.
During the short operation which extended only over forty hours, the troops under
my command underwent very great fatigue, and bore it with the best spirit and great
cheerfulness.
I received all possible support and co-operation from officers of all ‘ranks, the conduct
of the men was excellent, a great number of private individuals rendered me services
. various ways, and the inhabitants generally displayed a good and loyal feeling.
Mr. Swinyant, Manager of the Great Western Railroad, gave me the benefit. of his
services in person, he placed at my disposal the resources of the railway, and the officials
¥ on the line exerted themselves to render these available. T
: I have the honour to enclose a report of Lieutenant-Colonel Booker of his operation

§  on the 2nd instant. .
; . ~ (Bigned) GEORGE PEACOCKE,
: . Colonel and Lieutenant-Colonel, 1st Battalion 16th Regiment.
Major-General-G. Napier, C.B., -
Commanding 1st Military District, Toronto, Canada, West. - 1
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Inclosure 3 in No. 6.
ReporT of Lieutenant-Colonel Booker.

Siz, "¢ Port Colborne, June 2, 1866.
]I HAVE the honour to report that, in accordance with instructions received

. from Colonel Peacocke, through Captain Akers, I proceeded by train at 5 a.m. to-day,

to Ridgeway station, on the B. and L. W. railroad with the Queeti’s Own,- of
Toronto, Major Gilmor, say 480 men, of all ranks; the York Rifles, Captain Denis;
the Caledonian Rifles, Captain Jackson, and the 15th battalion, of Hamilton, together
about 360 men, total of all ranks, say 840 men, in order to form a junction with Colonel
Peacocke, at Stevensville at 9 to 9.30 a.m. ‘ On arriving at Ridgeway I sent the Great
Western train away, and as 1 could not obtain a borse or waggon in the place for the
conveyance of stores,’I was compelled to leave without the stores, and sent them back
to Port Colborne.” At a little before 8 a.mM. we were feeling our way.upon the Stevens-
ville road, and were about three miles from that village, when our advanced guard felt’
the enemy. Major Gilmor extended the Queen’s Own in skirmishing order, in admirable
style; the men advancing in good spirits, they were supported and relieved as required ~
by the 13th of Hamilton, and the Rifle Companies from York and Caledonia. After
Major Gilmor had expended much ammunition, he reported to me that his ammunition
was failing, at 9.30, after being engaged under & hot fre for an hour and a half]
I observed the enemy throwing back his right and reinforcing his left flank, I immediately
ordered up two companies, in support, to counteract the movement; at this moment, I
received a telegram by the hands of Mr. Stovin, Welland railroad, on the field, informing
me that Colonel Peacocke could not leave Chippawa before 7 o’clock, instead of 5 a.m.
the hour named by Captain Akers, on his behalf, The enemy-was strongly posted in the
woods, on the west of the garrison road, the road forming an entrance as it were, to a
cul-de-sac. 'We outflanked him, when he brought up his centre reserves, and outflanked
us, we ‘drove them in the first place, over a mile, and held possession of their rifle pits.
A cry of cavalry from the front, and retreat of a number of men in our centre on

!

the resérves, eaused me to form a square, and prepare for eavalry. This mistake

originated from relieved skirmishers doubling back. I immediately reformed column and
endeavoured to deploy to the right; a panic here seized our men, and I could not bring
them again to the front; I regret to say we have lost several valuable officers and men,
I estimate the strength of the enemy as greater than ours, and from the rapid firing they
were evidently armed with repeating rifles. |
I have, &c.
(Signed) A. BOOKER, Lieutenant-Colonel,
Commanding Volunteer Militia,

P.S.—We are destitute of provisions here. A.B.
If T'had only one gun of artillery I feel sure the result would have been different.
A.. B.e- \

\
~ \

L of Killed and Wounded in the Engagement at Ridgeway, on the 2nd June, 1866.

: 13th Infantry- Battalion.
Killed.—None. ! :
Wounded.~Lieutenant Routh, dangerously ; 6 privates. \

- Queen’s Own Rifles

Killed.—Ensign McEaehun; 5 privates.
Wounded.—~Captain Boustead, Lieutenant Berau, Lieutenant Campbell, Ensign
Fabay, 1 Colour Sergeant, 3 Sergeants, 2 Corporals, 15 Privates. :

Missing.~—1 Private,
i e (Signed) G. NAPIER, Major-General,

The return I received ftom the Queen’s Own, does nof, as you will perceive, state the
nature of the wounds, 1 will send for another properly filled in to-morrow.
. (Signed) - G. NAPIER, Major-General,
Toronto, June 6, 1866, 10-30 A
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Inclosure 4 in No. 6. Inclo, 4 in No. 6.
Lieutenant-Greneral Bir J. MicHEL to the SECRETARY oF STATE POR WA\R.

My Lorb, . Head-Quarters, Montreal, June 8, 1866,

I HAVE the honour to forward a statement of the n&val force which has been
placed on the St. Lawrence and Lakes within the last week, chiefly owing to the valuable
and extraordinary exertions of Captain Hood of Her MaJesty 8 ship Pylades ”

This flotilla is more valuable than any number of troops, and quite places the line '
of the St. Lawrence in our hands, \

Also a return showing the number and position of our troops. \

The Proclamation just issued by the President of the United States has had already
* very great effect. -

The United States Government and Military authorities, are acting with good falth
vigour, and promptltude

e I have, &e.
(Signed) J. MICHEL, Lleutenant-General
Commanding the Forces in British North Amenca

The Right Hon the Secretary of State for War
War Office.
Inclosure 5 in No. 6. Inclo. 5i\n Nc;. 6.
MEB}ORANDUM of Naval Arrangementg. g \\
These have been made under authority of his Excellency the Governor-General, \

Those at Montreal haye been carried out under Captain Hood, of Her Majesty’s ship
“ Pylades,” who has supplied the accompanying tabular statement,

At Toronto the steamers “Magnet” and “ Rescue,” have been taken up; crews,
armaments, and stores for them reached Toronto on 5th proximo, from Her Majesty’s
ship < Aurora,” Captain de Horsey, which is at Quebec.

The « Rescue,” Lieutenant Helon Maxwell, R.N., has passed into Lake Erie and ig -
now at Wlﬁﬁsor, C.W.

The™ Ms; et,” Lg;;utenant Fairlie, R.N., is at Toronto, C.W.

The « Watem a ferry boat, has been taken up at Kihgston and armed with
a 24-pounder brass howitzer, and 9- pounder brass gun; she is manned by Royal Artillery
and a Volunteer Naval Company.

Vice-Admiral Sir J. Hope was to arrive in Her Majesty’s ship “ Duncan ” at Quebec
this morning, with the 17th Regiment on board from Halifax.

He has been telegraphed

By command,
(Signed) ‘WM. EARLE, Lieutenant-Colongl,

June 8, 1866. , Military Secretary.

(Bigned for the Lieutenant-Greneral, who has gone to St. John’s:)

Q
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¥ Inclosuve 7 in No. 6. . Inclo, 7 in No. 6
Rerury showing Position and Number of Troops.
o £ %
ElE] . |¢
2 2|2 |2
53
£ |8 | & &) * -
Major General Napter . e .+ | Niagara frontier .. 2,000 2,000 6
Colonel Lowry, 47th Regunent . «.| London frontier  ,.] 800 {2,000 {2,300 | 10 | Volanteer guns.
Colonel Huwley, 60th Regiment . ..| torouto . P R .. .. .. | No Return,
Major-General the Hon. J. Lindsay .. .. | Kmgston .. ..| 460 |1,370 11,830 | 3 | 3 Volunteerguns, 660 Volun-
) ' teers, from the West.
Colonel Giblon, Royal Artillery .. ««| Prescott .. | 1821(1,144 (1,326 { 2| 2 Volunteer guns, 50 Volun-
® teers, avalable at Brock-
: ville,
Lieutenant-Colonel Atcherley, Volunteer Militia..| Covawall . ..| 900 1,000 |1,900 | 8
Colonel Pakenham, 30th Regiment .. .. | Huntingdon District..| .. 1,144 11,144 2 | Volunteer guns.
Lieutenant-Colonel Snuth, Volunteer Militia ..} I:sde aux Noix Lol M0 152 292
Captain lleberden, Royal Artillery .. «.! St. John's Dastrict .. 1,18‘?) 980 {2,160 | 10
Colonel Ebuington, Rifle Brigade . .. Montreal .. ] 800 900 [1,700 [ 2
Colonel Lord A. Russell, Rifle Brigade «.] Quebee .. o1 960 579 |1,339 | 4 | Voluntecr guns.
<

[inta1?
The numbers are only approximate. SR
The 2ud Buttahon of the 7th Regiment has come to Montreal from Quebec.
The 2nd Battalion of the 17th Regiment will arrive at Quebec to-duy m the flag ship.

The Volunteers’ numbers do_not clude Companies guarding detached points, or lett at their native places.
TR, glptnes gusitig dek points, or felt at IF nalive places

(Signed) J. MICHEL, Lieutenani-General,
Montreal, June 8, 18GG6. Commanding Troops, British North America.

i

Inclosure 8 in No. 6.
Licutenant-General Sir J. Micrer to the MiuiTARY SECRETARY, Horse Guards.

Six, ) Head-Quarters, Montreal, June 11, 1866.
IN continuation of my despatch of the 8th June, referring to affairs on the Niagara

fronticr, I have now the honour to forward copies of the reports of Lieutenant-Colonel

Dennis, who commanded a party which procceded in a tug from Port Colborne on the

morning of the 2nd June, and seized Fort Erie, and of Captain Akers, R.E., who',

accompanied him. . )

The latter report will give His Royal Highness some insight into the want of
preparedness of the Volunteer levies hurriedly called out. Nevertheless, these levies
behaved very well, and, with very short experienee in the field, would make good troops.
Tkeir heart is in their business, and they deserve much praise. :

I bave, &c.
The Military Secretary, (Signed) J. MICHEL, Licutenant-General.

Horse Guards.

Inclosure 9 in No. 6.

Lieutenant-Colonel Dexx1s to Colonel Lowry.
. e .

Srx, 4 Erie, June 4, 1866.

AVAILING myself of the carliest mement. T have the honour to report for the
information of his Exccllency the Comrmander-in-Chief the following - narrative of events
connected with the late Fenian invasion at this place in which I was directly concerned
subsequertly to my leaving Toronto on the morning of Friday last. '

My orders were on that occasion to proceed with the 2nd, or Queen’s Own, 400,
strong, to Port Colborne,; occupy and, if necessary, intrench a position there, and wait for
reinforcements and furgher orders before any attack was made on the enemy, who, it was
represented; numbered some 1,500 men, and was advancing on that point. Although
finding great excitement at the different stations along the Welland Railroad on the way
up, at Port Colborne, where I arrived about noon, things were quiet; no definite news
baving reached there, in consequence of the Fenians having cut the wires at Fort Erie,
out of which place they had driven the officials at 5 A.M. that morning. Report, however,
said that they had some two hours subsequently sent a party up the track, and burnt a
brid%:elci'ossing a small stream, known as Sarwine’s Creck, six miles, from Erie on the

82 D -

Inclo. 8in No, 6.

Inclo. 9in No. 6.



16 |
railway to Port Colborne. No news of any further approach having been brought in by
any of the numerous scouts sent out by the villages during the forenoon, I proceeded to
billet the men, in order to get them dinner; and then, before determining to commence

See points A and thé-oustruction of any defences, I dispatched messengers across to Buck’s Tavern and
B on diagram. tevensville, between Erie and’the town of Welland, to ascertain and report any move-
© nt'of the cnemy in that direction, which I thought probable, as sufficient tinfe had
", elapsed to enable hifa to regch Port Colborne, had that been his intention; and having,
o e through the kindness of/ Mr. Larmont, the superintendent of the line, -obtained a
, ) locomotive, I started dows the railway upon a reconnaissance, getting down to within six
I- : miles of Erte, the burding of the bridge mentjoned preventing any closer approach.
' I then learnt that the Jridge had been destroyed by a party of some seven men, who had-. :
come up at-about 7 s/, who, in addition, stole a number of horses from the farmers in
. the vicinity, and tien went back towards the main body, which, from testimony I -
" Scepoint Con  Teceived, it appeargd, had gone down the river about a mile below the Lower Ferry, and
map. camped close to tfe River Road, on one Newbigging’s Farm. o
Their numbers were variously estimated at from 450 to 1,200 men. This testimony
was corroboraped by the statcment ‘of the mounted scouts from Buck’s Tavern and.
Stevensville, ho returned in the evening, and went to show that, with the exception of
parties out gealing horses, there had been no Fenians seen in_that direction, and was-
" rendered cértain by the arrival about 10 p.y. of Mr. Graham, the officer of Customs at
Fort Erie,/who had been in their camp at 6 o’clock that evening, Shortly before this™
time, hoivever, Colonel Booker, of Hamilton, had arrived with the 18th Battalion of
- Volunteers, and, being senior officer, took command, and continued the communication
by telegraph which had been going on"between Colonel Peacocke and myself, respecting; .
positi/o/n and strength of enemy, and best mcthod of attacking bhim. Colonel Peacocke,
then,at Clifton, baving at @bout 5 r:m. telegraphed me that he had ordered the Inter-
. nat?bnal' Railway steamer up to Port Colborne for me to put upon her a gun or detachment,
in ‘order to patrol the river from Fort Erie to Chippawa—she not having arrived at
10.30 p.m.—I-ordered the “Robb,” a powerful tug-boat, owned by Captain McCollum,
down from Dunnville, for the purpose, intending to place upon her the Welland: battery,
without guns (the-men armed with Enfield rifles), and received a reply that she would be
down 8} % a.m. the following morning. This was the position-of affairs when Captain
Akers, R=T, arrived from Chippawa, sent over by Coloncl Peacocke, to consult and ter
.eggplain Colonel Peacocke’s views as to the best mode of attack. ' | :
" After due consideration between Captain Akers, Colonel Booker, and myself, a
‘certain course was decided, arranging. for an attack in concert on that morning, and.
Colonel Peacocke was telegraphed accordingly.
In dccordance with this:plan, Captain Akers and myself embarked on the tug*
\ (which did not arrive, however, till about 4 A.M., having been delayed in consequence of’
Captain McCollum wishing to bring with him his naval company from Dunnville), and
proceeded down to reconnoitre the river and Fenian camp, arranging to meet the Port
“ Colborne force back at the railway depdt, three. miles above the enemy’s camp, at 7, or,
at the latest, half-past 7. On our way past the village of Fort Erie, we were brought-to
by the armed patrol tug-boat from the United States’ steamer-“Michigan,” who, on
finding out who we were, informed us that the Fenian- camp on Newbigging’s Farm. had
been broken up at 3 A.p. that morning, the enemy baving marched down the River Road.
We proceeded down the river to the mouth of the Black Creek, eight: miles above
Chippawa, where we learnt that they had turned off the river to the west, a short distance
above, and were there, at a-point two miles directly in rear of a place called New Germany.
A messenger was at once sent off to Colonel Peacocke, presumed then, under préviously~
- concocted arrangements, to be near there moving. up; and we returned with the tug, in
' - aceordance with that' arrangement, to meet Colonel Booker and the Port Colborne force:
. SeepointEon “ afthe Upper Railroad Depdt at Fort Erie. o ,
. oketch. : ‘On our arrival there we could see or hear nothing, of them. This was accounted: for:
s subsequently by the fact that Colonel Booker had received, after we: left, an order from
Colonel: Peacocke: directing him- to turn off the railroad:at Ridgway, some eight miles: -
. above:Fort Erie; and cross the. country in order to meet and: attack in. concert. .
: ‘This being the case—presuming a . combined attack would be made in the coursesof:

. the-day; of the result-of which we could. bave no doubt, I'considered,.as-I-could not: them

joim my, proper force, that imporiant service could be rendered by patrolling: the river tos

. intercept. and capture fugitives; and o prevent: by every possible means the:escape across:
the river-of any large body of the enemy.. . _ o - :

* Oifr object in' this was-to ascertain ‘definitely " thie position ‘of “the enemy’scamys as’ preliminary to .thé:

1
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" This having heen determined on, Captain Akers and myself were envawed all day in °
patrolling the shore and scouring the woods along the river as far down as Black Creek,
arresting in all, including six prisoners made about 9 o’clock in the morning at Fort
Erie, some twenty-three men; during the course of the afternoon we learned through
some of the prisoners that an enwawcment bad taken place at some point in the mterlor
in which the Fenians had been utten]y dispersed. This 1 was quite prepared to believe,
as I had from the steamer observed Colonel Peacocke with a strong force on his way up
from Chlppawa turn in from the river-road towards New Gernmny, and T knew that
Colonel Booker’s force was coming down upon him from the south.

Concliding that the action which had been known to-come off had resulted in the
capture of the enemy, I returned to Fort Erie about half-past 5 o’clock p.m., proposing to
get what information I could, about the position of our-troops, and to teleomph for
instructions as to what should be done with the prisoners, who had amounted novw,
including those taken in the village and neighbourhood during the day also, to some
sixty or ql\ty-ﬁ\e men. The numbers I cannot give precisely, as I had only got as far
as those names given in the margin,* making out a memorandum of each case, and
(baving in the meantife made up my mind to send the prisoners by the tug to Welland
Gaol) had brought down and embarked those in confinement in charge of the Reeve,
when the alarm was given that the Fenians were entering the town in fmcc In fact, the
first messenger had hardly delivered the news, when a “second came in lo say that they
were within a quarter of a mile, coming down the street along the river. I went over
from the pier o satisfy myself, and saw thenr'in numbers,as _]udf%d about 150, advancing
upon the street indicated. Supposing them to be-of the maferial and the same miscrable
character physically as the prisoners we had been taking all day, I thought the detach-
ment; I had with the boat, even if we had to resort to the bayonet, sufficient to do for
them, and concluded that my duty lay in niaking a stand.against them.

This detachment consisted, as before mentioned, of the Welland Field Battery,
54 men and 3 officers, and of a portion, some 18 men and 1 officer, exclusive of the guard
over the prisoners on the boat, of the Dunnville Naval Company:.

I first took the precaution to put the prisoners under hatches, and then advancing: to
meet’the enemy about 150 yards, drew up my liltle command across the street; as they
came within about 200 yards they opencd fire on us, when my detachment, by order, fived
a volley from cach of the companies, upon which a severe flank fire was opeuned on us
from the west, and on looking in that dircction I observed for the first time two consider-
able bodics of the cnemy, running northerly parallel with the river, evidently with the
intention of cutting us of' and getting possession both of us and the steamer at the same
time. Under. the circumstances, as I considered if-we tried to cscape by the tug the
enemy might be there as soon as we and so achicve his double object, and I therefore
concluded that my duty lay in saving the-prisoners we had on board and preventing the
enemy from getting posscssion of the vessel, what I knew, and he probably also, was his
only means of escape and I therefore or dered the captam to cast off’ and get out in the
stream, and ordered my men to retreat and do the best they could, and to rret away, each
man for himself.

During this time a heavy fire was kept up on us both front and flank, and I had the
grief of sceing several of my men fall. -We retreated down the front street under a very
heavy thourrh comparatively ineffectual firc; several of the men, contrary to my advice,
taking shelter in a house the door of which stood open as they passed

There being little or no cessation in the fire upon us in rétreat, I had no desire to

- remain under it longer than was necessary, and accordingly turned into the premises of

a friend in the lower | part of the village, where I lay concealed although the premises were
searched twice, the ruffians stating their intentiou to conie a third tlme and threatening
if 1 were not given up, as they had seen me enter the gate, that they would destr oy the
property. Two of my men, one of them-wounded, had prevxously taken shelter in the
house, whom they captured. -

Fearmrr another search, I dressed in disguise {urnished by my friend, and then came
out and remained in the village till mfrhtfall when I got through the lines and struck
across the country in search of ‘Colonel Peacocke. Findim his" camp out about five miles
back of Fort Erie ; arriving there at 3 o’clock a.m. 1 then accompanied his force back
to this place, durmrr its opemtlom later in the day, of all which, as also of the escape of
the enemy during the night, that officer’s report will doubtless inform you.

* 1. Dan. Drummond ; 2. Pat O’Nally; 3. Berig. Perry; 4. Jno. Corney; 5. Jobn Mahony ; 6. W. Mad-

‘dm:m. 7. Juo. Hughes; 8. W. H. Harden or Shavn; 9. Denis Lanahan; 10. Jno. Murphv, 11. Owen

Kennedy, 12. Francis Miles; 13. J. A. Heckman; 14. W. Baker; 15. W. Orr, 16. Jno. Maxfield; 17, Terin
MeCarthy; 18. Michael Rllfather 19. Jno. Gny, 20. Rev. Jno. Lumoden.
D2
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On my retusn I was able to.learn, for the first time, something of the casualtles in
the affair of the previous evening. :

T feel rejoiced not to have to report any:loss of life in my detachment, although 1

" was given to understand.that there were some five wounded in the Welland Battery,
three of them so severely as to result.in each case in the loss of a legj among which
_cases I regret to say Captain King of the Welland Battery, and one man of the Dunn-
ville Naval Company ; none of the officers excepting Captain Km«r were wounded. A
Return of‘the casualties is. appended hereto.

The enemy suffered more severely. Three of his number were kﬂled outnfrht and
four were mortally wounded, two of whom died yesterday morning; the other two had

" been allowed, under the circumstances, by the Reeve Dr. Kempson with the perm1ssmn~
as I understood of Colonel Low Ty, to be taken to the Buffalo Hospital.

Mr. Scholfield, the Lieutenant of the Welland Battery having gone to Welland to

' gét his men towether again, some of them having escaped across count1 y to their homes
durmo' the mcrht. is ordered without delay, when in a posmon to' do 80,. to prepare an

- * accurate list-of the casualties in the battery. ‘
‘ I have detained-this report somewhat in order to get his return.

Should there prove fo have been any casualtxes not as yet reported I wﬂl lose no
_time in sending forward a list of the same.

I append the report of Captain Mec Collum, commanding Dunnwlle Naval Qompany,
and. owner of the steam tug referred to, to whom purtlculally, as also to his Lieutenant,
W. Robb, the sailing master of the steamer,I have to express my obligation for their
zealous and efficient assistance during the operations of Saturday.

‘T have also the gratification of saying that the other officers and men forming my
little command, behaved most nobly ir. the affair during the afternoon at Fort Erie. I
firmly believe that-had I not ordered them toretreat they would have remained steady and

fought untll shot down in their tracks. _ »
I have, &e. 7
(Signed) - STOUGHTOI\ DENNIS, Lleutenant-Colonel

e Commundmo' Detachment on Saturday 2nd June.

Colonel Lowry,
Commanding Niagafa Fiontlel

/ . A
' ’ ‘ . -
R
i

Iuclo, 10 in No. 6, - / ' Inclosure 10 in No. 6.

/ . Captam Mc Coryux to Lleutenant-Colonel Dewxis.
S, ./

o AT your request I have the honour to make the follomng report :—
On Saturdy last ‘)nd of June, between the hours of 3 and 4 p.y., after your departure,
“T'retreated down the river under a galling fire, a distance of about. three miles, with two
men of Naval Brigade and thirteen men  of the Welland Canal Field Battery, the rest
having been cut oﬁ' and consequently taken -prisoners, including, the following officers,
viz., Second Lieutenant Maedonald of Naval Brigade, -and Licutenant Scholfield, and
»Enmgn Nimmo of ‘Field Battery being wounded, and one man of the Naval Bnoade,
- Lieutenant Robb, with steamer “ Robb > commandmrr boats, and took us on board. I then
held consultation with Lieutenant Robb as to futiire proceedmos we- then determined,
-on account of being encumbered with so many prisoners on board, fifty-seven in number,
and so very few men left to guard them, to run to Port Colborne and send the prisoners
to a place of safety. In passing Fort Erie up the river, we, for a distance of a mile’s run
were under a heavy fire of musketry frem the Canada, shore, we passed without.any
casualties worth mentioning, and arrived safely at Port Colborne at ‘half-past 6 p.. of same
day, and delivered the prxsoners over to Lieutenant-Colonel McGiverin, with commitment
and names inserted. )

All which is respectfully submltted :
. (Swned) L. McCOLLUM,
Lieuténant-Colonel Dennis, ‘ : Captam, N. B Dunv111e.
‘Fort Erie, -




Sl g X

S1r,

19
Inclosure 11 in No. 6.

* ReTURN of Casualties in action at Fort Erie on the afternoon of the 2nd day of
June, 1866.

Rank and Names. Where Wounded. Remarks.

Captain R. 8. King . .| Through the leg, beluw the knee. . | Required amputation ; doing well.
Gunner John Bradley e A . “ »” above the knee. . »» s R

,»  F. Scholfield .. » » s  below the knee,, » ” "

s  Georae Harrison .. .. | Through the leg .. .. | Doing well.

» R. Thomas . . | Through the thigh .. . "

“(Above, all belong to’ the Welland | ,

Company, N Battery, Dunnville | * )

Naval Brigade) ’ 3
Nelson Bush e .. ..| Bavonet wound in’ chest .. | Slicht wound; doing well.

(Signed) J. STOUGHTON DENNIS,
Licutenant-Colonel Commanding Detachment.
Head-Quarter Force, Yort Erie,
June 7, 1866.

Inclosure 12 in No. 6.
Captain AkERs to the Commander of the Royal Engineers in Canada.

. . Montreal, June 7, 1866.
IN accordance with the orders of Major-General Napier, C.B., I'reported myself to
Colonel Peacocke at Hamilton, on Friday 1st June, and proceeded with him to Chippawa.

The same night about midnight, I was directed by Colonel Peacocke to procced to
Port Colborne to arrange with Colonel Dennis for making a combined attack on the enemy
supposed to be entrenched on Black Creek, about three miles down the River Erie, seven
miles from Chippawa, and two from Stevensville.

Colonel Peacocke was to move on Stevensville, so as as to arrive there about 9-30 A.m.
Colonel Dennis to move along the railway to Ridgeway, as far as the state of the railroad
would. permit, and march from thence to meet Colonel Peacocke at Stevensville at the
above hour, and from thence the combined forces were to march on the supposed position
at A arriving at Port Colborne at about 2 a.m. I found the whole force under arms and
in the cars.

Colonel Booker being senior to Colonel Dennis had taken over the command.

They had obtaired from a Custom-house officer arrived from FErie, exact information
ag to the position of the Fenian camp ; tiis was on Frenchman’s Creek, about half-way
between Black Creck and Fort Erie. The officer who had becn in the camp at 6 o’clock,
considered there were not more than 700 men, that they had been drinking hard during
the day, and might fall an easy prey to a sudden attack.

Colonel Dennis was anxious to move off at once to the attack, and Colonel Booker
was prepared to carry out the proposal if properly authorized. -

Knowing Coloncl Peacocke’s anxiety to combine his forces with the Volunteers,
before attacking the enemy, I could not in his name "authorize the movement, nor did I
think it prudent, as from the accounts we had received it appeared probable that the
enemy’s forces would be doubled during the night.

Having ascertained, however, that the railway bridge at Ridgeway, partially burnt in
the morning, had been repaired, and that the line to Erie was opened, I arranged a
somewhat different plan of attack, subject of course to Colonel Peacocke’s approval.

The plan was as follows :—Colonel Booker to proceed by rail to Erie with the
quarter part of his foice, to arrive at Fort Erie at 8 A.m. Colonel Dennis and myself to
go round the coast in a steam-tug, taking a company of Volunteer Artillery, to
reconnoitre the shore between Fort Erie and Black Creek, and to return to Fort Erie
in time to meet Colonel Booker at 8§ Should Colonel Peacocke approve of this, he
would march by the river round from Chippawa and make a combined~attack with
Colonel Booker at some point between Fort Erie and Black Creek, cutting off the
enemy’s retreat by the river. The tug to be employed cruizing up and down the river,
cutling off any boats that might attempt to escape, and communicating between the
forces advancing from Chippawa and from Erie. I communicated this proposed change
to Colonel Peacocke both by letter and telegraph, omitting however, I think, to mention
the use proposed to be made of the tug.

Inclo. 11 in No. 6.

Inclo. 12 in No. 6.
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The plan was merely a modification of that proposed by Colonel Dennis, who wished
to move at once with the Volunteers without arranging a junction with Colonel Peacocke.

" Before receiving any.answer from Colonel Peacocke, I went off in the tug with .
Colonel Dennis, and the company of Artillery, leaving word with Colonel Booker to take
care and obtain Colonel Peacocke’s ‘approval to the proposed change before acting on it,
and explaining the plan previously determined on in case of Colopel Peacocke should
desire him to adhere toit.. = - . ‘ ' ‘

We arrived at Fort Erie about 5 .M. Steamed along those, and past Frenchman’s
. Creek, where we saw the enemy’s camp apparently deserted. After carefully examining
the shore from Erie to Black Creek, and seeing no sign of any armed force, we went
. ashore at Black Creek, and were informed that the enemy had broken'up their camp
during the night. , ' al — '

A party was seen by the inhabitants moving along the river-in the directjon of -

Chippawa, and the remainder {o have turned inland at Black Creek. PR

As far as I could make out from the size and appearance of their camp, and from
* the reports of the people, their combined force could not have exceeded 700 or 800 men.
.1 then returned with Colonel Dennis by water to Fort-Erie as appointed with
- Colonel Booker. 'That officer not having arrived, T hecame aware that Colonel Peacocke
-had acted on his original plan, but from the information I had gained was of opinion
that he would not have more than 400 or 500 men to contend with. Colonel Dennis
then landed the company of artillery, and I proceeded with it patrolling the road and
heights between Fort Erie and Black Creck. Between thirty and forty prisoners weére
. taken. by the company .or handed over by civilians and put on board the tug. at
Black Creek. N s

Seeing nothing more-to be done at Fort Erie, I drove up to the railway station on

. the line to Colborne to ascertain whether telegraphic communication had been opened,
and obtain what information I could. ' ‘ :
, This station is about half a mile from Erie and to the westward of the high road
. from Colborne, I had hardly entered the station when I heard a cry that troops were
coming down the hill between myself and the town. I jumped into my conveyance and
turned towards Erie to give the alarm to the company of Volunteers left there. Finding
the approach to Erie cut off, and the enemy’s skirmishers stealing round to surround me,
I turned round and drove to the shore in the direction of Colborne, near Ridgeway
I turned up towards the high road and passing the railway bridge found it on fire; I
stopped and got some buckets from a neighbouring farm, and with the assistance of the
driver managed to put out the fire. I then went on to the Garrison Road where I heard
an account of the engagement with Colonel Booker’s force, and of its retreat, to Colborne.
I found two, wounded men at-a roadside house, one of them I took into Colborne, the
other was too badly hurt to move. ,

I artived at Colborne between G and 7 in the evening. The force had been increased

since the’ previous day, and now consisted of the Tth, with four companies of the 22nd
Oxford, and the Dunnville company attached, two companies of Home Guard, the Cale-
donian company, and the Queen’s Own, and 13th, in all about 1,400 men. The gairison
- was in the greatest state of confusion, and ‘the, troops:that had been engaged in the
morning considerably exhausted from want of rest and food. Many of the men had no
ammunition, others but a few rounds. . A comparatively small proportion had their
pouches full, and there.was no reserve to replenish them. No arrangements had.been
made for obtaining.either provisions or ammunition, for securing the post from attack;:or
or further offensive operations, : ' :

I rendered what assistance I could to Colonel Booker, who appeared quite overcome
with fatigue and anxiety. He begged me to undertake all necessary arrangements, and
later in the evening requested me to take the command out of his hands. Finding .this
was also the wish of the other Volunteer officers of superior rank to myself, I telegraphed
for instructions, and was desired by Colonel Lowry to take the command. I posted a
line of outlying pickets at a radius of one mile from the town, extending from ‘the shore
to the Welland Canal, with strong supports in rear, and ordcred the remainder of the

* troops to lie down and get what rest they could. I telegraphed in various directions for
food and ammunition, and by 2 a.m. Sunday the 3rd had an ample supply of both. -

. About 1 o’clock the alarm was sounded, and officers and civilians rushed up inform-

ing me that the’ enemy was ‘marching on us in force, and within 500 yards west of .the
town, where I had placed no pickets. L ' . ‘

- The.alarm was entirely without foundation, but had the effect of depriving the

troops of the few hours rest they might have had. All thiough the night reportswere
coming in of larges forces -being landed on the shore between'Colborne-and Erie, also -

T
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entirely without foundation. I sent the tug-boat, however, still kept at.our service by its
‘owner Mr. Mec Collum, to watch the shore between Colborne and Erie, and called on some of

the civilians to act as scouts, and Leep me informed: of auy movements in the nelghbour- '

hood.
Réveille was sounded at 3, and I 1mmed1ately made what arrangements I could for
serving out rations and ammunition. Owing to the want of all brwade or regimental
staff or organization, and the utter want of dlsc1p11ne that prevailed among the men, it
" was a lonw time before I could accomplish this, and get the men under arms and ready to
fnove. The men having no haversacks could carry scarcely any food with them. I filled
their pouches and-their- pocLets with ammunition, and.got them under arms and.in the
~~¢ars by 5 o'clock; sending a pilot-engine in front, ‘T moved by rail towards Erie, taking the
whole of the tloops e\ccpt the 13th, whom I left to guard Fort Colborne. Hearlnw that
- the enemy were postéd near Rldfre“ay, and finding a favourable position for tormm«r up
the troops (at B In sketch) on a road known ‘as Skirk’s Crossing, I disembarked the men,
threw out a line of skirniishérs with four supports from the Tth, with orders for the flank

supports to wheel outwards and extend at once, in case of any sign of a flank attack..

In this order, and with a strong rear guard, I advanced from B to the Garrison-road,

and .from thence towards Fort Erie. O coniing to the sccne of the previous days

engagement at C, I ascertained that the enemy had attempted to cross the river during
the nwht and that Erie was in possession of our troops.

‘ After shalting the men for about an hour at this spot, I marched them quietly in to

Erie, where I reported myself t/Colonel Lowry On the following mornmg I was'

relieved from my command. .
’ T have, &e."
The Commander of Royal Engineérs" : (Swned), CHAS. 8. AKERS,
in Canada. - Captain, R.E.

-

\

Inélosure 13 in’ No. 6.
Colonel LOWRY to the Major of Brwade

Sz, ' -\ Fort Eiie, Canada West, June 4, 1866 6 P.M.
IN accordance with your orders I left Toronto per train at 2 .. on the 2nd instant
with four field guns, &c., under command)\ of Captain Crowe, R.A., and ‘accompanied by
Colonel Wolseley, A.QMG., by Lieutenant Turner, R.E., by Lieutenant Dent, 47th,
and by Colonel Cumberland, Provincial A.D.C. to the Governox—Genera;l and Manaamg
Director of the Great Western Railway, xwho bad kindly placed his services at my
disposal. There were also two gentlemen} Mr, Clarke and Mr. Kingsmill, possessing

considerable. knowlédge of the country through which we were to pass, attached to me-

" by order of the MaJor—Geueral and Mr. Hunteér, telegraphic operator.

On. arrival at Oakville, I was joined.byits company of Rifle Volunteers, ﬁfty-two
rank and file, under Captain Chisholm. .

On arrival at Hamilton, I requiring mformattwn telegraphed to officer commanding
at Port Colborne asking to know the state of affairs there and requesting. an answer. to
St. Catherine’s,

At the Hamilton Station I learned that the detachment of the 60th Royal Rifles
and 1/16 Regiments which had been at first. ordered to join me there, had already
procecded by railway to re-inforce Colonel Peacocke; who, the Superintendent of the.
Great Western Railway said, had twice telegraphed for reinforcements,

Under these cn'cumstances, and finding at St. Catherine’s' no answer from Port
Colborne, and that difficulty and delay would be occasioned in getting the train from the

Great Western' Railway to the, liné of the Welland Railroad, I determined  to proceed’

to Clifton, and thence to- the support of Colonel Peacocke en route to Fort Erie.

« I arrived at Clifton. about 8 p.M., and was there a-few hours. after joined by Colonel
Stephens with a Volunteer force to the number -of §50}.which had been dispatched by
‘steamer from Toronto to Port Dalhousie to. meet me at St. Catherines,

At Clifton L'received: pressing telegrams urging me to proceed to'assume command

Inclo. 13 in No, 6.

at. Port Colborne; whence [ also teceived m:gent requests for rations and a.mmnmtmn', :

reported exhansted.

Believing. early, arrival at. Foit. Eie. to be most important, I dispatched . all the-

rations and ammunition I could spare. to:Poxt. Colborne..

I telegra,phe& to Colonel Peacocke to send Lieutenant-Colonel Villiers, if possxble .
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across the co{mtry to Port Colborne to command the Volunteers at that place, but soon
finding that impossible, telegraphed to Captain Akers, R.E., to assume that duty, adding

‘that I did not anticipate pressure at that pointr

Having waited for the Erie Railway line to be clear of qbstructions, I proceeded at
340 A 3rd instant, to Black Creek, at which place I had telegraphed to officers com-
manding detachments of 60th Rifles and 15t battalion of 16th Regiment, if not in
communication with Colonel Peacocke, to meet me at daybreak. -

After some delay I was joimed by 200 rank and file of the. 60th, under Captain
Travers, and by 140 rank and file of the 1st battalion 16th Reginient, under Captain
Hogge. ,
DbAs the rajlway line had not been previously open for transport, I awaited its exami-
nation by Major the Honourable J. H. Cameron, who bad joined me at midnight at
Clifton from some point in advance, and who procceded with a locomotive engine for
that purpose. On Major Cameron’s report that the road was passable, I proceeded to a
point about three miles north of Fort Erie, called Frenchman’s Creek, said to be the
nearest point to where the Fenians were reported skirmishing, and fast escaping across
the river. ; '

Here unloading the force from the railway cars, I advanced with some Volunteer
companies, the detachments of the 1st battalion 16th Regimentand 60th Royal Rifles towards
the Niagara River, throwing out an advanced guard and a few skirmishers in the woods
on either flank. Assoon as two ficld-guns could be got out, they were pressed to the
front, but on opening on the river Colonel Wolseley, who had passed on horseback to the
front, found we werc too late, and that Fenian prisoners to the number apparently of
some 500 or 700, were in a large barge made fast astern of the United States’ war
steamer “ Michigan,” lying in the centre of the stream.

» I reached Fort Erie at about 815 a.m., and found that the whole village had been
abandoned. , ) p

Soon afterwards I was joined by the force under Colonel Peacocke, who had come
up through the woods to the right, bringing in some prisoners. :

The whole force was now hwrriedly placed in position on.the rising ground at. the

- rear of the long village of Erie, and shortly afterwards a small steamer having been sent

from the United States’ ship “Michigan” with a proposal that I should commnnicate
with its Commander and Her Britannic Majesty’s Consul then with him, accompanied by
Colonel Wolseley, Captain Crowe, R.A., and Lieutenant Turner, R.E, I proceeded on
board, and had an interview with Captain Bryson, United States’ Navy, M. Dant, United
States’ District Attorney, and Mr. H. W. Hemans, Her Majesty’s Consul at Buffalo,
and subsequently with General Barry, cowuuidinu, United States’ troops in the Erie
and Ontario districts of the State of New York.

These officers, in expressing their reprehension of ‘the infraction of international
law, said that nothing in their power had been or would be neglected to arrest such infrac-
tion ; that such were their orders; and that they had prevented many reinforcements
from getting across to the British territory on the two previous nights. .

In the course of the afternoon Captain Akers, R.E., with a; Volunteer force of
about 1,000 men, arrived from Port Colborne, making the number of my command
about 3,000 of all arms.

In compliance with telegraphic orders I despatched to Kingston at 7 p.m. the troops
.as per margin,* sending twenty-two Fenian prisoners by the same train under escort of
the 47th Regiment. . .

Further telegraphic orders directed me to send forward to London without dela
the detachment of the GOth Royal Rifles, the London Companies of the 1st battaliori
16th Regiment, and the London Volunteers. |

In consequence of the difficulty of procuring the necessary railway transport, that
‘order could not be carried out till 10°30 to-day, when about 800 men were forwarded by
Great Western Railway via Clifton to Hamilton.

Any delhys in transport of troops, so far as relates to the service of the Great
Western Railway have arisen chiefly from the fact that on the Erie and Ontario Railway
(being but a single line of track, &c., with sidings still incomplete), there were no means
of shunting or of passing trains; whilst that part of the line approaching Fort Erie is’
still in a very unfinished and unserviceable state. It was impossible, therefore, even with
the most prompt assistance afforded by Mr. Swynyard, the manager, and all the subordi-
nate officials of the Great Western Railway, to secure the desired rapidity of movement.

From the Grand Trunk Railway I -have .received no communication or practical
assistance, and have as yet been unable to find any person in local authority. '

* Captain Crowe's Field Battery, 4 guns, and 200 men of the 47th Regiment, under Major Lodder.
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The weather durmg the last few days has been unmterruptedly fine.
The force at present encamped here is a little over 2,000 men, and considering the
nature of the emergency, and of the place itself, the troops are pretty well supplied:
I telegraphed to Colonel Denuis (with 450 men) to balt at Suspension Bridge.

One company of Volunteers is at Chippawa, and more than 250 men are at Port
Colborne, under Major Skinner.

In concluding my report of the last forty-eight hours, a report Whl(‘ll should, but for

the nature of the duties and the pressure of telegraphic commumca,tlon, have ‘been
submitted before, I have the honour to state the following :—

That I have received greater benefit than I can w ell express from Colonel Wolseley’s

indefatigable energy, Judament and promptitude of resource.
That Lieutenant Turner, R.E., has proved the greatest assistance to me nwht and
day, working with a thorough spnlt and most wise forethouwht :

That Colonel Cumberland, Aide-de-camp, has spared no trouble. or exertions to give

me’ information, and to render valuable assistance in every way, in matters connected
with railway transit; his knowledge has proved specially useful.

The untiring nature of the cxertions made by the Honourable J. Hillyard Cameron, .

M:.P.P., also deserves cordial acknowledgment.

Officers and -men, whether of the Regulars or Volunteer service, dld all in their
power to reach and re-occupy Fort Erie at the earliest moment, and to arrest the flight
Wthh bad been almost completed before our arrival.

All appears quiet at present on this frontier.

I find that I have forgotten to state that General Barry, Umted States’ army,

offered to furnish me with the- earliest notice of any intended movement of 1mporta,nce
which might come to his knowledge among Fenians in the States.

Captam Bryson, Commander of the United States’ war-steamer “Mlcluo'an apprised
e that he had telegraphed to Washington for instructions as to the dxsposal of his 700

risoners.

¥ replied that that was a matter for settlement by our respective Governments.
(Signed) R. W. LOWRY, Colonel,

' '. - Commanding Field Force on Niagara Frontier.
The Major of Brigade. : '

. Inclosare 14 in No. 6. .
Lieutenant-General Sir J. MicHEL to the SECRETARY OF STATE FOrR WAR.

MY Lorp, Montreal June 11, 1866.

I HAVE the hynour to report that by the latest accounts, bodies of Fenians are
stlll assembled at\ lone and at Buffalo, but watched by United States’ officers and
" troops.

Inclo. 14 in Ne. 6.

No further landlhg has, however, taken place in Canada. West, and there has been :

no attempt on the line of the St. Lawrence.
] A body of Fenians hammr crossed the border at St. Allan s, into MlSSlsqu01 county,
C.E. 1 ordered Colonel Ebrmcrton commanding at St. John’s, to drive it out and to post
his troops so as to prevent its ref,um

I have not received the report of his movements, but he has mformed me that, as
far as he can learn, there are now no Fenians in his front between St. Armand and
Frelighsburg, at which points, and at Pigeon Hill he has posted troops.

. Sixteen-(16) prlsoners have been sent into Montreal and handed over to the le "

ower.
i Colonel Ebrington further reports that ‘he has no information of the number of
' Fepians in his fr ont on the United States side of the frontier, and that a party. of
. Volunteer Cavalry returned from a patrol at 1.30 pM. yesterday, and reported the
country all clear. i
In reference to the whole subject, I may remark that the Umted States Govemment
is. now acting all along the frontier most decisively, by the seizure of vast quantities of
arms, by arresting leaders, by transporting. to their homes bodies of Fenians, and by

. preventing trains laden mtﬁ Fenians arriving at their destinations.
' This, combined with the appearance -of the prisoners taken, and their only half- _ -

-armed condition; makes e sbelieve that in a few days the dano'er of even sma]l raids
wﬂl have passed away
A ' I ha.ve &e.
(Signed) J MICHEL Lleutenant-General
. . The Secretary of State-for War.

[82] g A | E
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Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor-G cneral the Rlo‘ht Hon. Vlscount MONCK to the :

Rmht Hon. EpwarD CARDWDLL, M.P.

v , “ . Government House, Ottawa June 14, 1866.

(No. 54.) ‘ L ‘ (Recelved June 27, 1866.)
- SIR, ’ (Answered, No. 68, June 29, 1866, page 78.)

I HAVE the Lonour to transmit, f01 Jyour ipformation, copies in paraphrase of a

telegram in cypher received by me from Sir F. Bruce on the 12(% inst tant, and of my
angwer 1o him; also copy of a tclegram which I dispatched uo Sn‘ John Michel imme-
diately on the receipt of Sir F. ‘Bruce’s message.

With -reference to the portion of Mr. Seward’s note to Sn 7. Bruce, which alleges
that Britisk troops cntered un\\anantmbly on the soil of the United Stateq T have the

honour to, transimit copies of reports fronr the officers whose names are noted in the :

margin,* which negative, as far as these officers. are concerned, the reports made on this
subject t6 ’\Iq;or-GenemI Meade. .
You will obsggve from Lleutcmnt-Colonel ‘Earle’s lc,ttm that further reports have

" been called for; and when I receive them I shall not fail to transmit copies to you.

Inclo. 1 in No. 7.

Ii:olt;. 2 in No. 7..

I h‘ne already %\ent copies of thebe reports to Sir Flo'leuck Bruce.
. I have, &e.
The Right Hon. Edw: 2 Cardwell, M.P., A " (Signed) -~ MONCK.
&e. . & . &e. ;

e \ Inclosure 1 in No (P

"T\ﬁ

‘PARAPHRASE Of a Telcvlaghlc Message in cypher received from Sir I‘ Bruce at

g o’clock AM., June 12, 1866.

I HAVE rece1ved a Iétter from Mr. Seward couched in the following terms

«T am dirccted by the President to inform you that, according to statements which
have been made to the General commanding the United States’ tloops on the frontier,
the United States’ territory has been entered by British soldiers in pursuit of the Fenians
under Spear; that prisoners were captured in the State of Vermont, and that thireats

_.have been made by persons in the British service that the fugitives so taken, as well as.

" "Fenians made prisoners in Canada, would be summarily put to death without any* forms
of law. Thougli it is probable’ "that these reports may not prove to be, accurately true,
the Gov ernment of the United States will be much disturbed if medsures of needless

rigour, not justified by existing laws, are taken- agajnst Fenian criminals; and the -

President desires me to say that he ‘earnestly trusts that such persons will only be

proceeded against in due course of law, and he even hopes that they will be treated with

signal . moderation. 'Thé United States’ Government believe that the United States and
Congress will agree completely with the sentiments which I have expressed.”
I shall be’ much obliged to you if you will allow no proceedmgb to be taken against

the Fenian pmoners until you hear fromi’ me . % :
. & (Signed) F. BRUCE.
. < g "'\h N t ‘

T

Inclosure 2 in No. 7.
. PARAPHRASE of Answer

IF British troops have violated the terr‘itory of the United States, they have done
so against strict orders, and 1 much regret.it. Any prisoners proved to be taken: by
them on the territory of the Republic shall be liberated at once.

The civil power. holds all persons captured up to this time, and the wishes of the

United States’ Government. cannot be permitted to mterfele ‘with the administration of .
. Justice m this Province.
That Government is. ent1t1ed to my. thauks wlnch [ beg sou will convey to them for .

vigorously and faithfully putting their laws i in’ force against the Fenians after the invasion
.of Canada had actually taken place.

# Captain- Bunburvy lst Battalion Rifle Bcigade; Lieutenant Mouey, R. C. Rifles.- '
\ )

¥

{

*
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. Inclosure 8 in No. 7.

p TerueraM to Lieutenant-General Sir J. Micrer.

IT is reported to me from Washington that some of our troops have entered the
territory of the United States at the quarter where Spear commanded the Fenians, and
taken prisoners there. Please have this inquired into, and let me know the result. The
disturbances are officially reported at an end by the authorities of the United States. I
think the troops may be withdrawn to points well on our side of the border.

. (Signed) MONCK.

Inclosure 4 in No. 7.
Licutenant Moxry 1o Major-General LiNpsay.

Sir, Montreal, June 12, 1866.

I HAVE the honour to report, for the infermation of the Licutenant-General
commanding the forces in Canada, that, on Saturday the 9th June last, 1 accompanied
the troop of mounted Guides, under command of Captain McDougall, which passed down
, the road leading irom St. Armand Cenire (or Cook’s Corner) to the lines. We were
fired at by a party ol Fenians when about 300 yards from the lines; the men who fired
at us immediately {1 rowing their arms away and running down the rvad to the point
where the United B.ates’ troops, under command of Licutenant-Coldncl Livingsione,
were drawn up in line. so as completely to block the road. '

We could caily have shot every one of these men down before they reached the
lines, but cur shois, hedl we fired, must have passed on and struck the United States’
troops, who were Jncedy sa our fronts we were only able, thercfore, to overtake one
man cof the whole pardy 5 this man was faken fully fifty yards from the place where
Colonel Livingstoue's men ware slationed.

I had Lad” the pleasuse of mecting Colonel Livingstone before, T thorefore vode up
and shook hends with hiza; vwhist talling to him I saw thal a pariy of the Ritle inigade
were advancing alon: a snwil bye-road, which would bring them in rear of the United
States’ troops. T eall i Colonal Livingstone’s atiention {o ihis fact andthen galloped on,
by his permission to step them. Theyhad uet then erossed the hne.  fnding that they
had orders to go rxmed by this read, I requested the oflicer commanding to halv his men
until [ could ohizin periisvon from Colonel Livingstone for them 1o pass: this he at
once and most readily accorded, ordering his mea to fall,back to either side of the road,
80 as to leave a free passagce tor our men. )

I introduced Cuaptain Banbury, who was commanding the sub-division of the Rifle
Brigade which was then passing to our own side of the lines, to Licutenant-Colonel Living-
stone ; afier doing tins, and speaking to Colonel Livingstone for a few moments, I rode
after our men, who were than entering the bush on our side of the lines in skirmishing

order. .
~ Ihave, &ec.
(Signed) ALBERT W. MONEY, Licutenant,
The Major-General Commanding - Royal Canadian Rifles.

2nd Military District, Montreal.
Licutenant Moncy posttively asserts no yrisoners, to his knowledge were captured in
United States’ terrilory..
. (Signed) JAS. LINDSAY, Major-General.

5\
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X Inclosure 5 in No. 7.
Qr?

Captain Boxsory to the Major-General Commanding the 2nd Military District,
Canada East.
SIR, Montreal, June 12, 1866.

I HAVE the honour to.report, for the information of the Licutenanti-General
commanding, that on the 9th"June, 1866, I was ordéred by Major Niron, Rifle Brigade,
commarding foree detailed to attack Fenian encampment, to proceed with the Royal
Guides and a . sub-division of the 4th Battalion Rifle Brigade, to cover the right of the
line-proceeding frour the United States’ fronticr towards Cook’s Corner. There being a

X - E 2
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deep brook immediately in my front, Lieutenant Money, Royal Canadian Rifles, who was
with me, rode forward and asked Colonel Livingstone, commanding United States’ troops
along that part of the frontier, to allow my detachment to cross over the bridge, by doing
which we were supposed to pass through the United States’ territory. °Colonel Living- |
stone having given leave, I rode forward to see him, so as to be perfectly certain; he
said I was at perfect liberty to pass; indeed, he said he was not certain it was United
States’ territory. After this I thought I was justified in crossing. '
On Sunday, the 10th instant, I heard that a St. Albans’ newspaper had stated that a
regiment of British regulars had violated the United States’ territory. I went to Colonel
Livingstone that same day and told him. He-said he would write to General Meade,
commanding United States’ troops on the frontier, to inform him that it was with his
permission that a detachment had crossed. ~
The detachment that crossed is as per margin.*

I have, &ec.
‘ (Signed) C. J. BUNBURY,
To the Major-General Commanding 1st Battalion Rifle Brigade.

v 2nd Military District, Canada East.
‘Captain Bunbury states that no prisoners were taken in United States’ territory by
the party with whom he acted.
(Signed) JAS. LINDSAY, Major-General.

3 ) . No. 8.

-. Copy of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon, Viscount Monck to the
Right Hon. Epwarp Carpwerr, M.P.

Government House, Ottawa, June 14, 1866.
(No. 55.) , (Received July 2, 1866.)
SIR, ;o (Answered, No. 7, July 11, 1866, page 79.)
I HAVE had the satisfaction, in other communications, to report to you the
excellent spirit evinced by the resident population of Canada in connection with the late
Fenian attack on the Province. - )

There has been in addition an exhibition of patriotism and devotion on the part of
Canadians who happened to be domiciled, at the time of the disturbance, outside of the
Province, which deserves, I think, special mention and praise.

Immediately after the news of the invasion of) the Province reached Chicago, sixty
young Canadians, who were resident there engaged in various employments, gave up
their situations and repaired by railroad to Canada, to give their aid in defending the

land of their birth.
These young men have been formed into a Volunteer company, and are now doing
duty at Toronto. .

Ibad also a communication from Her Majesty’s Consul “at New York, to the effect
that a large number of Canadians, resident there, were prepared to abandon their occupa-
tions and come to assist in the repulse of the invaders of Canada, if I considered their
services necessary.

I informed Mr. Archibald, by telegraph, that T did not require their aid, but begged
him to express to them my gratitude for this exhibition of their loyalty.

Such conduct speaks for itself, and I would not weaken the effect of the bare relation

- of the facts by any attempt at eulogy on my part.
I have, &ec.
The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell, M.P., (Signed) MONCK.
&e. &e. &e.

1
- El

* Captain Bunbury, 1st Battalion Rifle Brigade ; Lieutenant Smith, 4th Baitalion, ditto; Lieutenant Money,
Royal Canadian Rifles; about 12 men of 4th Battalion Rifle Brigade; 2 Royal Guides. Total, 17.
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Copy of & DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck to the
Right Hon. Epwarp CarpwrLr, M.P.

(No. 59.) Government House, Ottawa, June 18, 1866.

. Sig, . (Received July 2, 1866.) ‘

) I HAVE the honour to transmit for your information, copies of letters which have
passed between myself and Mr. Potter, Consul-General of the United States at Montreal,
respecting the case of a person named Kelly, representing himself as a correspondent of
- the “ New York Tribune,” who was captured by our troops during the late Fenian raid, in
the neighbourhood of Philipsburg, Canada East. I have also the honour to inform you
that Kelly has heen released from custody, his story having on investigation, proved to

be true.
T ' I have,, &ec.
The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell, M.P., (Signed) MONCK. ‘
&e. &e. - &e.

Inclosure 1 in No. 9. taclo. 1 in No. 9.
Viscount Monck to Sir F. BRucE. - .
Sir, Ottawa, June 16, 1866. :
I HAVE the honour tp transmit for your information, copies of two letters* which :
I have received from Mr. Potter, Consul-General of the United States in this Province,
together with copies of the answers which I directed to be sent to him relative to the case
of one Joseph Kelly, who was taken prisoner in company with a number of Fenians near

Philipsburg, in Canada East, some days ago. r ‘
. - I have, &ec.
His Excellency the Hon. Sir F. Bruce, G.C.B., (Signed) MONCK.
, &e. &e. &e. ’

P.S.—The following telegram was also sent to Mr. Potter, :—
« June 14th.
“ Colonel Ermatinger has been desired to enquire into the case of Mr. Kelly.
Please lay any information you may have before him.” :

1

Inclosure 2 in No. 9. ,
Inclo. 2 ia No. 9.
Mr. PorrER to Viscount MoNcE.
United States’ Consulate-General British North American Provinces,
. Montreal, June, 13, 1866. ’

IT is my duty to inform you, that among the prisoners brought to this city on
Monday, the 10th instant, and now lodged in the gaol here, charged with having invaded
the Province of Canada with hiostile designs, is Mr. Joseph Kelly, a citizen of the United
States, who was arbitrarily arrested at a place called Hancocks Hill, near the frontier in
Canada East, by one Reynolds and two other persons, whose names are unknown, while
engaged in his lawful business,

Mr. Kelly was both previous to, and at the time of his_arrest, a reporter afid.
.correspondent for the * New York Tribune,” a newspaper printed and published in the
city of New York, in the United States. He came into Canada, not only without any
bostile designs, but in the lawful discharge of his professional duties, as a reporter of the -
press,

I received a few hours since, a despatch from John Russell Young, Esq., the
managing editor of the * Tribune,” in which I am informed of these facts, and which are
fully corroborated by other testimony in my possession.

Mr. Kelly was when taken, unarmed, and I am credibly informed that there is no
evidence in the possession of the authorities of this Government, showing the slightest
complicity on his pait, in the attempted invasion, or any other breach of the laws of this

-
[

Siz,

2

* Mr. Potter to the Governor-General, Montreal, June 13, 1866; Mr. Godley to Mr. Potter, Ottawa,
June 14, 1866; Mr. Potter to the Governor-General, Moutreal, June 15, 1866; Mr. Godley to Mr.: Potter,/‘
Ottawa, June 16, 1866.
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Province. On the other hand, Mr. Kelly is ready to prove, and show most conclusively,
the peaceful character of the business which induced him to come into the Province.

On learning of the facts in Mr. Kelly’s case, T immediately called upon the cormit-
ting Magistrate, but not finding him cither at his place of business or at his residence, I
proceeded to the gaol for the purpose of obtaining an interview with the prisoner, but
was informed by the gaoler, that strict orders had been given him to admit no ome
without a permit. Receiving such permit this morning, T had an interview with
Mr. Kelly, who made a written statement, sworn to before me, embodying the facts as
above-mentioned. He farther informed me, that he wxs not allowed the privilege of -
purchasing for his use, the necessary food which his wants require at the present time.

Under these circumstances, Mr. Kelly, as a citizen of the United States, has a right
to demand and does demand, eith%his immediate release {rom arrest or an immediate
examination, when he shall have an opportunity to prove his innocence.

I therefore request, on behalf of my Government, that his demand be complied with
without any unnecessary delay:.

I have, &ec.
(Signed) JOHN F. POTTER, ‘

United States’ Consul-General, British North American Provinces.

"His Excellency Viscount Monck,

&e. &e. &e. '

Inelosure 3 in No. 9.

e ]

- Mr. Goprey to Mr. PorTer.

SIg, Governor's Seerctary’s Office, Otfawa. Junc 14, 1366.

I AM directed by the Governor-General to acknowledse the reecipt of your letter of
the 15th instant, respecting Mr. Joseph Kelly. a eitizen of the United States, who, you
state, was arbitrarily arrested necar the fronticr while engaged tn his law ful business.

His Txcclleney has ordered inquiries to be made inte bis case, and desires me to
inform you that, il it turns out that Mr. Kelly was not guilty of ary acts of bostility, he
shall be set atl Iiberty.

His BExcellency would deeply regret should any peaceful citizen of the United States
be subjeeted 1o inconvenience or hardship; butl the po-ibitity of <uch an occurrence is
one of the inesitable incidents of an attack on Her Majosty's dom'nions by an armed
force organized upon and issuing from the territory of the United States.  If Mr, Kelly
crossed the frouticr with such a foree, and was found en Dritwh (erritory in their
company, he can scarcely have a right to complain il' primd fucie he was adjudged to
belong to them.

&

I have, &e.- ) .
John F. Potter, Esq., (Signed) DEXNIS GODLEY.
&e. &e. &e.

‘

Inclosure 4 in No. 9.
Mr. Porrer to Viscournt Moxck.

Unitéd States’ Consulate-General, Britich North American Provinces,
SR, ) Montreal, June 15, 1860.

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt on the afternoon of yesterday of
your Excellency’s telegram in reply tosmy despatch of the 15th inctant, in which you
inform me that “ Colonel Ermitinger has been desired to inguire into the case of
Mr. Kelly,” and requesting me to lay before him any information which 1+ may have,

On receiving the telegram, I immediately addressed a note to Colonel Ermatinger,
asking him to inform me at the earliest pos-ible mouwent wher and where I might have
an interview with him for the purpose mentioned.

I was informed that Mr. Schiller, the Assistant-Clerk. of the Crown, to whom the
note was delivered, and who was made acquainted with its centents, said that Colonel
Ermatinger was not in town, but would return in the course of a week. Mr. Schiller was
informed that the matter admitted of no such delay, upon which he promised that the
note should be dispatched to Colonel Ermatinger, saying that he would receive it this
morning. Ihad waited patiently until this evening, hearing nothing further cither from




s
Ms. Schillé¥’ or Colonel Ermatinger. I have now learnt, by a telegram received an hour 7. -
since from Mr. Kelly, the prisoner; that he is now in custody of the Provincial authorities
at Philipsburg, C.E.. : - C '
~ As he was in the jail here last evening, he has, of course,. been, removed by the
orders of the Canadian Government - either during the night or- this -morning. I-have
~ received no notice whatever of his removal or of ‘the intention of the authorities here of '
his removal. ' ' . ' :
. Mr. Schiller, the Assistant-Clerk of the Crown, was aware of the natire of the reply o
" which your Excellency made to my despatch. He was also aware that I had in behalf
of my Government demanded the release of Kelly as a citizen of the United States, or
an immediate examination. ‘ . ,
.. Iinformed your Excellency in my despatch-of the 13th instant that I had evidence
'of Kelly’s entire innocence. Notwithstanding this, he has ‘been removed, without any
intimation to me, to a remote place, and out of my protection; thus changing entircly
the position of the prisoner with reference to myself fromr what it was when the demand . .
‘was made. ‘ ' : T
This act of the authorities having the custody of Kelly I regard as a violation of his ,
rights as an.American cilizen, and as manifesting a contemptuous disregard of the .
demand made for Kelly by the Government of the United: States. I shall, therefore, -
refer the whole matter, with all the facts connected with-it, to the Government at
Washington, o ' , , -
. In the .meantime, unless some. satisfactory explanation shall be made without
‘unnecessary delay, of the course pursued, and anless I shall receive further instructions
from my Government to the contrary, I shall deem it my duty fo close this Consulate-
Greneral for all business exeept with American citizens who may be in Canada. ‘
- ‘ I have, &c. | C
- (Signed) JNO. F. POTTER, ‘
" " United States’ Consul-General, British North American Provinces.
His BExcellency Viscount Monck, '
&e. &e. &e, - -

Inclosure 5 in No. 9. - - , " nclo. £ in No. 9.
Mr. Goprxy to Mr. Porter.

— - Governor’s Secretary’s Office, Ottawa, June 16, 1866.

_ T°AM directed by the Governor-General to ‘acknowledge the receipt of your letter
of the 15th instant rclative to the case of Mr. Kelly. I have the honour to inform you
in reply that the .remaval -of Mr. Kelly to Philipsburg was the act of the Magistrates
charged with the investigation of the charge against him : that he was removed in common

- with the other prisonérs hecause it was found impossible to obtain the attendance of the -
necessary witnesses at Montreal. That the Attorney-General has had to-day a létter
from the Magistrate charged with the investigation to this effect :— Kelly’s case will be
investigated carefully at once. The evidence touching him appears to be conflicting. Tt -
does not seem improbable that he was acting in a double capaeity.”

S,

| - . I have, &c.. - K
John F. Potter, Esq., : (Signed) DENIS- GODLEY, Secretary.
* - United States’ Consul-General, Montreal. . , B
L 7 No.10. | . o : NQ. 10. | .

Cory of a DESPA’I.‘CH' from Go{rémor-General the Right Hon. V“lséount:Moch to the
- a Right Hon. Epwarp CarpwerL, M.P. o '

-

Na: 64) - : ' ~ Government House, Ottawa, June 21, 1866.
Sk, .- . T o * (Received July 3, 1866.) - . g
"~ I HAVE the honour to report that the bands of Fenian conspirators who were lately -
assembled on the United States’ side of the frontier line for the avowed purpose of mvad-
ing this Province have dispersed and returned to their homes. o .
' Tam'bound at the same time to state that this comparatively bloodless termination .
of an enterprize, which might have resulted in much-loss of life and destruction of property, L
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is mainly due to the energetic proceedings of the Government-of the United States, for
" the purpose of securing. on the part. of the citizens of that country a proper observance of
_their international obligations and their own municipal law. ) : '

I have alréady in more than one communication noticed with approbation the spirit
evinced by the people of this Province in the instantaneous and enthusiastic response
which they made to my call to arms. ‘ C T : :

The experience of* the last few months has satisfied me that as regards infantry, -the
local force of the.Province, together with the ordinary garrison of regular troops, assisted
by gun-boats on the river and lakes, is sufficient to protect. the country from any force :
which the. Fenians can bring to bear on us.

I mean, however, to act on the permission given to me by Her Majesty’s Government

. to retain at all events for a few months, the two. regiments which in the ordinary ceurse,

: of relief would leave the Province at this season. - ' : '
. I desire also to bring before your notice the advisability of strengthening the force -
- of Royal Artillery stationed in the Province, by threc or four additional batterics. Ao
* -This is'the arm of the service in which it is most difficult for volunteers to acquire
proficieney, and it is also that in which our Fenian e¢nemy is-entirely deficient, and the
possession of which would give us a preponderating advantage whenever we meet him.

\ " I am also of opinion that a supply of - Armstrong gnns, Loth field and of position, .
 should be sent to the Province, but on this branch of the subject and the general question
of -stores I mean to avail myself of another opportunity of addressing you when I shall
have obtained from the military authorities a return, which I have asked for, of the

amount of war material now in store in the Province. '

Without venturing to give an opinion as to the probability that the Fenian invasion
will be renewed, it would be unwise to disregard the continued allegations of the leaders
of the movement that such will be the case, and it becomes those who are responsible for
the safety- of the Province to make their arrangements accordingly.

RN

, Co I haw;e, &e.
. The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell, M.P., S (Signed) MONCK.
&e. &e. &e. .

No, 11 o o .. No1L

Copy of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Movck. to the
. Right Hon. Epwarp CarpweLL, M.E.

(No. 65.) 4 . Government House, Ottawa, June 21, 1866.
Srr, . " (Received July 3, 1866.)
: I HAVE the honour to inclose herewith a copy of a despatch from Lieutenant-
General Sir John Michel, to the Secretary of State for War, a copy of which the General
transmitted to me. : o
v o _ . I have, &ec.

The Right Hon. Edward Cardwell, M.P., . - . (Signed): MONCK.

- & &e. &e.

Taclo. in No. 11 - . Inclosure in No. 11.
. Lieutenant-General Sir J. MicHEL to the SECRETARY 0¥ STATE FOR War.
. My Lozp, o " . Montreal, June 15, 1866, .

. REFERRING to my despatch of the 11th instant, I have the honour to state that
Colonel Ebrington’s force’ was advanced from St. John's to St. Armand on_ the 9th

. .1nstant. ) o ‘ ; , ,

o A detachment of 30 Volunteer Cavalry, two field-guns of the Royal Artillery, 350

%+ Regulars, and. 100 Volunteers, under Major I‘I}'xm, Rifle Brigade, was immediately sent

"’y . - - toPigeon Hill, where the Fenians had been‘encamped, to Cook’s Corner and Frelighs-

T burg. - - : " ) ' o .

oo " - 'The.roads "and country.towards the frontier were then examined, and sixteen
strag%lers picked up. : , n L

: n artiving at the line a body of United States’ troops was found drawn up across

the road. The. officer in command of them stated that 1,500 Fenians had re-crossed the
hovder during the day. -~ - B . : S

He
N
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1 have nothmor further to report.” -
. The Volunteers and ‘Regulars remain at present in their advanced position. They
* .will be withdrawn when.his Dxcellency the Governor-General shall state that the pohtlcal
aspect of affairs no longer requires their presence on the frontier.
: I have, &c. £
(Signed) J. MICHEL, Lleutemmt-Genoral
- - e Commanding in British North Anienca
. The Secretary of State for War, . P -

No 12 : s No. 12.
[ )
COPY of 2 DESPATCH from GOVCI nor- General thre Right Hon: Vlscount Moxck to the
Rwht Hon. EpwARrD CA,RD,wnLL, M.P. ,

(No 70. ) - ‘ - Governme:ﬂ; House, Ottawa June "8 1866.
SIB e (Received July 10, 1866.) ‘

REFERRING to my despatch No. 54* of the 14th instant, I have the honour to  * Page 24
transmit a copy of a letter from Licutenant-Colonel Eatle, mclosmo* Reports from the ‘
military.officers named in the margin,f in regard to their proceedmcrs on. the frontler on' -, -

the 9th. and 10th mstant .
1 have &e.

The Right Fon. Edward Cardwell, MP, © (Siened) MONCK,
: : &c: - &e. . &e. .

Inclosure 1 in No. 12. . . . Tnelo. 1in No. 12.- -

Pe-

Lieqtenant;Col'onel EARLE to the MILITARY SECRETARY.

' Mlht'lry Secreiary’s Oﬁice, Montreal, June 20, 1866.-
" REFERRING to my letter of the 12th instant, I am directed to mclose further - S
explanations contained’ in communications from Mamr Nixon, of the Rifle: Brigade, =~ . -
Captain Hallowes, 25th Regiment, and Captain McDougall, commanding ‘the Royal
Guldes irregard to their proceedings at St Armand on the 9th and 10th instant.
. T have, &e.

; -(Signed) .~ WM. LARLE M S..
Lieutenant-Colonel the Hon. R. Monck, . '
Military Secretary, Ottawa. -

. Inclosure 2 in No, 12. - N - Inclo. 2.in No. 12.

Major Nrxox to Colonel EBRINGTON.

Siz, - ' : St Armand June 13, 1866
I‘I reply to your letter from ihe Acting anade MaJor at Montreal of the 12th
' instant, demanding information respecting the crossing of the frontier into the United o
States. by some of the troops under my command on the 9th instant, I have the honour _ AT
to state that, when I reached the road running eastwards from the road leading to ~~ e
Franklin from Pigeon’s Hill to that from Eccless Corner to Cook’s Corner, and which
" enters the United States about 100 yards to the westwards of Eccless Corner, I proceeded
" along it with my skirmishers ‘to a spot about 50 yards on the Canadian side of where it
crosses the lines; wheré I halted, and requested, through Lieutenant Money, R.C.R.,
perrm3s1on from the officer commandmo' the United States’ troops at Eccless Comer,

+ Lieutenant-Colonel Earle to Colonel’ Monck, June 20, 1866; Major Nxxon ; Captam Hallowes ; Captam
- Me Dougall.” _ ' ) .
. [82) S - o T : F
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(sometimes called Rullick’s Settlement) to march some troops by the road crossing.the
lines to its junction with the road leading to Cook’s Corner, a distance of about 150
yards altogether from its entry to its exit from the American frontier, and passing at:the
furthest point not deeper than G0 yards into the States. This request was immediately
granted by Colonel Livingstone, on which I sent one sub-division of %e 4th Battalion
Rifle Brigade (thirteen files), under Lieutenant Smith, two troopers of the Royal Guides,
who had been acting as orderlies, Captain Bunbury, of the 1st Battalion Rifle Brigade,
and my horse, as I had to-dismount to go through the bush.

Lieutenant Smith’s sub-division : was ren*ularly marched in fours, and called to’
¢ Attention,” with shouldered arms, when passing the United States’ troops.

I requested this permission to cross the frontier as there was a stream to my front—
north—running between high rocks, and which could not possibly be crossed by the
Royal Guides above- mentloned my own nor Captain Bunbury’s horses, and by Infantry
only at one spot, without makmo a long détour, on a small beam part of the framework
of-a ruined mill, and would have caused great delay to Licutenant Smith’s sub-division,
which I was anxious to send as quickly as possible to join the Royal Guides under
Captain McDougall, who was about to return to Cook’s Corner. I then advanced north-
wards through the woods, the American frontier behind us. ‘

No shots were fired by our troops until we were at least a quarter of a mile from the
lines, and facing from there, nor were any prisoners taken near the border, except one by
the Royal Guides when advancing to Eccless Corner, where they were fired on by two .
Fenians, one of whom they made a prisoner on the Canadian side of the lines ; the other
escaped by crossing the border, over which he was not pursued.

Not a single soldicr crossed the frontier except those I have already mentioned as.
having done so by permission of Colonel Livingstone, United States’ Army, as I was most
careful in keeping the men well on our side-of ‘the lines, which I was able to do, as a
farmer named Lowel, who is thoroughly acquainted with the country, and knew the
frontier-line well, and who had two days previously been into the Fenian camp, accom-
panied me as (rmde ;

" 1 have, &ec.
(Signed) "H. J. NIXON, Major,
4th Battalion P. C. O. Rifle Brigade.
Colonel Ebrington, Rifle Brigade, -
Commanding St. Armand, Canada East,

Inclosure 3 in No. 12.
Captain Harrowes to Colonel EBringToN. ) ;

Sz, St. Armand June 14, 1866.

IN accordance with )our orders contained in the Memorandum received this day, I
have the hon»ur to report that, after skirmishing through the woods at and about Cook’s
Corner, I collected my men and marched them throun*h a road dividing the bush until I
reached the open ground, where, finding myself close to the lines, I sent an officer in
advance to the American fruard and obtained permission to march my party through and
along the main road as far as the turning to the nearest direction for Pigeon Hill, “where
I expected to rejoin Major Nixon. I beo to add that I did not attack any Fenians, or
take any prisoners, on the American side of the frontier line.

I have, &c.
(Sizned) G. S. HALLOWES, Captain,
25th King’s Own Borderers, Oommandmfr Detachment
The Officer Commanding the Troops,
$t. Armand.. 5




33‘; ‘o
“a

9

[ -

I Inclosure 4 iir No. 12. Inclo. 4 in No. 12,
i ‘ ) Captain Mc Dovcaxt to the BricapE-MaJor.
‘ (
|

Sir, ’ Camp, St. Armand, Junc 14, 1866.

.- T HAVE the honour to report that (referring to your Memorandum of this date)
no officer or non-commissioned officer of .the guides passed the boundary-line of the
United States upon Saturday last. ‘

Secondly, that I have examined Corporal Drummond, who was in command of the
prcket on Sunday, and states s follows :— L

«T advanced along the road for 200 yards (with four-men) beyond the boundary-line;,
of the exact position of which I was ignorant till, on my return to the main body of the
picket, [ was informed of it by seeing an iron post upon the road side.

«So far from baving taken a prisoner or prisoners upon the United States’ side of
thie line,* I can positively state that we did not see a living soul there.”

. I have, &ec. . -
(Signed) D. L. Mc DOUGALL, Captain,

Captain Healey, - : Commanding Koyal Guides.
Major of Brigade, .
&e. &e. &e.

No. 13. o ¢ N,Qi’;

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Riglit Hon. Viscount Moxck to the
Right Hon. the Earl of Carxarvon. .

No. 87.) . Government House, Ottawa, July 21, 18G6. . -
My Lorp, PN - (Received August 6, 1866.) “
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship’s despatch of the
'7th instant.* in reference to the Act passed on the first day of the present session of the  * Page 79.
Canadian Parliament, which extends to Lower Canada the law already in operation for
many years in Upper Canada, authorizing the trial by Militia Court-martial of persons,
whether foreigners or subjects of Her Majesty, who may be found within this Province in
arms against the Queen’s forces.
In the, opinion which your Lordship expresses that recourse should not be
had to any extraordinary tribunal for the trial of the Fenian prisoners now in the.
hands of the Government of this Province, I most entirely concur, and the invasion of the
. Province, which occurred in the beginning of the month of June, speedily proved so
complete a failure that it soon became apparent, both to myself and my advisers, that the
ordinary tribunals would be able to deal with the subject. -
When this Act, however, was passed, large bodies of Fenians were threatening more
than one point on the frontier, and it was considered advisable to be prepared in case of
“necessity, with legal means for bringing prisoners summarily to trial. : .
I desire to draw your Lordship’s attention ta the third clause of the Bill, which
makes this offence felony, and confers on the ordinary tribunals of the Province the power
of trying foreigners for it. A Bill is now before Parliament extending the provision to
subjects of the Queen, which I have no doubt will shortly become law. :

. I have, &c.
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, \ (Signed) MONCK.
&e. &e. &e. -
| Dept. Militia & Defence
LIBRARY,
F 2
AUG 8 1904
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- Inclo, 1 in No. 14,

tuclo. 2.in No. 14,

_at peace with Her Majesty.

o~ 84
No. 14'

"Copy of a DESPATCH from Govamor-General the Right Hon Viscount Monck to the
Right Hon. the Earl of CARNARVON. e

‘ : Government House, Ottawa, August 15, 1866.
(No. 112.) ~ (Received Aunrust 29, 1866.)

My Lorp, - (Answered, No. 53, September 13, 1866, pnge 81 )
REFERRING to the concluding paragraph of my despatch No. 87 of the 21st July,*
relative to the Act for the trial of persons engaged in lawless aggressions from foreign
countries on this Province, I have the honour to-inclose copies of two Acts passed by the.
Legislative Counc11 and Assembly, to which I have this day given the Royal Assent,
Yz —
“ An Act to amend the Act of the present Session, intituled ¢ An Act to protect the
Inhabitants of Lower Canada against lawless aggressions from subjects of foreign countries
“An Act to amend the nmety-elo'hth Chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper
Canada.” 4
' ' I have, &c.
The Right Hon, the Earl of Carnarvon, - (Signed) MONCK. .
‘ &e. - &e. &e.

‘ ) : ' Tnclosure 1 in No. 14. i

(No. 3197.)

Ax Act fo amend the Act-of the present Session, intituled “An Act to protect the
Inhabitants of Lower CanNapa against Lawless Aggressions from Subjects of
Foreign Countries at peace with Her Majesty.”

HER Majesty, by and -with the advice and consent of the Leouslatlve Councﬂ and
Assembly of Canada, enacts as follows :—

I. The third section of the Act passed in the present session of the Parhament of
this Province, and intituled “ An Act to protect the Inhabitants of Lower Canada against
Lawless Aggressions from Subjects of Foreign Countries at peace with Her Ma]esty ” ig
hereby repealed, and the following section shall be and is hereby substituted in lieu of
the said section hereby repealed, and shall be taken and read as the third section of the
said Act:—

«1II. Every subject of Her MaJesty, and every citizen or subject ‘of any forelo'n
State or cotntry, who Lias at any time heretofore offended, or may at any time hereafter
offend, against the provisions of this Act, is and shall be held to be guilty of felony, and
may, notw1thsta,ndm0' the provisions hereinbefore contained, be .prosecuted and tried
before the Court of Queen s Bench, in the exercise of its criminal jurisdiction in and for

. any district in Lower Canada, in the same manner as if the oﬁ‘ence had been commltted '

‘'such district, and upon convmtlon shall suffer death as a felon.”

Iy

]

Inclosure 2 in No. 14, .

. (No. 3198.)

‘AN Ac'r to amend the Nlnety-elghth Chapter of the Consolidated Statutes for UPPER

CANADA.

HER Majesty, by and with the advice and conszat of the Le«nslatue Councﬂ and
Assembly of Canada, enacts as follows:— - .. -
L The third section ‘of the ninety-eighth chapter of the Consolidated Statutes for
Upper Canada, mt1tuled “An Act to protect the Inhabitants of Upper Canada against

4
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Lawless Aggressions from the Subjects of Foreign Countries at peace with Her Majesty,” :
is hereby repealed, and the following section shall be and is hereby substituted in lieu of
thedsaid section hereby repealed, and shall be taken and read as the third section of the -
said Act:— - : '
' «III.-Every subject of Her Majesty, and every citizen. or' subject of any foreign
State or country, who has at any time heretofore offended, or may at any time hereafter’
offend, against the provisions of this Act, is and shall be held to be guilty of felony, and
may, notwithstanding the provisions hereinbefore contained, be prosecuted and tried
before ‘any Court of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol Delivery, in and for any
county in Upper Canada, in the same manner-as-if the offence had been committed in
such county, and upon conviction shall suffer death as a felon.”

" IIL In case any person shall be prosecuted and-tried under the provisions of the
next preceding section and found guilty, it shall and may be lawful-for “the Court before
which such trial shall have taken place, to pass sentence of death upon such person, to
take effect at such time as the Court may direct, notwithstanding the provisions of an Act
" of the Consolidated Statutes for Upper Canada, intituled “ An Act respecting new Trials
and Appeals and Writs of Error in Criminal Cases in Upper Canada.?

No. 15. ) , ) No. 15.

Cory:of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon, Viscount Monck to the

) : _ Earl of CArRNARVON., " ’ > '
(No. 154 . | _ , , " - Quebec, October 6, 1866.
- My Lognp, o ‘3’-.~ * (Received October 24, 1866.) ‘
WITH reference to your Lordship’s despatch:No, 53* of the 13th Septeniber, on the ~ * Page 81
subject of the Acts intituled respectively ‘“ An Act to'amend an Act of the present’ session ‘
intituled an Act to protect the inhabitants of Lower Canada against lawless aggressions
from subjects of foreign countries at peace with Her Majesty,” and ©“ An Act to amend the
98th chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper Canada,” recently passed by the
Provincial Parliament of Canada, I have the honour to transmit to your Lordship a copy
‘of the report made thereon, by.my direction, by the Law Officers of the Crown in this
Province. ‘ .

. o - s . I have, &ec.

The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon,” © (Signed) . MONCK. . .
: ‘& &c. &e. » : S

Inclosure in No. 15. . - . "~ Inclo. in No. 15. :
Rerorr of the Law Orricers oF Tae CrownN.. - '

THE Undersigned have had under their consideration the despatch from the Colonial |
Secretary, dated 13th September last, on the subject of two, Acts passed by the Parliament
of Canada, intituled respectively .*“ An Act to amend an Act of the present session
" intituled an Act to protect the inhabitants of Lower Canada against. lawless aggressions
from subjects of foreign countries at peace with Her Majesty,” and ““ An Act to amend the -
98th chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper Canada.” . Co

In this despatch Lord Carnarvon objects to the Acts.on the ground of their retrospec-
tive operation, and he states that under the law as it now stands a man might apparently
be punished as a felon for an act which was not a felony when it was committed. i
The Undersigned have now, in obedience to your Lordship’s.commands, the honour to
report .as follows :— : ’ T
"+ And first with regard to the Act' to amend the 98th chapter of the Consolidated
Statutes of Upper Canada. In.1838, and before the union of' the provinces, the Parlia-
ment of Upper Canada passed the teraporary Act known as 1st Vict., cap. 8. This Act
was repealed, but re-enacted with some amendmepts and made permanent by 3rd Viet.,
cap. 12. ) . . . . Lo o
d In 1859 the whole of the statutory law of Upper Canada was consolidated, and the
Act 22 Vict., cap. 98, forms a portion of .that consolidation. By the 8th section .of .the '

-
e}
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Ist chapter: of those Consolidated -Statutes it is' provided: that. ““the said. Consolidated:
Statutes shall not. be held to operate as-new laws, but shall be construed and have effect:as:
a.consolidation, and as declaratory of the law ascontained in the said Acts and part of!
Acts so repealed, and for which the said Consolidated Statutes are substituted.” So that?
the law.of Upper Canada on. this subject has been continuously in operation since the
10th. February, 1840, the date.of the passing of the Statute 3 Vict., cap. 12

The giving retrospective operation to an.enactment so long in force, can, in Lord:
Carnarvon’s language, hardly have any practical consequences.

Before the Act of last session; the law of Upper Canada provided, according to the:
terms of the Consolidated Statute above-referred to, twvo modes for the frial of parties:
invadirg Upper Canada with intent to levy war against the Queen or to commit any felony
therein.

The first was by court-martial, and was applicable to all parties, whether foreiguers or
subjects. On conviction, the penaltv of death was incurred.

The second mode was applicable to aliens only, and provided that, instcad of being*
tried by court-martial, an.alien might be tried for felony beforc any Court of Oyer and’
Terwiner.' An alien, thenefoxe, mlght be tried at the discretion of the Government ‘either~
summarily by court-martial or for felony by judge and jury. A British subject would be
tried by court-martial or for treason.

The object of the Bill of last Session was to plcae all parties, whether subjects or
aliens, on the same footing. As regards the aliens now awaiting their trial, the law is not
altered; and as regards Buitish sub_]ects, the alteration merely “enables the Crown, at its
f(‘llscretlon, instcad of trying them “for freason, to indict them for the minor offence of
elony.

Lord Carnarvon’s objection to the retrospective character of the Act amounts to this:
that.under it an alien might possibly be tried for an oﬁ'ence committed before the 10tk:
February, 1840.

But, supposing that no such-Act had ever cxisted, an alien committing the offence of
invading the country with the hostile intent above mentioned would have been guilty of”
the crime of Hhigh treason (such, at Ieast, was the opinion of the Law Officers of the
Crown in 1838, Sir John Campbell then being Attorney-General), and an Act rendering:
him liable to the penaltles of felony, although retrospectwe, cannot, therefore, be considered
as-injurious to the position of the alien.

There can be no objection, however, to a modification of this Act next Session, so as-
to lmnt the clause to offences committed since the 10th Februar v, 1840. Meanwhlle, as*
it is. not intended to put the Act in force except as regards persons taken in arms during
the present year of 1866, no objection can be taken to the trial of those persons, and'
vour Lordship can convey that assurance to the Colonial Secretary.

There is no necessity for the Acts being submitted for Her Mdjesty’s sanction, as
vour Excellency has already given them the Royal assent; and the Undersigned understand,
from Lord Carnarvon’s despatch, that no objection exists to the trial, under the recent
statutes, of these parties who have committed acts of hostile aggression since such acts
were declared by statute to be felony. '

With respdct to the first-mentioned Act in this report, the undersigned have only to
say that the offence of a hostile invasion was first made a felony in Lower Canada by, the
Statute 29 and 30 Vic., cap 2, which was passed on the 8th June, 1866, and it is
intended to try those parties only* tham.ngmttéd acts of hostile invasion since-

that date.. C
‘ (ngned) JOHN. A. Mc DONALD:.
L . GEO. ET. CARTIER.
Ottawa, October 5, 1866. .

‘ No. 16.
Cory of a DESPATCH {rom Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Monck to ther
Right:Hon. .the Earl of CARNARVOX.
Government.House, Quebec, Qctober-18, 1866:.
(N0 165.) ‘ (Received November 1; 1868.)!
My Logrbp, (Answered, No. 101, November 23, 1866, page 81:)}

B;EFEBR[NGa to your Lordship’s despatch.No. 53* of Septemher the:13th; relating .
tmtwwAets; intitnled wespectively,. ¢ An: Act:to amend. an Act of: the present: Session;.

$ g



P

< '

37

Jintituled an :Act to-protect the inhabitants of Lower Canada-azainst lawless ageressions
from subjects of foreign countries at peace: with Her Majesty,” -and “’An Act to amend

ithe 98th chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of {Tpper Candda,” in which your Lordship -

<expresses an opinion that under the provisions of these laws as they now stand, “a man
Tmight apparently be punished as a felon for an act which was not a felony when it was
committed ;" and your Lordship therefore goes on to say, “I have to instruct -you that
neither of these Acts must on any account be enforced in cascs-where they wounld have a
‘retrospeetive operation.” I have the honour to report that I have lost no time ‘in laying
-your despatch before the Law Officers, and have already transmitted their report in m;
‘despatch No. 154* of the 6th- of October. The practical aspect of the question is -in
reference to the Fenian prisoners now in confinement in the Province.

"These men are divided into two ¢lasses—Foreigners, British subjects. With regard
to-the former class, no question connected with these statutes can arise. °

The crime of invading the Provincg was made felony in the -case of foreigners in
Upper Canada by the 98th chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper Canada, and in
Lower Canada by the Ist chapter of the Acts of the late session, to which I gave the
Royal dssent on the 8th of June. ’ '

The prisoners in Upper Canada all obviously committed the actsalleged against them
since the passing of the Act for that portion of the Province, and those in Lower Canada
were all arrested subsequently to the 8th of June.

The case of such of the prisoners as arc British subjects is somewhat different.

In their case the statutable felony was apparéntly created by a statute passed subse-
quently to the commission of the acts for which they wére arrested.

But I am advised that those acts in their casc constituted the crime of high treason.

I am further advised that all treasons are al, common law felonies; though previous
to the statutes referred to, a British subject who had committed treason could not he
indicted for the felony which his treason involved, from a technical rule which imposes the
necessity of indicting him for the higher crime. . ,

It would therefore appear that in the case of British subjects no new felony is created
by these Acts of Parliament. . ' ) ‘

The effect which they have is to permit the trial of a prisongr for an act which was.a
felony at the time it was committed, but the indictmenf’for -which was prevented by a
technical rule of law. . .

If the prisoners, being British subjects, be not tried. under the Acts of last sessioni"

they must either be liberated without trial, tried by court-martial, or tried for high
treason.

Any of these modes of treating them.seemed to me to “involve very serious
difficulties ; and as this class of prisoners, on the grounds which I have mentioncd, do not
appear to me to come within the reason of your Lordship’s prohibition to use the Acts of
last session, I have authorized the Attorney-General to indict them under these statutes.

. I bave, &c.
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, (Signed)  MONCK.
&e. -&e. &e.

No. 117.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck to the
) Right Hor. the Earl of CArNARVON.

o 7

. Government House, Montreal, November 3, 1866.
y (Received November 21,1866)
(No. 183.) (Answered, No. 108, November 24, 1866, page §2.)
My Lorp, (Answered further, No 109, November 24, 1866, page 83.)

I HAVE the honour to transmit copies of the indictments, and the Judge’s notes
of the evidence taken in the cases of Robert B. Lynch and the Reverend John McMshon,
lately eonvicted of felony at Toronto, together with the report of the Attorney-General
for Canada West on these-cases. .

I am aware that these cases have been made the subject of a representation on the
part of the Secretary of State for the United States to Her .Majesty’s Minister- at
Washington, and that Mr. Seward’s letter on the subject has been transmitted by
8ir'F. Bruce to the Secretary of ‘State for Foreign Affairs.

It is‘the unemimous opinion of ‘my Council that the sentence of death in these.cases
should not be-carried into effect, and with that view I entirely. concur, o

* Page 35,
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Considering the nature of the offence of which these persons have been convicted,
and the fact that the society from which this attack upon the Province emanated still
maintains ils organization, and that the expressed opinions of its leaders show no
appearance of abatement in their sentiments of hostility to Canada, I think these
convicts. should not be allowed to escape without the infliction of some adequate
punishment. . .

The case of the prisoners arrested during the Fenian attack in last summer has
already been the subject of official communication to me on the part of your Lordship;
and looking to the recent representations made to Her Majesty’s Government by the
Secretary of State to the United States, it appears to me that I shall best perform my
duty in the matter, and take the course least likely to embarrass Her Mzjesty's Govern-
ment in their communications with the authorities of the United States, if I abstain from
dealing with the commutation of these sentences until I shall have received your
Loidship's instructions respecting them.

As it is of some importance that your Lordship should be in possession of this
information without delay, I write this despatch away from my office, and avail myself of
the departure of Mr. Macdougall, the Provincial Secretary, for England, to transmit it to
your Lordship. _

I will send this communication in duplicate, properly numbered,Iby the next mail.

nave, &c.
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, (Signed) MONCK.
&e. &e. &e.

Inclosure 1 in No. 17.

Judge Wirsox to Mr. GopLEY. N
SIR, i ' Toronto, November 2, 1866.
I SEND you herewith copies of the proceedings in the trials of the Queen v. Lynch
and McMahon. -

1. Copies of the indictments. ‘

2. Copies of my notes of the evidence at the trials and of papers read.

I have nothing written of any thing else, but the “ Leader” and ¢ Globe” of the
9th October contain my charge to the Grand Jury at the opening of the assizes on the
8th October.

These papers of the days next afier the trials contain a fair account, I believe, of .-
what was said in charging the juries, and on passing sentence, Mr. Solicitor General was
present at both trials, certainly at that of Lynch. He will be able to give you any
further information you may require from his point of view.

» I will send the papers to which I have referred, if the Sheriff can find them.
Very faithfully yours,

Dennis Godley, Esq., (Signed) -- J. W. WILSON,
Quebec. ’

Inclosure 2 in No. 17.
IrprcrMeNT against RoBErT B. Lyxca.

Canada, County of York, one of the United

Counties of York and Peel, to wit. : -

THE Jurors of our Lady the Queen upon their oath present, that Robert B. Lynch.
late of Louisville, in the State of Kentucky, one of the United States of America, and
now of the city of Toronto, in the county of York aforesaid, being a citizen of a certain
foreign State, to wit, the United States of America, at peace with Her Majesty the Queen,
with force and arms heretofore to wit, on the first day of June, in the year of our Lord
one thousand eight hundred and sixty-six, and while the said foreign State was so at
peace with Her said Majesty the Queen, at the village of Fort Erie, in the county of
Welland, in that part of ,the said Province called and being Upper Canada, with divers
other evil disposed persons, whose names are to the jurors aforesaid unknown, -did
unlawfully and feloniously enter that part of the Province of Canada, called and being
Upper Canada aforesaid, with intent to levy War against Her said Majesty the Queen
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contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the

peace of our said Lady the Queen her crown and dignity.

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present that the said
Robert B. Lynch being a citizen.of a certain foreign State, to wit, the United States of
America, at peace with Her Majesty the Queen heretofore, to wit, on” the second day of
June, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty-six, and while the
said foreign State was so at"peace with Her said Majesty the Queen, with force and arms
in the county of Welland, in that part of the said Province called and being Upper Canada,
having before that time joined himself to and being then and there joined to divers other
evil-disposed persons, to the Jurors aforesaid unknowp, was unlawfully and feloniously in
arms against our said Lady the Queen within Upper Canada aforesaid, with intent to levy
War against our said Lady the Queen, contrary to the form of the Statute in such case
Eade and provided and agdinst the peace of our Lady the Queen her crown and

ignity.

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their vath aforesaid, do further present that the said
Robert B. Lyneh, being a citizen of a cértain foreign State. to wit, the United States of
America, at peace with Her Majesty the"Quecn heretofore, to wit, on the second day of
June, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty-six,-and while the
said foreign State was so at peace with Her said Majesty the Queen, with force and arms
in the county of Welland, in that part of the said Province called and being Upper
Canada, having before that time joined bimself to and being then and there joined to
divers other evil-disposed persons, to the Jurors aforesaid unknowm;whe were then and
there unlawfully and feloniously in arms against our said Lady the Queen, did unJawfully
and felohiously comniit an act of hostility against our said Lady the Queen within Upper
Canada aforesaid in this, that he the said Robert 8. Lynch, on the same day and year
last aforesaid in the county of Welland aforesaid, together with the said other evil-disposed
persons armed and arrayed in a warlike manner, feloniously did assault and attack ¢ertain
of Her Majesty’s liege subjects in the peace of our Lady the Queen, then and there being
with intent to levy War against our said Lady the Queen, against the form of the Statute
in such case made and provided and against the peace of our said Lady the Queen, her

crown and dignity.
(Signed) J. W. WILSON, J. C. P. -

Inclosure 3 in No. 17.

InprcrMENT against Jorn Mc MaHON.

Canada, County of York, one of the United

Counties of York and Peel, to wit. -

THE Jurors of our Lady the Queen, upon their oath present that John Mc Mahon,
late of Buffalo, in the State of New York, one of the United States of America, and now
of the city of Toronto, in the county of York aforesaid, being a citizen of a ceriain forcign
State, to wit the United States of America, at peace with Her Majesty the Queen, with
force and arms heretofore, to wit, on the first day of June, in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and sixty-six, and while the said foreign State was so at peace
with Her said Majesty the Queen, at the village of Fort Erie, in the county of Welland,
in that part of the said Province called and being Upper Canada, with divers other evil-

disposed persons whose names are to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, did unlawfully and.

feloniously enter that part of the Province of Canada, called and being Upper Canada
aforesaid, with intent to levy war against Her said Majesty the Queen, contrary to the
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of our said
Lady the Queen, her Crown and dignity.

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present that the
said John Mc Mahon, being a citizen of a certain foreign State, to wit, the United States
of America,-at peace with Her Majesty the Queen, heretofore, to wit, on the second day
of June, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty-six, and while the
said foreign State was so at peace with Her said Majesty the Queen, with foree and arms,

_in the county of Welland, in that part of the said Province called and being Upper

Canada, having before that time joined himself to, and being then and there joined to,
divers other evil-disposed persons, to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, was unlawtu\.ly apd
feloniously in arms against our said Lady the Queen, within Upper Canada aforesaid, w1§h
intent to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, contrary to the form of the sgtute in

[82]
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" . such case made and provided, and against the peace of our Lady the Queeﬁ, her Crown

po

Inclo. 4 in No. 17.

and dignity. ' .- :

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath .aforesaid, do further present, that the
said John Mc Mahon, being ‘a citizen of a certain foreign State, to wit, the United States
of America, at peace with Her Majesty the Queen, heretofore, to wit, on the second day -
of June, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty-six, and while the
said foreign State was so at peace with Her said Majesty the Queen, with force and arms, in

. the county of Welland, in that part of the said Province called and being Upper Canada,

having before that time joined himself to and being then and there joined io divers other
evil-disposed persons, to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, who were then and there ynlaw-
fully and feloniously in arms against our said Lady the Queen, did unlawfully”and
feloniously commit an act of hostility against our said Lady the Queen, within Upper
Canada aforesaid, in this that he the said John Mc Mahon, on the same day and year last
aforesaid, in thie county of Welland aforesaid, together with the said other evil-disposed
persons, armed and arrayed ina warlike manner, feloniously did assault and atlack certain
of Her Majesty's liege subjects, in the peace of our Lady the Queen, then and tbere
being, with intent to levy war against our said Lady the Queen, against the form of the
statute in spch case made, and provided, and against the peace of our said Lady the

Queen, her ‘Crown and dignity. o
. . (Signed) - J. W. WILSON, J. C. P.

\

Inclosure 4 in No. 17.

Cory of Judge Wizsox’s Notes in the Trial of the Queew v. RoserT B. Lyxsch, 24th
- T ' October, 1866. '

Indietment for felony on the Foreign Aggression Act, vide Indictment. J. H. Calheron, '

Q.C., Solicitor-General, and R. A. Harrison, for the Crown’; Richard Martin. for
prisoner. ' ' '

JAMES SEVERS, sworn.. I am in charge of the gaol where the Fenian prisoners
are confined. The prisoner is one .of them. He handed me these papers. The ome
dated July 4, 1866, is an original ; the other, dated July.20,is a copy of an original.

.They are both in his hand-writing. They are read. (See copics of them herewith,

Aand B). ., : _ )
I am aware that the Governments of England and the United States of America -
have been-at peace before and since the Ist day of May last. — : .
Thomas L. Newbigging, sworn. I resided at Fort Erie on the 1st day of June last.
I saw the prisoner in the Fenian camp on my father's farm at Fort Erie about 3 p.u. of -
that day. I' went fo the camp to induce the Fenians to take care of three horses which
they bad taken of my father's. T asked the pickets on the Frenchman’s Creek Bridge -
where I could find General O'Neil or Colonel Hoy. They said General O'Neil was busy,
and Coloncl Hoy was in the camp, but-they referred me to Colonel Lynch, I then went
to Colonel Lynch, the prisoner now in the dock. He directed me to General O'Neil’s
Adjutant, and pointed him out to me. The prisoner had civilian.clothes on, such as he
has now; a low felt hat. Ile wore a sword Dy his side, slung by a belt around him, I
asked him how long the Fenians were going to stay. He said, * You know as much as I
do; it may-be two hours, or two days, or four days, I do not know.” T had no further
conversation.” The men pointed him out as Colonel Lynch. I addressed him as such,
and he answered fhe-without correction, The sentries on the bridge were armed. Their

~ 'men in camp were working about ; some washing, cooking, cairying rails for breast-worls,

.and cutting down trees. I saw rifles with bayonets about the camp. They took thyee

_ of our horses; slaughtered eleven lambs, and four. sheep. They teok some of our

harness and a tow-boat. When they left they took horses with them ; they brought none
to the camp. I saw them before they landed, and I siw them moving to.the camp on
our farm. They got on board canal-boats at Prati’s Dock, on the American side of the
Niagara River.. I was told.at 12 o’clock p.»: by the Custom-house officer 'that the
Fenians were coming over.” I'was in bed. I dvessedand wentto the road. The evening
was calm; the wind blowing from that dock towards.our house. When I got to the.
road I could see steam escaping from two tugs, and I heard the wheels of waggons
coming on to the dock on the American side. .Just before daylight the two tugs started
with two boats, each filled withjarmed men. They steamed to the Canadian shore, and
as they approached they shut off steam, as if hesitating where to go: then they started
up the river to the Shingle Dock or Lower Ferry, and there theylanded. I did not think
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they exceeded 1,000 men. About 9 o’clock on the 1st of June they all marched down:
to my father's farm, about -a mile below where they landed. They remained till the
following night, but when they left T do not know. At daylight one man only was seen,
and he was destlmmn the arms. It was during the afternoon of the 1st of Junel
visited the camyp. Next morning the man was l)urmno and breaking the arms against
apple trees; they were rifles with bayonets. What were left were nearly all loaded. In
one fire I counted ninety-eight barrels of rifles ; the stocks had been burned. 'There
were other fires with fewer 1ifies which I did not count. We found in Frenchman's
Creek nineteen cases of ammunition, ball cartridges, and caps complete, but partially
destroyed by water.  'We found for ty rifles in oood order in the creek and at its mouth.
The mark on all the ammunition boxes was « Watervict Arsenal, State of New York,
1,000 ball eartridges, 1864, extra good.” 'The marks on all seonmd aliké. The rifles
were marked ¢ Bridesbureh ” on the lock, and “U. 8.” on the stock and barrel. « 1864.”
We found in the ‘%amp-mound hasersacks with clothes which had been worn, canteens,
four hams, and things thev had stolen from the neighbours, feather beds, and everything
they could et hold of. , Some few wore the United States’ uniform ; some green jackets
and shirts, but were not in uniform. They had canteens, great numbers of which were
found at the camp next morning. The men did not exceed 1,000. - I do not know when
they marched out. They had green flags with harps; onc had 2 crown and harp.. There
were about eight flags. lhc) had drums. One who was a prisoner said they did not
come to injure the cmnns, but the red coats. I did not see the prisoner from “the\time
I spoke to him till I saw him ‘here in July. The main body I last saw in a scow under
the stern of the steamer  Michigan.”

Cross-examined. I only saw prisoner on the one occasion there. There were
about 800 men with the prisoner. 1 saw General O’Neil in the camp. T saw him soon
after I had spoken to the prisoner. General O’Neil wore civilian clothing, drab coloured.
He was a gentleman-like man. pale and freckled; more like a dry g 200ds’ clerk than the
leader of a mamu(lmo party. He was a slighter man than prisoner, and taller. T should
think him over 35 years of age. He wore, I think, a”small black felt hat. and had no
arms. He was examining a map of the roads in the county of Welland. I saw no one
with arms except the prisoner. 1 saw none other with swords. All, except a few, were
in ordinary clothes of all colours. Some old men, and some very young, not e\ceedmg
16 years of age. Around O'Neil were two or three men better dressed than the rest.
1 did not see the prisoner till the afternoon in the camp. They were armed when they
marched down; I was within a yard of them. Some were marching without arms,
walking with the rest. The privates were all armed. I did not notice the men outside
so much as the men in the ranks. The rails were removed for a quarter of a mile along
the road, and about the same distance on the side line, and made into breastworks. 1

saw men from the other side passthg and repassing, residents of Buffalo; some of them

I kunew; all I saw I thought belonged to them. Until noon of the 1st, boats carried
over armed men. I did not see the prisoner arrested. I had arrested some, and I came
here in July to lcﬁﬂmee them. I saw prisoner about the middle of July, and then I
identified him. He is a man T could identify among a thoutand. I d1d not see him
there with his hat off. His hat rescmbled that on the table. I think his beard was, as
it is now. I am positive prisoner is the man I saw there. I am positive he had a sw ord
like our cavalry swords,or like those a colonel would wear. He seem@d to be in command
on the road opposite the camp. T am positive the prisoner is the Colonel Lynéh I saw
at the camp. He is liyhter in ¢complexion than he was.

Re-examined.  is the man,.I conscientiously believe.

Arthur Molesworth, sworn. I live on the bank of River Niagara, near Fort Erie.
When the Fenians were marching up on Friday morning, the 1st of June last, I saw,

- prisoner marching behind them. He had a sword in a steel scabbard slung round his

waist. He was speakmfr to a man whom I knew, who told prisoner his son had joined the
Fenians, and asked” prisoner to take care of him. He said he would. The Fenians first
marched up towards the village, but came down again. The men who were marching had
rifles and bayonets, about 1 500 marching four abreast. . I saw some of them land, they
came from Black Rock in the State of New York. They cheered on landing. I saw
two flags. The prisoner is the man I saw there.

Cross-examined. Isaw the Fenians just as they landed, between 3 and 4 o’clock A.m.
They marched about 8 a.M. I was at the road close by where they marched, some had
uniforms like. the United States’ uniform. They were walking along the column. T saw
two officers in our yard. T only noticed three with uniform. Prisoner had no uniform.
I was inside the road and saw only that side of the column. I did not see those on the
outside. T never saw prisoner but then. I saw him standing opposite our house, speak-
Gz -
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ing to two men. I saw him about five or ten minutes. The column was moving when
he stopped. 'They had passed when he followed them. He wore a coat like that he now
has on. He had a small hat. I saw none with grey hair except the prisoner. Most of
the men were young. The prisoners were brought out at the gaol, and there I recognized
the prisoner. I did not know the last witness had recorrmzed 1 saw him standing and
speaking to the two men. He had a sword and a little satchel. ‘I see no difference
between him now and then. I saw no man like him.- One officer came to our house and
asked for breakfast, he had uniform with green binding, the cloth was dark blue, his hair
was black and he wore a black moustache, be was younger than the prisoner with  the
same kind of complexion. I do not know who was in command. I was alongside of the
prisoner and thé man to whom he was speaking. About 8 A.m, on, the 1st June last 1
saw prisoner there, his hair is as it was, I see no difference.

Re-examined. T am sure prisoner is the man I saw there. '

Joseph Stevens, sworn. I was at Fort Erie on the 1st of June last. I saw the
prisoner there on that day, on the road getting his men in line, between 6 and 7 o clock
to march, He had a sword, nothing else. He was commandmo' the men. The Fenians
took me prisoner and some others. They made us go into the ranks. After I wds there, '
I heard him giving the word of command. I was there fifteen minutes. I was marched
three.quarters of 2 mile along the road and dismissed. The men said they were going’
to Toronto and Quebec. They asked if Canada was seven miles across. I said it was
* ten miles. They said they were going to take Canada and have farms. I saw lots of
. them marching around. I was a prisoner all day. They kept me a prisoner in my own’
house, and I did not see the prisoner that day again. Isaw no fighting. Iam certain.
. the prisoner was there. I saw no fighting on Saturday I wasinmy house, a mile and@
quarter below Fort Erie all day.

Cross-examined. I did not know prisoner before that day. I saw the men about
balf-past'six. I saw them first about daybieak: * They took me prisoner. -I did not see
the prisoner at first, but in an hour afterwards. He was marching up and down the road
speaking to the men. I did not see him coming over. The prisoner had the most to say
of any one. He gave directions, which were obeycd They were moving things out of
people’s houses. I saw no movement till he put them in order. After he had put them
in line he said “ Forward,” « March.” 'This was about two hours after daylight. "Prisoner
- had no uniform, he had a sword with a steel scabbard slung with a belt. He had a black
, low-crowned hat.. He marched us and halted, then halted again and ordered us who had
"been forced into the ranks to fall out, and he said « ‘you are dismiSied.” He looks
slecker now than he did. JHis moustache is longer., He was then more. weather-beaten,

" but otherwise seems the same.
Thomas M. Molesworth, sworn, I reeide at Fort Erie. I saw the prisoner at Fort

Erie, or on the road le‘xdmfv there, on I*nd'n morning the 1st of June last. -He was. -

walking with the body of the Penians. 1 canuot say T saw on him any arms. I saw him
on Satuuh; forenoon at cleveu or twelve. . Some one said he was a Fenian. He said he -
was a reporter to a paper. I saw him arrested. This conversation was Just before he
was arrested. 'The prisoner is the man, I have no doubt, whom I saw. there on the
1st of June.

Cross-examined. T first he'lrd of them .about the break of da) I frot up and
dressed. I live about the cighth of @ mile from the place they landed. \fterthey formed
they walked past my house. They appeared to he led, but bx whom T cannot say. One -
" rode who was in umfonn The firgt . I'saw were detached ones, who tried to get into my
house. /The column was then forminiz. I was in front of my house and saw them march
past. The prisener was among thetn. T cannot say who was in command. They had
only come 500 or 60O feet, the head was further on. Prisoner appeared to be walking .

. with them. He was half -the breadth of the road from me. He had a, low-crowned ﬂat,

* hat, with flat rim, black ; he had a dark coat. About 6 A.M. on 1st June he passed me,
1 do not recollect seeing him again till Saturday. I saw some in uniform, some not. 1
saw him marching. with the men. Some of the men, outside the column were without
uniform, Al the swords I noticed had steel scabbards. Ifo not recollect the prisoner
-had a sword. - Next day I had noticed him as one I had seen the day before. He had no
. arms that I saw. The prisoner and another man came up the road on Saturday and-were .
accosted as being with them the day before, he said I was there as a reporter.” He
now appears to wear his beard dlﬂ'erently, but his appearance is otherwise the same. He
wore more beard then than now. He is not so brown now as then. His moustache came .
‘more ont at thie sides than now, and it was longer. |
‘ William Murray, sworn. 1 believe I saw the prisoner before, I have no.doubt T saw-
him a mile and a half below Fort Erie on Friday the Ist of June last. He was w1th a
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great number of amcd men. He had a sword hung by his side. 'Y saw him afterwards
lower down the river with 2 number of others. He had his sword then. I was within:
. fifty yards of them when they landed. I went to the Telegraph office to give notice of,
their landing. I saw them march past me to the.camping ground- at Frenchman’s
Creg{ They had flags and banners and a drum. They were all armed who were in the
ran i

(Jross-exammed I saw prisoner first about 9 or 10 o'clock at the Lower ferry, where
they landed.” They had gone to the Upper ferry first, but came back, and from- that to
Frenchman’s Creek. I had not seen prisoner before, He was standing talking at first,
~ He had dark clothes, with a sword slung to a belt which was round him. He was dressed
in civilian clothes, dark, his sword had a steel scabbard. They wore different kinds of
hats, mostly black. I was within. fifty feet of them, not many men were of prisoner’s
age. I saw one man of about his age. The prisoner and those with him, were-at an ‘old
*saw mill, the road between us. I next saw him at Frenchman's Creek; dressed as before. 3
" He was talkmtr to one dressed and with' a sword like his.' I was about the length of this
Court-r:om from him i ip the afternoon of the same day. His hat had a stiff broad brim
and a low crown. He looks paler now, but I'see nothing else, except he seemed to have
more beard. He is not so bold looking. The beard' seemed more over his face than
now, not a great deal. °

Frederlck Eldon Dixon, sworn. Iam an officer in the Queen’s Own. The regiment
was ordered from Toronto to Port Colborne on the 1st of June, 1866. We nrot there
the same day. Colonel Dennis was in command when we left. Iam major now, but I
- commanded a company them.” We were ordered to start on Saturday morning by "rail to
‘meet Colonel' Peacocke’s force.. We moved -at 5 A with 1,300 men Jhe ‘Queen’s - -
Own, the 13th Battalion Hamilton, and the York and-Caledonian Ritle Company, -all
Volunteers -We were all in uniform. The Queen’s Own have dark green uniform.
_The-13th scarlet tunics with dark trowsers. The York and Caledonian Rifle uniform.

" We were armed and had ammunition. We got out at Ridgeivay station to take our line
- of march-which began a little after 6. We advanced in mllltary order. We had marched
about two miles when the leading files of the advancé guard came back at the double.
‘I"was with the-main body, in subchwswns, all in the road. They put’ their shakoes .
on their rifles to show the enemy.was in sight. Three' companies’ were “ordered to
skifmish right and left. We advanced some distance and saw men - running ‘about in
front, and then we heard a shot fired, and the firing continued. The men took eover all
they could in & field in which were stumps We were in front, the 13th. in red coafs in
.therear. They were not-in front at the beginning. The skirmishers of the 13th were
ordered up to relieve us, and then their red coats could readily be'seen. I saw some of
our men fall. Two fell in front of me. I saw men wounded on the ficld, of our corps.
They were wounded from the fire of those who opposed us. I'saw a bod_) of them in
front of us firing. . Our troops after a time retired. ' '

John White, sworn. I belong to the Queen's Own. I was in the affair at Rld«reway,
I was wounded in the arm and lost it. I was wounded in the retreat.

William Hodder, sworn. . L.belong to the]Queen’s Own. I was at Ridgeway. I was
adjutant with the’ commandmfr officer in the reserve. The troops adv anced as deseribed
by Major Dixon. I.saw several wounded of our men, and one of the 13th, Lieu- -
tenant Routh. They were wounded by the fire of the enemy. The troops were in
uniform.

.Adam King Schofield, sworn, I am a Lieutenant in the Volunteer Welland C:mal

© Field Battery.. We left Port Colborne and disembarked at Black Creek. Then embarked
_ to Fort Erie and re-embarked and returned to Fort Erie. We then scoured the country.

to Trottin’s bend. We had tifty- four men and three officers, no large gun. We were in -

. Artillery uniform.. We came in contact with the enemy between 3 and 4 e at .
" Fort Erie on shore. We were. in Front-street in Fort Erie with the Dunville Naval

Brigade who had.no uniform except the officers. The Naval Brigade were in front.

‘ We saw men skirmishing down the river bank. A man threw up a white cloth and we

were called to surrender. First a shot was fired. . Then another, then a volley fired
among us. Captain King was hit in the ankle. F. Scholfield was shot in the leg helow
the knee. J. Bladley, shot in the thigh. Robert Thomas, through the thigh. John
Harverton, shot in-the leg. - We retreated to a bmldmw and ﬁred till the Fenians -
threatened to set fire to a stcre, which would have burnt the house we werc in. Our .

men in the house surrendered and were kept by them all night. I was taken. . Lieutenant

Nimmo and Lieutenant McDonald were taken, The Fenians said they had come to take

_ the country and they would. - We were mistaken they said in their force, they. could and

L@
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would take the country. - A guard was put over us, and over the house, of some fifty or

. sixty men. They knew e were troops.

Cross-examined. There was a large body of some 700 men, One,

They ‘took my cross-belts- from me. o
: I‘ltzpatnck was -
" adjutant. He had brown clothies, quatter boots, a black. hat, and a sw ord with a bright

seabbard. 'Some of the officers took tea, with us s\hele we were imprisoned. I was taken .
by the men. Fitzpatrick met me, he said, © you are an -officer, you shall go back with
me.” _He asked where my cross-belts weré. 1 pointed out the man who had them and

. he made him give them back. -Fitzpatrick was a man of 23 years of age. This was on

‘the. 2nd of ]unc [ saw the Sjrgeon Dr. Donelly, he haé-no. arms, had dark clothes.
S I “took tea with them. ~They wore ¢ivilian clothes. Some-

W

BN

.

~

T saw half a dozén ofiicer

two had blue cloth trinmed with green, they were captains.

who took tea with us.. The Qualtel-mastel had no coat. ' None of the
I did not see O’Neil, I heard ke was there that evening. They

some of tlie men were.

“Tea is ready. ” Mve di

" whatever places are left

They said they had been
“Thomas P\le, SWorn ;

about 300 men on board

ammunition on the American side. . We' got muskets on'the way over. Some had

I saw six or seven officers -

oﬂ1ce1s were old,

_ told us they had from 800'to 1,250 nien at Rldoewa.y They were those who had been

-at Ridgeway. I do not remember seeing the prisoner. Mrs. Kempson came in and said,

d not move, Thcce officers said, “you must go in first and
we will take,” We went down and about fom sat w1th us.

ﬁrrhtmo We were well used after we gave in,

I was at Fort Eriecon the st of June last, T .came from
Buffalo” early in the"morning, and came in a c'mal-boat drawn by a tug. There were
thc beat. . We came on foot from Buffalo te Black Rock. We
had no.arms when ne left. On our way across the arms were issue

revolvers of theirown, -Bayonects were lbblu,(l There was ammunition i

- talked of tal\mo Canada by fighting. This we intended. The prisoner
. that afternoon, walking up and down where the arms were stacked:- -He wore a sword,

d. We had the -

1)

in boxes. They
was in Fort Erie

We went to- Black Creck where we stopped : 100 men—a skirmishing fine—wen out

and came back to the river, and waited till the main body came back. We were all .© .

armed ; I, among tae rest, walkéd>into the_country, and I left them. A captain came
d, and said we werc-going” into action. I and some others left
and went to Colonel Peacocl\e 's camp = 700 or "800 men marched out.

back and swung hls SWOr

" prisoner there,*?

T can’t say I saw

Closa-e\ammed I was born in the County Kerry; came to the Uniited States a,
year ago. One McDonald, who came from: Tennessee, swore me in on his side. My oath- .
2 1 d6 regard oaths. [ remember it vas “to serve them truly,‘

" -se_hélp mé God.” I turned Queen s evidence ; I told the turnkey, and then Mr. Harrison..

was t,o serve them loyally,

I expect to get free for giving evidence.

I was sworn to-keep their- secrets, and was in .

McDonald's Companv The one shown as O'Neil wore plain clothes, was'about 30, light
-1 did noﬁ“see T

. coloured hair, pale face.
Colenel Starr. I know one Shields, who was a captain,

I came over about 4 o'clock, towed by a tug.

I did not l\now Colonel Sha, ¢

I was of the column formed after we landed. - The Capta,ln put us right. Shields was
He is 5 feet 8 inches, dressed in a black coat, a felt hat, and

giving orders to his men,

- had a .revolver,, He is s
acting-captain ; is a young
“~elothes. '.lhey generally’

so had the.rest, mostly.

who was the oldest, man ‘thpre. .

’%Sut heavy, dark moustachc 35 years of age.

McDonald wag

man in light. clothes. Most’ of the officérs were “in civilian
vore sack-coats, dark. They wore different kinds of hats. _, -
McDonald had a rowdy hat. I saw a Lleu‘tenant a broken-nosed chap, with a black hat, - v
hields was the oldest man there. I'saw. Liynch, the pn\oner,
I saw two men about the Fenian camp of prisoner’s age,
. taller and heavier men thap.he.” I think thev were officers. I saw non

e ot this. descrlp-

‘tion at Frenchman's Creckl I saw prisoner on the st of June, earl) in the forenoon,

about 9 o’clock. I sawa SM

come dbout 7 o'clock.” . I saw prisoner first: walking up

.and down where the arms were stacked. The firstI saw of prisoner was in the field,
after the arms were stacked. Prisoner had the clothes on he now has, and a sword. I’ am_

“At 545 Py, Court a

October’2’), 1866, 10 a.x.;, Court opened

1

Hlst of June last af a camp at Fort Er:e

\
OASE For THE CRO
dJoumed till 10 A2t to-morrow.- <

oo For DEFENCE

J ury called over and all present 0 .

. giving evidence, I know John NIechamfI slept -with him.. I told him I had given
- evidence agamst the prisoner.. - f, )

-

John McMahon; sworn: I am a clercryman. I saw prisoner on the’ forenoon of the . :
I saw him wrltlng I thmk he told me he\xzas -

oo “
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writing for some newspaper in i&entucky I saw him wmtm« in a book He had no '
sword, 1 think, and no gun with him. [ .saw him an hour ,Lftu', walking along the road ;
I was tall\mg with him: I do not recollect seeing him again.

Mary Ryle, sworn. I am the mother of Thomas Ryle. He has a poor chmactel for '
veracity. He ought not to be believed on his esath. 1 have been in this countly fifteen
years. He-came w ith us, then 8 years old, to Cape Town. He.worked out with a
farmer. "I removed to P'ms three years after I had come to Cape Town, and one year
* after removed to Guelph, and there I have lived since, on the propérty-of-Daniel Allen. .
He was in Cape Town, Paris, and about four ycars with me at Guelph. He worked in
Guelph when the market house was built. He went to the United States a‘year ago last
April, and I never heard from him till I heard he was in gaol. ‘Ahout two years’ Defore
__the last-time he-had- gone to the United States in May and remained till the fall.

Cross-examined. Hé was not - -a_good. boy, he was guilty of all bad acts except
murder. He was good till he was 15 years old. He isnow 23 years. Heisa dr unl\ard
a liar, a night walker, a waylayer, and he was found guilty'and Tailed.

Re-examinéd. He was not tried after he got out on bail. He was almys in tlouble

every day I heard something bad of him. He strolled with bad boys.

# . "John McMahon, recalled. T was not present when the Féﬁi;iﬁ.é’landed T saw the
oﬁicers who commanded the Fenians. There was a man, 1 do not know. his name, much
the size of prisoner, who was a captain from Indianapolis. He was a man who looked
much like the prisoner, and. wore a similar coat.- The prisoner’s beard on his chin was
smaller I think then than now. The captainT speak of had’ more beard than prisoner.
The prisoner had a moustache hut not so much under his chin. The Captain I speak of
I would know if T saw him.” He said not to be afraid, I should not be molested.

. 'Daniel F. Lumsden, sworn. T think I saw prisoner on the 1st June last, at the
Fenian camp, but I cannot swear positively. When I saw him"he had a book in his hand
taking notes. T fell in with a lawyer who, called my attention to prisoner. He bad no
sword or arms that I saw. I saw some of theFenians, .1 saw O’Neil, he had eivilian
clothes,. He resunblcd the prisoner in his walk and clothmg, but he ‘was tallex and not
O'Neil. I think prisoner was the man 1 saw taking notes. | S .
- = -Gross-examinied, . O'Neil is much younger than prisotier. - ' Lo

Danicl Whalen, sworn; -“I remember sceing prisoner on the Ist June last at F'mr
- Erie; about, one in the afternoon. He was half a mile from the v illage. He was walking
round. 1 understood .lic—was—a reporter for the * Louisville Courier.” T saw some
“ofthe officers in-command then. - 1 saw no officer 1esemblmn the prisoner, I took notice
of his he-’wy moustache. [ did not take notice of his bear (l 'H his beard had bcen as
large as now I should haye notjced it. -

‘ ‘ross-examined. I was: seduced to come over on the Friday, :md found I was in a,
bad fix. - I asked the advice of prisoner; he told me 10 stay till night and get away.
He said hc had nothing to do with it only as a 1gporter I 1mt W 1th au acc1dent I had
a minié. ball through my neck.

" Patrich Norton, sworn. I saw pnsonex on the. Ist June Iast outsule of the village
of Fort Erie, about’ h,LH a-miile or so..-He was walking round?like any other utucn
He bad no sword, I did not Lno“ what he was doing, T saw several of the officers, one
" resembled the prisoner; he wore a sword. 1do not know bis name. The prisoner had:..
> less beard on the chin, an imperial, but a moustache as now. The officer had more beard
* than the prisoner has now.

Cross—exammed "['was like a peaceable mtwcn 1 met with an accident! T won’t
say what it was. I came with another man. I-saw prisoner but once, and it was on the
camping-ground. - T heard no one called  Colonel Lynch.” -1 do not know the name or* .
‘rank of the man I spoke of who resembled prisoner.

Thomas Henry Maxwell, -sworn.- I saw prisoner on thc lbt June, at the Lower -

" Ferry, near Fort Erie, Hewas standing ;.had no arms’; heard the{ he wis a reporter
. for a Louisville paper. I saw some of the offigers ; .nong who rescmbled the prlsoner, b
did not notice the kind of beard he had.

-John Corney, sworn, I’saw prisoner ou the Lst Junc last, I drove prisoner from -

. Buffalo to Black Rock, at aboiit ‘12 o ‘clock. T took his valise from the carriage to the
ferry-boat He had an imperial and a moustache, He is greyer now.than then. “

Cross-examined. He had a moustache and imperial.. I did not come over with him,

Patrick O'Malley, sworn. I saw prisoner onthe Ist June last, in Exchange Street, .

. Buffalo, about 8 in the moming. I knew prisoner as a hookkeeper in Louisville. anoner‘ ,
" said he .came with a squad of Fenians from Louisville, and was a reporter for the.
«Touisville Courier.” I neyer saw him during three years have a,nythmo but a moustache.

and nnpenal
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- Martin Cormick, sworn, I'saw’ prisoner on the 1st Jine last at the Cross Road
near a shingle-mill. I .saw him between 8 and 9 in the morning. He was standmg .
there. I did not know what he was doing. He had no arms. I say no officers. There -
was no crowd about prisoner. - '
“Cross-cxamined; It was befween &and 9 in -the mornmg, as mear as I could tell
I was walking along the road. I did not see the camp. I came in tﬁke ferry-boat. I left
P}»}lack Rock at-7 aar. I saw hlm at the Shingle B;ock between 8 and 9, and met’ him
there
John'Mecham, sworn. I saw prisoner on the nd June ; not on the 1st. I saw h1m
on the tug-boat after e was arrested ;. he had a moustache, as now, 'and an 1mpe11al I
‘know-Thomas Ryle. I would not believe him_ on his oath. ,
Cross-examined. I did not know Ryle till I saw him in gaol. |
Dennis Lenaghan, sworn. I did not see ptisoner on the 1st or 2nd June last
Peter Morrison, sworn. ~ I saw prisoner on the 2nd June last, “20'0 yards out of the
village. I saw him, but did not know him. I was arrested, and he was soon after.
Mlchael Purtel; sworn. I did not see prisoner on the 1st or "nd June last
Patrick Keating, sworn? I was at Fort Erie on the 1st-June last, and saw Stephens
a prisoner. He was intoxicated, “F~should judge by his talk and appearance, I was

talking with him.. He said he had been arrested by these fellows ; and 1 ssked them,

and they said by O'Neil’s orders. I saw O'Neil. I'did not. notice other officers,
Cross-examined. I did see Stephens a prisoner there. . !
George Wells, sworn. I saw prisoner when he was in gaol here, I shaved h1m. He

. had a moustache and a slight imperial on his lip ; nothing more.

Cross-examined. We were in Brantford Gaol seven. days before we came hgre,
Re-examined. I saw him a prisoner on the tuo' after he was arrested. . H had the
same moustache and imperial then,

" Henry M. O Bnep, sworn, I know prisoner at the bar. I knew him gs a boy in -
Galway and Dublin, in Ireland. County of Galway is his birthplace.
Ameriea before he did, I think.. I am here twenty-five years. I et hi
Galway five years after.” I met him at a ball-at my fa.thers in Dublm
clerk in the Charitable Bequest Ofﬁce, at the Castle.

as a boy in
He was head

Case for, prisoner, \ : , .
~ Verdict, « Guﬂty ”  Nentenced to be executed on-Thursday; the 13th day of

. December next

N

~T.

Inclo. 5 in No. 17 '

k ’ f,.‘,::: \. (Signed) J. W. WILSON, J.C:P.
Novemb‘er‘2, 1866. ’ . "‘ o
. Montreal, November 5, 1866.

The Underswned after consideration of the' evidence in this case, begs leave to

. report to your Excellency that in his opinion such evidence fully sustains the verdict and
conviction, together with the within notes of evidence, are transmitted, for your Excel-

lency's mformatwu newspapers containing Mr. Justice Wilson’s char(re to ‘the Grand .

‘Jury, as well as his charo'e to the Petit J ury. The reports in these papers are stated to

be correct by the learned J udge. ,
(Slgned) JOHN A. MACDONALD, .
L Attorney-General.

Inclosure 5 in No. 17. | '

\ Cory of J udge WILSCV’S Notes of Evidence i in the Tna.l of the Qm:mr v. JOHN MCMABON ‘

u"&vf:
. W

Indictment for Felond @inder the Forelgn Abd'ressmn Act Sohutor-General J. H.

- Cameron Hamson, for the Crown. M. C. Cameron, for the Prisoner.

JOHN RAJW sworn (this ‘man’s hame, is not on the mdlctment M. C. Cameron
objects to his b¢ing éxamined, because the prisoner had a right 'to know who had to be
called against him. T allow his evidence to be tdken, and think the objection late, if

" good, and thatfit-is no objection, the offence is not treason). I live in Fort Erie., I was .

there on the 1gt of June last. I saw prisoner on the lst June, he was there among the
Fenjans, who/landed' there about 800. They were mostly armed. Prisoner was. not
armed I say- him first about 9 in the mormng He was dressed in'black clothes, and a

I came to
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black hat. They landed one and a-half miles from Fort Erie ; came up marching through
the village, and halted for breakfast. They halted sixty feet from my house. Prisoner
was there. They breakfasted there, and remained about two hours Most marched, a
few strageled behind.  Some left their valises, and the priconer ordered those which were
behind.  He said, pick up the valises, the boys may want them, we do not know how
long we may stop in Canada. The men picked up their valises and went on; we followed.
They went in the direction of Newbigging farm. They came about 7 a1 can’t say
the very time. I saw prisoner after the fight between the Fenians and the Volunteers.
The Fenians took me prisoner on Saturday cvening. The fight too place at 3 p.au
Those who came back, came from the direction of Ridgeway. I was a prisoner. I saw a
wounded man Dy the road; he was a Fenian. Prisoner was attending to him, and
examining his wound. I saw him as a prisoner on Sunday ncon; lie was in charge of our
soldiers or volunteers. The Uniled States and our (rovernment were then at peace.

Cross-examined. There is a ferry-hoat going betyeen our side and the American.
"The common ferry and the railway one, which takes,only cars and passengers. Prisoner
had a satchel of his own, which he carried. I did not speak to him. I was with one of
my neighhours talking. I was not here to see these men till last week. There were
about half-a-dozen valises left. Almost every Fenian had a gun auvd a valise. Prisoner
wore a black coat and a black plug hat. They had all sorts of hats and clothes, He
) was not armed, I said I thonght prisoner was either a priest or a doctor; when I saw

‘ 2hipPlast T thought he was a doctor. He had a white neckerchief and black clothes. .
S TS ~eRe-examined. I am positive he is the man. -

N i

Y . - . . . .
2 ' Alexander Wilcox, sworh. (The same objection is made to this v

.oy

vitness as to the last,
and the same ruling. Then the witness was not sworn when the objection was taken) —

I live in Fort Erie. Isaw prisoncer on the” morning of the Ist June there. He was
standing talking to some who remained behind the main body of the Fenians. There
were some satchels and valises left. He was interceding with the men {o take them in;
said it was a pity the poor boys should be without their clothes, as they might want
them. They took them on. 1 did not see him after. I saw no arms on him.

Alexr. Milligan, sworn. [ reside at Fort Erie. On Ist June last I saw a body of
men, armed, there. They were near my lot, arranged there about 5 or 6 in the morning.
I saw the prisoner there. Some of the men had gone into a tavern and were drinking.
He to d them to take care of themselves. T saw him often. He had dark clothes and a
revolver by his side, and a belt, I think. It was outside I heard him say to take care of
themselves. I had a conversation with him. He said, don’t be afraid, we do not want to
hurt civilians. Some said they wanted to see red-coats. Prisoner said, yes; that was
what they wanted. I never saw him at Fort Erie hefore. Reeve ordered breakfast for
them to prevent them from ransacking the houses.

Cross-examined. 1 do not keep a salcon. I saw them at Barney McManey’s
tavern. I kept house. It is not ov:. ~fifty yards from that tavern. I was awakened by
the woman next door; it was light. I went to the back door and saw the Fenians all
drawn up in the green at the back of my lot, where the school-housc is. *I got my family
up and took them to Buffalo. .After my family were up, I went out and amoag them. 1
was with them aboul a quarter of an hour; went home and back again. [ remained a
few minutes. I went to the tavern and several went in and I drank with them. I was as
sociable as possible. I asked to treat them, but they said I should not pay—they could
pay better than I could. I bad four or five horns, and remained there till about 9.
I got my family away in the forenoon. There were severdl men walking up and down
the streets with guns and bayonets. I saw prisoncr.at the door. I was talking with two,
or three whom I knew—tihey were from Buffalo and Toronto. Prisoner was talking -to

- the men to keep straight. He had a revolver and I think a belt. I saw the Fenians go
away. I can't. say'the time; about 9 o’clock, I think. I did not see the prisoner or
those who straggled go away. I saw priconer twice at the same place. All he had to
say was that the boys should mind themselves. I worked as a tailor'and I kept a tavern
here. T was a year in the United States. I left this about two years ago next January.
T came back the beginning of January, and settled ix Fort Erie. It was about a quarter

; or 2 half an hour between the first and sccond time I saw prisonef. The Fenians moved

" off between 9 and 10. I saw prisoner betwcen 5 and 6. I was at home part of the

night and part at McMeney’s saloon, which I left at about 10 py. 1 had gone there at

about S p.m. I did-not expect the Fenians. T was talking to Mr. Squire, and I took a

“drop occasionally—only beer. I went to bed about 10 or11, I think. I was at no other

place that night, and Twent home alone, Joseph Squire was therc when I left. HThomas
(s2] ‘
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and Fairchilds were the men playing billiards. T heard of it just”dfter I quit work. I
was not drunk the morning of the 1st June. Baycite and Mooney were there just about
the time the Fenians came. 1 spoke to Mooncy before and after. He called me to see
the Harp of Ireland hoisted in Canada. I saw him about there all morning. I can’t
tell what kind of a belt prisoner had on, but he had a revolver, which was a good-sized
one. .

Re-examined. I saw prisoner between 5 and G telling the men to take care of
themselves and keep right. I was proposing to go to Buffalo. They said they were not
going to molest the inhabitants but to go on.

Cross-examined. I asked, when I went to drink, whether 1 should go: they said I
need not, for they were not going to hurt us: outside they said the same thing. I went
with my family to Buffalo—took a carpet-bag only. Went in the forenoon.

Joseph Newbigging, sworn. I live on the Niagara River, two miles from Fort Erie.
I was at home on the night of 31st of May. On the morning of 1st June I saw a body
of Fenianyianding at the lower ferry. They came in canal-boats towed with tugs; they
were armed/ I saw prisoner in the Fenian camp on my father s farm, on the 1st of June,
about mid-day. He was standing talking lo some of the Fenians in the camp. He
seemed friendly with them. Two or three of the parties he spoke to were Fenian officers;
the rest were of the lower sort. I saw him in the afternoon of the same day going into a
boat with three others, one dressed in common clothes. one in Confederate unitorm, and
United States. I heard one say to prisoner, Come, Father, get into this boat; and he
went. -They started off for Black Rock Dam; in going they kept up the river a bit and
then across. Next I saw of him was on the 3rd, on Sunday, under 4 guard of soldiers.
I was at the camp four or five times” on Friday, and I saw him there most of these
times, and T saw him conversing with them. '

Cross-examined. I saw none of the villagers there that day. I saw and spoke to
Colonel O’Neil. When they called him father I understood he was a priest,

Thos. L. Newbigging,_sworn. I am brother of last witness. I think I have seen
prisoner before. I saw him on ¥riday about 3 in the afternoon, on 1st of June. He was
coming with some others from the camp. They appeared to be Fenians. After they
passed I saw a boy with a boat coming down the river; some of them hailed it and said
if he would.take them over he would pay for it. They were going to Butfalo. The boys
came ashore; the boat was too small; one boy remained. Prisoner and those with him
got into the boat. _ After the boat was pushed off, I heard one say, Father, take this
seat (the stern one)—the most comfortable one there. They rowed the boat up to eross
to Black Rock Dam. I did not see it cross. 1 thought he was a chaplain. “His clothes
were not so genteel as now. His hat was very much worn. I did not see him again til
I saw him in gaol about the middle of July.

Cross-examined. He had no arms I could see. -

Charles Treble, sworn., (The same objection and the same ruling as to the second
witness.) 1live at Fort Erie, and was living, there on the 1st of June last. I believe I
saw prisoner before, but am not positive. I saw him on the afternoon. of Saturday in
‘Walnut-strect after the engagement. He was walking alone up the street. From his
appearance and dress I thought him a priest. He wore a long coat. I do not swear posi-
tively it was the prisoner.

George Mc Murrich, sworn. I am a Captain of the 10th Royals. I saw prisoner
before this & short distance from TFort Erie, five or ten minutes’ walk, at the house of
Major Cautie, a:Major of the Fenian army as I heard, on Sunday morning hefore 8 or
9 o'clock, Licutenants Denison. Hodders, Stoakes, Dr. Jamicson, and others. It was
suggested by Licytenant Denison there vere wounded Fenians there, and he sent men to
search it. 1: w®prisoner at the door.  Dr. Jamieson asked where he came from, and he-
said from some place in Iilinois, in the States. [-cannot remember the placc: I and
Dawson arrested _him, 11¢" said he came to Dbury the dead. He tald he had Dbeen at
Buffalo, and heard of something happening here. He came to do his duty in burying the
dead, Hewas on his way to sce the Bishop in Montreal. We found one dead Fenian
in the barn on a stretcher. One Kiley was in the hayloft wounded, and his companion
Smith. The prisoner was asked soon after we went there if there were any Fenians, He
said he did not know. Another dead man was found in a workshop. He was marched
off as a prisoner. :

Cross-examined. On Sunday about daylight we were two miles from Fort Erie.
About 9 or 10 we were i Fort Erie. I cannct tell the time exactly.

John G. Ridout, sworn. I saw prisoner at the housc of Major Cautie, as mentioned
by Jast witness. Four men, I, and Captain Mc,Murrick, went to the house. We asked

i
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if there were any wounded Fenians there. The women and this man denied it. I went
to the cellar, and found belts and coats. Then the prisoner was arrested. We found
a dead Fenian in the barn. I found one Kiley and one Smith in the loft.

Cross-examined. I heard prisoner say he had nothing to do with the Fenians; he
knew nothing about them. , The belts were of the 13th Hamilton people. * B

Re-examined. When I saw prisoner in gaol he did not deny but that Y had seen
him at that house. _ ) '

Dennis Sullivan,sworn. (Same objection to him as to second witness, and same ruling.)

I am one of the Royal Canadian Rifles. I was at Fort Erje ‘on look-out duty two years
and twenty-eight days. I knew Cautie and his house on the hill. Cautic went to meet
the Fenians asthey came up. He was with them, and had a-revolver. He was with
them while they were there, but has not-been seen since. - :

John Metcalfe. sworn. {Same objection as to him, same ruling.) Iwas inthe Queen’s
Own at Ridgeway. .1 am now in the Sherift’s Ofice. 1 was atLime ridges. The Queen’s
Own and the Volunteers were attacked there by the Fenians. The Volunteers were in
uniform. I saw Lieutenant Mc Eachum lying wounded in front of me. A man was
killed by my side. The shot came from the Fenians. I saw prisoner in gaol here. I
told him anything lie might say might be used against him. I made mno promise or ™
inducement to him.- He said he was a Roman Catholic priest; born in.Monaghan,"in -
Ireland. Was a citizen of the United States. Came over from Buffalo on the 1st June.

- Landed at Fort Erie, where the Feifidns took his carpet-bag and clothes from him, and
compelled him to vo to Ridgeway to act as chaplain for them. He was within half-a-mile
of the battle-field. Heattended to the wants of the wounded, both Fenians and British, He
heard the confession of five wounded Fenians, who died on Saturday. He attended the
wants of the British and Fenians indiscrimivately .as they were brought. Several
Fenians werc wounded ; he ¢ould not tell the number. TFour Fenians were killed at Fort
Erie. Colonel Bayley was killed by three balls in his body. When arrested there was
found on his person a list of boys he wished to send to a Mr. Vaughan, but no list of
a Fenian Company. Therc were some pistol-shots of his own and slugs he picked up at
. Fort Eric, some wafers unconsecrated, some oils, and a bottle of peppermint.. He had
no arms of any description, and was no Feuian. ~

Cross-examined. Allthis was given me at one time. Mr.Mc Nab asked if he wished
to make a statement. The statement was taken in writing. He said the Fenians forced
him to go with them as priest, and as a medieal adviser too. The battle at Ridgeway’
was on the 2nd of June. I was not injured. I got to Fort Erie on Monday. ‘

Edward Hodder, sworn. (Same objection, same ruling as to this witness.) I saw
prisoner before at Major Cautie’s house, near Fort Erie, on Sunday the 3rd of. June last.
:X was in front. of . the ‘troops when it was said a wounded man was in the house.
Dr. Jamieson was scnt.to $ee him. He wanted an escort outside of the skirmish line. . I
and Dr. Jamieson wentfirst. ‘Mr. Ridout and others folloved. We went tv the house
and saw prisoner standing at the door. Dr.Jamieson asked him what he was doing: there,
. Prisoner said he came from Buffalo and was on-lis way to Montreal, and some one had
stolen his vestments, and he was waiting to get more. We.airested him. He was asked
where thie woundéd man was. He said there-was no such man about the house. The = -
woman also denied it. I saw through the seam of the barn a man lying on a stretcher.
He was asked if any Fenians were about there. He said'no. -

- - Cross-examined. His answer,was 1o ; not.that be did not know. Dr. Jamieson said,
"'What are you doing here? He answered as T have said. Captain McMurrich was near
and could have heard. Dr.Jamieson asked, Where is the wounded man?  Prisoner said,
There is vo such man here. e were ordered to suiround the bouse. Coats and belts of
our men were fouud; -and I saw the dead man-through the seam. Prisoner was searched,
" and a pocket-book was found. He was asked where the wounded man was. He was'not
asked if any Fenians were there.
: Wm. Cramb, sworn. (Same objeétion to him; and same ruling.) [.live in Toronto.-
1 have seen prisoner before. I had a conversation with him during the latter part of last
‘month in the gaol here. He said, I came over with. the Fenians to dress the Fenian
wounds. : o T ,
Cross-examined. ‘This is about all he said. . He said, Do you recognize me ? I went
partly out of curiosity, and partly to benefit my country. All for curiosity. 1 spoke to
others also. I got statements from otlrer prisoners. Someéthing from the other reversnd
gentlemen, The turnkey was present. He did not say whether he did it or nov: I am
a commercial traveller. . I take orders for dry goods. 1 deal in lamps for Noah H. Piper.

' H 2
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\ ~ Case for the Crown.

Verdict. “ Guilty.” The jury say Guilty on the whole indictment. Sentenced to be
executed on Thursday, the 13th of December next.

(Signed) J/ W. WILSON, J. C. P.

Montreal, November 5, 1866.

THE Undersigned, after consideration of the evidence in this case, begs leave to
report to your Excellency that, in-his opinion, such evidence fully sustains the verdict and
conviction. Together with the within notes of evidence are transmitted, for your
Excellency’s information, newspapers containing Mr. Justice Wilson’s charge to the
Grand Jury as weli as his charge to the Petit Jury. The reports in these papers are
stated to be correct by the learned Judge. - ‘
(Signed) JOHN MACDONALD,
' Atterney-General, U.C.

-

—~—

Inclo. 6 in No. 17. ) Inclosure 6 in No. 17.
- @)
p - - Mr. Lynen to Mr. KERr,
My pEAR MR. KERR, Military Prison, Toronto, July 4, 1866,

T RECEIVED yours of the 29th ultimo, and I assure you 1 was much pleased.to
hear from you, for I am not unmindful 6f your many kind acts to me, and the interest
you took in my welfare. Had 1 taken your advice, I would not be in the predicament I
am now placed in. But I had not the slightest idea that I could be interfered with,
having gone into Canada as a peaceable American citizen without any hostile intention
whatever, never having carried arms, or done anything to offend a man, woman, or child
in Canada. They are our own race and people, and never done anything ‘to. me. But .
being out of cmpioyment, L accepted the offer of Mr. McDermott to go as correspondent.
I did not correspond any, from the fact that the Fenians were some eight or ten miles in
the country fighting when I was arrested at Fort Erie. I suppose you seen an account of
the skirmish at a place called Ridgeway or Iron Ridge. It was madness for their leaders
to have taken them there; some 750 or 800 men to fight not alone the Militia, and the

_ Regulars, at least, 4,000 strong. But the Canadian people were up to a man in
‘opposition against them. If they counted in any aid from the people of Canada, you
must have observéd how much they were deceived. Nothing I could say could convey
to you the indignation of all classes of Canadians at this Fenian raid into their country.
But I will more fully give you an account of it when'I have the pleasure of seeing you.

I wrote to McDermott and Lincoln on business connected with my case, and you
excuse me not mentioning your name. I assure you it was not that I forgot you:
but I bad intended devoting a sheet to yourself. I regret much that I am not in Louis-
ville.  With regard to that lard trade, my evidence would have settled the matter at
once. I was present when he sold you the lard, and wanted you to come on Sunday to
examine it. I recollect your saying distinctly, you never did business on Sunday. He
then said you might examine it when you pleased. The trade was then finally made, and

~we drove off. You can postpone the trial on account of an absent important witness. I

cannot say when this trial of our comes off; but if you prepare an affidavit, my testimony

taken here before the proper authorities, I should think sufficient. I heard from M¢Dermott

yesterday. -I am glad to find he has been to work for me, and I hope I will soon be back

with you once more. I have now determined to turn over a new leaf, and settle down

with the determination of leading a sober, useful, industrious life ; and, not that I say it

myself, I have the proper business qualification, and all I want now is a fair start. I hope

you are doing well. Has our mutual friend, Mr. Canan, returned? I hope he has

. succeeded in the object he had in view. Give him my kindest regards. I would to hear
“from you again if you can spare time.

«~ . This prison life is most intolerable. I would sooner be dead than live here another

month. I have not ate anything for thirty-four days but bread and water. There is a

kind of soup furnished, but I could not use it ; no meat or vegetables; corn meal mash

. for supper,—this heats the blood. Any few of the prisoners that have not the itch.

There are about 105 of them here. The officers of the prison are very strict in the
discharge of their duties—much more so than in the United States ; but withal, obliging
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when approached properly. Where there are so many prisoners, considerable responsibility
rests on the officials. They have certain rules that are strictly enforced. But the diet is
a disgrace to Canada and its Government ; no able-bodied man can live on it for any time.
I have got no money to buy anything (which is allowed) : you can buy provisions if you
have the money. You were mistaken with regard of our not being furnished with
stationery; we get all we want of it. I have received no money from McD. T will

write to you again next week.
Your faithful friend,

(Signed) R. B. LYNCH.

Cory of a Card attached to the Letter.

R. B. Lynch, .
with Hackett and Otter, J
Grocers and General Commission Merchants,
Nos. 60 and 62 Sixth St., near Maine, Louisville, Ky.

< - Inclosure 7 in No. 17. | Inclo. 7 in No. 17.
(B.) '
Mr. LyNcH to Brigadier-G'enerafO’NEIL.—*
SIR ‘ Military Prison, Toronto, July 20, 1866.

b

I WAS arrested at Fort Erie June 2, with others charged with being connected
with the Fenian army on their invasion of Canada, and though protesting I was only so
as far as being a reporter to the Louisville Press, through Mr. McDermott, by whose
instructions I came to Buffalo for the purpose of reporting the incidents, ke., &c., of the
campaign ; | have Mr. McDermott’s affidavit, with that of Mr. Shea, to this effect. A
few days since two men from Fort Erie (one a Mr. Newbiggin, in whose orchard you were
encamped), identified me as being in command at the camp and ranking as colonel, which
statement le has sworn to; the other, whose name I don’t know, identified me also, and
made and swore to a statement that on the arrival of thé troops at Fort Erie I wasin
command and forming the men into line on their disembarking at the wharf. I cannot
.. for the life of ‘me see who those men take me for, and how they-should be thus mistaken.
But such will .be their testimony on my trial, which will come off very soon. In order to
meet this evidence I must have afhdavits to prove to the contrary. I am, therefore,
obliged to appeal to you, as having command of the Fenian army which invaded Canada,
for an affidavit as to whether you had known me to have any position or command in that .
army, or in any manner connected with it,"Aither as a Commissioned Officer, non-
commissioned officer, or private, or that I coul to, it without your knowledge.

General, as this evidence is very important dsee, I trust you will not delay 1n going
before a Justice of the Peace and make this affidavit.

I acknowledged I was at the camp at Fort Erie, but in the capacity of an American
citizen without arms, in Canada with no hostile intention, but solely on the business on
which I came there. I had a letter to-day from Mr. McDermott informing me- of your
being at Nashville. As my'trial is supposed to come off soon, your early attention to this - »
will much oblige me. I am row in this prison some seven weeks ; there are about ninety
prisoners here charged with being connected with the Fenian movement.

I have written also to Colonel Starr for a similar affidavit.

, - ) I have, &ec.
Brigadier-General O’Neil, (Signed) " ROBT. B. LYNCH.
&e. &e. &e. -
Direct : ‘
Robt. B. Lynch,
Sheriff Jarvis, Toronto. #
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No. 18. §
Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor-General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck to the
Right Hon. the Eal of Carxarvox.

Quebec, December 1, 1866.
(No. 204)) = (Received December 17, 1866.)
My Lorp, 3 (Answered, No. 121, December 28, 1866, page 83.)
1 HAVE the honour to transmit, for your Lordship's information, copies of the
Judge's notes in the trials of five Fenians prisoners recently convicted at Toronto.
Motions for new trials in some of these cases have been made, but have not been
decided on. The time, therefore, has not-yet arrived for any interference by the Executive
Government in regard to the exccution or commutation of the sentences.pronounced on
the prisoners. *
I have, &c.
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, (Signed) "-MONCK.
&c. &c. &e.

Copy of Judge WiLson’s Notes in the Queex 7. Joux Quiy.

Indictment under the Foreign Aggression Act. Mackenzie moves to put the trial off.
Grounds not sufficient.

McKENZIE says since the Crown will not consent to the delay, he will challenge
the array us was done yesterday. Prisoner moves to quash the array on grounds stated in
the challenge filed. The Crown takes issuc upon it.

I appoint Richard Porter Stephens, Charles V. Warmoll to be 'Triers.

John McNabb, sworn. [ am Clerk of the Pcace in and for the united counties of
York and Peel. 1 have the Jury Lists and books relating to jurors in my office. My
office is in this block of buildings. I have not._the papers here.

McKenzic moves to put off the trial—refused.

_ Mr. McKenzie moves that I order Mr. McNabb tg produce the books. I have no

authority t6 order it. .

Mr. McKenzie moves that the cause be delayed ten minutes—granted.

He moves that I order Mr. McNabb to produce™the books. I say he has the process
of the Court. If it is disobeyed, I am prepared to punish for disobedience to it.

, McNabb re-called. I have been served with a subpeena to produce these books. I
“~ .Have nc;t the books. I do not produce them. (It is about twenty minutes since he was

served. .

I asked Mr. McKenzie if he_has any motion to wmake against Mr. McNabb, he says
not. No further evidence is given on the challenge. Verdict for the Crown.

John Metcalfe, sworn. 1 amn a private in the Queen’s Own. Same, description as
before.* Government of the United States and Great Britain were at peace. The
prisoner has made a statement to me. I held out no threats, made no promises. He
said, [ am_an Awerican citizen, a sailor by trade, a native of the county of ‘Armagh. I
resided usually in Rochester, my last place of residence was Buffalo. I was arrested first
at 6 A.y1. on Sunday, the 3vd of June, and I was discharged. I was arrcsted a second
time two hours afterwards by some soldiers of the 47th Regiment. At this time I was
drinking in a tavern, and was very drunk, and I was drunk the day before.

Cross-examined. The statement in the book I have was made in June. McNabb.
wrote in the book in my presence. He was a prisoncr undergoing sentence for obtaining
money under false pretences. He is not the best of characters. I will not say prisoner
said, | am a citizen of the United States. In the book it is said, I am an American citizen.
I read over to prisoner what was in the book.

Re-examined. -I understood he meant a citizen of the United States.

George Whale, sworn. I live below and-near Fort Erie on the River-road, three miles
below the Newbigging Farm, just south of the town line. The Fenians came on Friday
night, the 1st of June, between 10 and 11 p.m.  There were 500 or 600 of them. They
took my boots and pants. They wanted me to show them the road to Ridgeway. About 12
they went to the town line, and along the town line 1 mile from the river. They stopped
and camped there all night. On Saturday morning at sunrise they started. I took them
through a cedar swamp.  They could not take their waggon through with ammunition.
" They left it, and ‘threw the ammunition in the water. I saw the prisoner, and was given

in his charge with three others to go ahead. An officer, who wore -a-sword, put “me ‘in

w

* Sce Whalen’s case, as to affair at Ridgeway.
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charge. The officer said, take care of me, and march along. Prisoner was not armed,
the others were. The officer came about 1 o’clock, and said these men (the prisoner and
other three who had me) have been on duty all day and must be relieved. They were
relieved by eight others; I went through the cedar swawmp with them, and asked them
about 6 a.uw. if they would let me go, and they allowed me to 20 home. I saw the prisoner
just before I left standing by a fire speaking to the others. Cannot say what they said. I
did not see him till I saw him here. N )

. Cross-examined. I was with the Fenians. They made me go. I was at .their head.
I cannot say how they marched in the night, but when they started they were in military
array. They said they would not hurt me. The§ were going to Ridgeway. Between
10 and 11 they came to my house. I was put in charge of the prisoner between 11 and 12.
He had a grey coat and low hat. He was in the road when I first saw him. It was
moonlight outside of my housc when I first suw him in the road. I saw him after davlight.
I was given in charge to him. The officer said to prisoncr, and the three that were witn him,
take this man in charge and go ahead. 'The prisoner and the threc men went ahead with
me. They were ahead, 1 believe, and the army behind me. T left about 6 in the morning.
They camped out of the cedar swamp. I swear the prisoner is the man I marched with.
I cannot say he was forced to go. -

Edward Armstrong, sworn. I belong to the Welland Battalion. I saw prisoner at
Fort Erie at 3 .., on Saturday, the 2nd day-of June.  After the fight, the prisoner helped
to take me prisoner as we came out of the house. He rode a grey horse and was armed.
He bad a gun. After they took us, about eighteen of the Welland Battalion, they took
our guns and belts from us, formed ‘us two deep, and took us to the fort. They had
two or three flags. As we were being'marched up the road, the prisoner rode to where they
had a large green flag and dismourited ; soon after I saw him ride up to us, and he went to
the fort where we were taken. I saw him two or three times after. I saw him on Sunday
about 6 a.M. at Fort Erie. He was then a prisoner. He is the man I saw there.

Cross-examined. It -was about 4 p.m. on Saturday I saw prisoner. He was with us
when we marched. I took him to be an officer from the way he gave command. I cannot
say he was drunk. Ile had a good deal to say. He seemed more excited than the rest.
There were 500 or 600 men marched up with us. There were three others with him in
the boat, whom I could not well recognize ; one, I think, 1 did. This man is the only

.one I could swear to; when I went into gaol, the turnkey ranged them by the wall, and
I recognized the prisoner, and said he was the man I saw at Fort Erie armed. No one
pointed prisoner out to me. He was the man 1 saw at Fort Erig armed. Last time I
wert I pointed ont the prisoncr. 1 did not know prisoner’s namé, 1 pointed him out.
They told me his name was Quin.

- Nelson Forsyth, sworn. I live at Fort Erie. I recognize the prisoner. I saw him on
Saturday, 2nd June. When I first saw prisoner he was standing by a grey horse with a
short rifle. A lump of a Fenian lad wanted the horse ; prisoner struck him with the rifle,
and knocked him over. He seemed a little intoxicated, as far as I could judge. I walked
away. This was about 5 p.u. I saw prisoner about 7 standing guard with another, both
armed with rifles, over Mrs. Bristow's door. She keeps a tavern there. I went up and
spoke to him ; 1 examined his gun, which he handed to me. He showed me how it was
loaded. It was a Spencer breach-loading rifle. He gave me to understand he had come
from Tennessce ; had been in Moseby’s Guerillas, and that the gun had done good service
in tie Southern war. I next saw him on Sunday about 8 .M., and the same one who
was with him, almost_at the same place. I saw Mr. Tupper, a Government Detective,
standing close by them ; he asked if they were Fenians, and I said yes, they were standing
the night before. )

Cross-examined. When be had the horse he seemed intoxicated. This was about 5,
but at ¥ he was straightened up and was cn guard. He was not armed on Sunday when I
saw him. Hec was dressed in a plain common-looking dirty dress and a slouched hat. He

had very little beard. I could recognize him among a thousand. His face was blotched .

more than now; very dirty looking. I think he had grey clothes. His arms were different
from the rest. I am sure he is the man.

E. Tupper; sworn. I was at Fort Erie on the 1st Jure last. I saw the Fenians on
the'way up to the Fort Erie, and back of it. They were armed. I did not see prisoner till
Sunday, the 3rd of June,.opposite -Mrs.-Bristow’s. He was with another man, and [ was

told they were Fenidns, and arrested them. He said hi¢ Had gone over to the other side on -

Friday, and returned that evening. ~He said-he belonged to Rochester.

... -lforenzo Bristow, sworn. 1 am past thirteen. I am a son of Mrs. Bristow, who
lives at Fort Erie. I have seen prisoner at Fort Erie. I saw him on Saturday after the
fight, at 4.r.m. He had a grey horse walking about. He was armed. He had a carbine.
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He was on guard that night at my mother’s house. He made me a present of the grey
horse and I might have the gun. He left the horse in the barn for me, but a man
claimed the horse from Ridgeway, and gave me 2 dollars. He was on guard in the morning
and till the soldiers came.

Cross-examined. He had a wide-rimmed hat. Was sober. Hec was at our house,
from Saturday till Sunday. He was on guard and they lett him. He gave me the horse
before he was taken prisoner. I do not know whose horse it was. Prisoner is thc man.
I saw him first on Saturday between 3 and 4. He had the horsc and was sober. He
remained about our house. He got drunk on Sunday morning and [ think on Saturday.
T got the gun and have it now. it is a breech-loader. . '

Joseph Schryer, sworn. I saw prisoner on Saturday afternoon betwecn 5 and 6, with
Colonel Hoy. enquiring about prisoners the villagers had captured. Prisoner rode a grey
horse and had a Spencer breech-loader. They asked where the prisoners were. I said, in
the Tuag Robb. 'They went and examined the Court-room and found they were not
there.

Cross-exawined. Prisoner had a slouched hat, a long coat. I cannot say he was
mtcxicated. He rode straight. Colonel Hoy rode also. 1 saw him nest in gaol in July
here. I recognized him thc moment 1 saw him. I cannot tell how 1 know him but I do
know him. Prisoner had no uniform.

John Ray, sworn. I saw prisoner on Saturday 2nd Jung, about 4 .. at Fort Erie.
A good manv were with him. e were driven into Lewis Tavern and there taken
prisoners after the fight. Several camc in after we swrendered.  One took meand ordered
me out to fall in as a prisoner. I went out at another door and tried to get away.
Prisoner fcllowed me on a white horse ; he said, step or T will shoot you. He had a short
gun in his hand. He rode in front ana said, if yvou do not fall in as a prisoner I will shoot
vou.

Cross-examined. This was about 4 o'clock. He was cxcited but I caunot say
intoxicated. He had a broad low hat and a arey coat. There were a good many prisoners
and 400 or 500 Fenians who marched us up to the Fort. 1 recognized the prisoner and
McMahon. There was another man in gaol whom [ saw on Friday. The prisoner had
little beard. 1 said to him on Sunday. vou arc the man who drove me in yesterday. He
did not deny it.

‘ Adam King Schofield, sworn. ] am a Lieutenant in Welland Canal Battalion. 1 saw
prisoner first at Fort Erie. at Mrs. Bristow’s, before 6 a.m. I arrested three together.
. Prisoner was one. 1asked where their arms were. They said round the house. Mimmo
went and brought three Fenian rifles.

Cross-examined. . He was in front of Mrs. Bristow's in Fort Erie when I first saw
him. He had a great coat, slouched hat, and brown pants. Isaw him next in gaol. I
recognized the prisoner at once.

Case for the Crown. .

Objects there is no evidence 1o show heis a citizen of the United States.

Mr. McKenzie objects there is no preof of his being a citizen of the United States.

He makes the same objections as in Havden’s and Whalen’s cases.

Verdict, ““ Guilty.” ’

Mr. McKenzie moves in arrest of judgment on the same grounds as in Hayden's and
in Whalen’s case. ’ ’

Sentence to be executed on the 13th day of December next.

(Signed) - J. W. WILSON, J.C.P.

-

Cory of Judge WiLsox’s Notes in" Tt Quren v. THoMas ScHooL.

- Indictinent under the Foreign Aggression Act. Rwo sets of counts: lst, three against
him as a citizen of. the United States; the 2nd, three as a British gubject.

McKenzie objects that there are two scts of counts. The Crown should now elect
which they go on, and that the prisoner ought not to be called upon to answer both.

Overruled. -

John Metcalfe, sworn. I am a private in the Queen’s Own [see evidence in Whalen’s
case as to affair at -Ridgeway]. 1 know the Governments of Great Britain and the
United States are at peace. The prisoner made a statement to me. I held out no threats
or promises. He said, I am a native of the county Tyrone, in Ireland. My usual placé of
" residence is-Buffalo.. . .work as a puddler. I was arrested in a house in Fort Erie, on
Saturday the 2nd day of June, between 8 and 9 a.m., while talking to—-two women in the _

>
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gous?. kI crossed over the river in a small boat by myself on Friday afternoon about
o’clock.

Cross-examined. It was about the end of June he made the statement. - I cannot
tell what part of the gaol this was taken. I read it over to him since and he said it was
correct. I did not read from the book but from a copy of it which I have not. I referred
to the book this morning before I came into Court. I have seen the book since. I saw
McNab write down what they said. The statement was read to every prisoner after- it

« was taken and they assented to its being correct. The statements were taken that any
that were not guilty might be let go. I cautioned him that the statement would be used
as' evidence against him. I should not like to swear against this prisoner without

. referring, to the book. Tread to prisoner from this book in October last (the book was
produced). ~ . : ' _ :

Re-examined. I read his statement to the prisoner from this book in October. The *
prisoner admitted it was correct. “ Was arrested on Saturday morning 2nd June, 1866,
between 8 dnd 9 o’clock in a house at Fort Erie, talking to a -couple of women in the
house ; crossed over from Buffalo on Friday 1st of June, at 4 o'clock p.m., in a small
boat by myself.” ‘I read this over and he said it was correct. ‘ '

Cross-examined. The prisoner has been in as one of the Fenian prisoners since June.

Dennis Sullivan, sworn. I was at Fort Erie at the raid. I saw prisorier at the
Lower Ferry on the 1st of June. He was under arms. 1 was a prisoner under the prisoner.
He was armed with a rifle and fixed bayonet. -Tsaw him brought to the Ferry Dock on

- Saturday as a prisoner, : : , -

Cross-examined. I am in the Royal Canadian Rifles. 1 do.not know who arrested
him. I saw him first at the Lower Ferry about balf-past 4 A.m., Ist. June. . I was held
prisoner there for two hours ‘and a half. I did not notice his dress. e had a cloth cap.
Prisoner and seven men and a sergeant had ‘me in custody. He.was sober then but he
was drunk on the Saturday. Barney Dunn and McGrath were on guard with them.. .I
was made a prisoner on the 2nd of June, about 3 o’clock .M. On the 1st of June he had a
fur cap, on the 2nd of June he had a straw hat. About 10 a.m. I saw prisoner, he seemed
tired and sat down, seemed under the influence of liquor.-~ He had a rifle on Friday with -
a bayonet. He heard 1 had been arrested on my way down, and when I came to the

. Lower Ferry the guard was detailed to keep me prisoner.. The prisoner was one of the
guard. He was sober then but was drunk on Saturday. He was guard over me. off
and on. o : , ' . T

Joseph Schryer, sworn. I was at Fort Erie on the 1st of June, 1866. I saw-the
Fenians marching on the bank of the river towards the village armed, marching principally
in a body, between 5 and 6 o’clock. I saw prisoner between 8 and 9 in the morning
armed with a Fenian rifle and fixed -bayonet. There was a military escort sent from the
Fenians to bring in stragglers. My attention- was called to a scuffie. On approaching I
found the prisoner drunk and two men were trying to take him with them, but he was

" unwilling to go. He had his rifle and fixed bayonet, and came near sticking one of them.

I saw him on Saturday about 10 A.». brought in a prisoner. He was sober then. I

Cross-examined. I saw him between 8 and 9. The men who tried- to take him
appeared tb be armed-——so was he. . e ' _
Edward Henderson sworn. I am a- privaté in the Welland Canal Battery. I have
seen the prisoner. I saw him on Saturday, the 2nd of June, about 1 o’clock .M. in the
_.Court-house at Fort-Erie. 'We bad brought in'a prisoner. I asked where he came from. "
He said from Toronto to look for work. He had left Toronto on Friday morning.
, Cross-examined.. He was sober then—about 1 p.M. He was then in the Court-
house, a Fenian prisouer, in custody of Acting-Master Burgess. of the Naval Brigade.
Re-examined. The villagers brought in the prisoners there for safety.
Case for the Crown. . ’ ‘ o
James Conlin, sworn. I reside in Buffalo. I know prisoner. I saw him on 31st of
May, on Thursday, in Buffalo, under the influence of liquor. He called at my
house at 6 r.m. under the influence of liquor. -He wanted me to drink from a °
bottle he had. I wanted him to go home, but he was unwilling. I took him in to
‘tea. He took some, but did' not eat! I said then, Totn, go home to your boarding-
house. .He wanted me to drink. I took him part of the way home, but he met with,
some people, and he went with them. T went to the Fenian Head-Quarters. On my
return I met him very drunk. I said, [ thought you had gone home. I said, go home
“or you will be somewhere you ought not to be. He said thats so.- I said go home, and I
led him up Ohio Street, but he was so drunk I was ashamed, and he fell. I met him
again with his bottle soon after, and about 12-0’clock on Thursday night, I saw a party
" of Fenians marching along. I met prisoner with Bernard Riley leading him alongI drunk.
T (@R e e e . L
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Iisaid, he is not fit to go over. He said, I am going to send him over. I followed, and at
the landing [ saw prisoner drunk. I said, now is your chance to get away. I tried to
prevent his going, but they pushed him into the boat. I jumped in and tried to get him
ont, but | was pushed out and the prisoner pushed into the hold of the canal boat. I
saw lim on Fiiday afternoon, about 3 .M., on Mackinnan Street, in Buffulo. I said, is it
possible vou are here? He said, yes, I ran away from them. He is a quiet hard-working
man, but diinks bard. Is not very bright. 1s easilyled. He is very foolish when drunk,
and hard to keep track of him. '

Cross-examined. He has been in the Buffalo Ironworks. There are some Fenians
in the mill. One of the men who worked in the mill had told of him. On Friday after-
noon he was diunk. There was a great deal of excitement and a great many civilians.
The first boat crossed about 1 or 2. I saw three boats cross. There were boxes con-
taining arms, which were broken open in the boats. Most of the crowd were Irish, and
the English, and Scotch, and Americans had to keep quiet. I do not think any appeal
to that crowd would have been of any use. They pushed me ashore because I was not
a good-enough Fenian for them. I amnpot Irish. 1am anative of Glasgow in Scotland.
I suppose they thought when prisoner was sobered-up he would be of some use to them.

Ann Jenkins, sworn. Llive in Buffalo. I am mairried. My husband’s name is John
Jenkins. He is boss in the Union Ironworks in Buffalo. 'We have been nearly three
years in Buffalo. I know of prisoner for about six months. My acquaintance with him.
is,slight.  When he is drunk he loses all command of himself. I remember the 1st of
June. I saw prisoner between 3 and 4 p.M. He was intoxicated then. 1 did not see
him. afterwards.

Cross-examined. My husbénd is boss. There are a great many men svorking'there.

Some crossed to Canada. The mills were: not running on Friday.. I cannot say on- - ~

Saturday. The men had gone ta Canada. I cannot say whether they had- crossed: or
were going to cross, but I think it was Friday. 1 do not remember excitement on
Thursday. Prisoner never. came. back to- work... Prisoner came and inquired for my
husband. He was drunk. He acted. * quite simply.” He moved in a state of intoxica~
tion. He moved about in walking. I looked after him a few moments. He was
staggering. .
" - Kate Jenkins, sworn. Iam twelve.. A daughter of John Jenkins. I knew prisoner
for about six months. I bhad seen him many times. I heard the Fenians passed over am
Friday morning; on that afternoon between 3 and 4 o’clock I saw him. I cannot telk:
whether he was drunk or sober. I saw him, on the street. )

Cross-examined. I saw-nothing with- him; he was alone. It was the day after they
had: gone over. I saw no gathering on Thursday. 1 saw him on the last day of school:
thati week. It was Friday.

Re-examined. I heard father' and: mether speaking of prisoner that evening; but E
said. nothing about it till I came here. .. ’

John Jenkios, sworn. I superintend one branch of the works at the mill. The:

Puddling Department, which employs 150 men: and boys. About 30U men in the milk -

The puddlers struck in May, because of a reduction in.wages, and they were on the strike
all May. I have known prisoner since 1859. He bas worked with me since, except ong
year. Heis an industrious-man addicted to liquor sometimes. He is a fool then. When
sober he is quiet. His character is peaceable. I did not see him on Friday or Saturday.
He:came to my house on Thursday: He was.affected by liquor.

Cross-examined. This was about 3' o’clock. The Fenians were talking of going .

over.. He told me the Fenians had been talking of going over, but, be was not. I'was at
home on Thursday. - The prisoner had noti been at work from the 1st of May. He was
running about the street. Some of thé. men from the mill went over. Some two or three.
I had not seen him from that time till now:

James Quin, sworn. L reside in: Buffalo. I work about as I can get work. I know
prisoner. His character is.good. He-is fond ofiliquor. Barney Riley came to my houses
. about 4 on Friday, and tapped.me on. the shoulder and said, are you ready ? He said yes:
- He was drupk then.. I did!not see him.again. I canoot say where they went. He was

fulkof liguor. My boy could lead: him: where: he liked. :

" Cross-examined.. 1arney Riley did:not say: were-he was going.- Prisoner did not say
where he had been: or was: gning, I have seen: Barney since. Black Rock is twe or three.
miles from Buffalo. Prisoner brought,a\ can' of beer from Mrs. Norton’s:ta oun house,
Not i word: was, said: about.Canada or: the Fenians, They walked off together. T am. ngt
certem what day it was Thuxeday, Frday, or Shturday. I think Friday, the day aftep
Bamey went away. I heavd it from the: papers.. The:day after’l. saw the Fenians had
gan: $0/Canada, from. ths: papaw , - -

: L
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Re-examined. I think it was Friday. -
Close of the Defence. , . ' o '
- “Guilty” on the fourth and fifth comnts, *“Not Guilty” on the other counts.
Mr. McKenzie is understood"to have made the same objections to my charge as in the-

.other cases. The Crown understanding that ithis was his intention in all the cases.

Mr. McKenzie moves in arrest of* judgment, on the same growiids as in the last :and
former cases- of conviction, and that"the offences.charged in the fourth and fifth .counts
are not offences created by the second seétion of the Act. That the dffences ‘in the fourth
and fifth counts are distinct offences, and that a joint judgment carinot pass upon them. -

Crown does not reply. ' - o -

1 do not concur. - : ,

Prisoner sentenced to be executed on the 13th day of December next.

- ‘ 7 . (Signed) ~ J. W. WILSON,J.C.P.

—iel e

Cory fof Judge WiLson’s Notes in the QUEEN v. Wirr1ad Spaviy.

a
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Indictment under the Foreign Agression Act. -

. John Metcalfe, sworn. -1 wasa private in the Queen’s Own. 1 was at-the battle of
Ridgeway on Saturday 20d June last. ~The Queen’s Own, the 13th Batallion, the R. Com-
pany for Caledonia, and another-company. We were in uniform. We werc. attacked by

“the Fenians at Lime Ridge. They were in considerable force, armed. 1 saw Lieutenant
‘McEachren wounded a little in front of me, and I saw him dead afterwards. A man was
-shot by my side. " I am employed now at the Old Gaol where the prisoners are. I know .
prisoner. . I'made no threats, no promise. I cautioned him thgt anything he might say

would be used as evidence against him. He told"me he was an Awmerican citizen, a native
of New York; a gilder by trade; a Roman Catholic in religion. He came from a place
in New York called Howeve, near Rochester. = He-crossed over from Buffalo to Fort Exie
in a skiff, on Thursday, .the 31s4 May, between 6 and 7 in the afternoon. He was
arrested on Saturday, between 10 and l'2,<'f§e.lock; in acider house. He was asleep at the-

time of. his arrest. He did not know what partof Canada he was in at the time. He did

not know Fort Erie. A man by the name of Jyhin Hughes cross d over-with him; a

‘man he did not know, and paid his passage over. He said he had been in the American’ "

Cross-examined. Iam a turnkey in gaol.”. I was -not directed to take these state- -
ments. I did it as a matter of duty. I know it as a fact that Great Biitain is at peace .
with the United States. Prisoner is deaf. He did not tell me how he gnt deaf.- He said
Hughes and he came in a skiff with a man they did not know. 1 marched there with my
officer, and did as I was bid. I fired. I cannot tell how many shcts I fired. It com- ~
menced at 7 .., and lasted over an hour. On my way from Ridzenay I sometimes went -

“. " with one, sometimes with another. I-did not get to Fort Erie till Monday.

~ John Stockdale, sworn. I live in Bertie, about a mile from: Néwbiggins. I saw
prisoner alone in front of my house, on the road, on_ Saturday m.ruing’ about 4 o'clock,
.-, He had what | suppose was a Fenian rifle; It had had g bright barrel with.a bayonet

on it. I saw the rifle allerwards; he.gave it to me. Jos. Newbizuin und William Miller

took him prisoner. They wanted 0 know where his arms werc; he suid “he had noue.

. They saw the rifle. I handed it to Captain King. I went to the 1oud id the morning.

He came up to m® and hacded me the rifle to take care of. - He asicd it I had any place
hé could lie down, for he was tired. I said I had, and took li:i‘to my cider house,

© where be laid down on tiie straw, and I gave him a blanket to «cover him, and shut the

door and left bim there.: He said, « I bave been out all last night.” 1 said, # Have you
been with the Fenians 2 ” He said,  Yes.” He told .me he ha leit them at a place
which I kiow was down on the town line, between Bertie and Wilivu:hby. This -would _
be three miles from Lime Ridge. The Fenians left the camp in a body between 9 and 10

" in the evening of the lst of June. They passed my place, and cucamped about ‘three- . .

miles further on. He said he laid by the fence till the main body passed, and he then
mtwned. U o . :
" Cross-examined. [ live in Bertie, three miles and-a half bilow Fort Brie, on the

* siver bank. 1'saw no rifles or bayonets but the one prisoner had. - He said he picked it up

about a mile below my house on the road. He §aid he had been with them, and.I think
be said” he was not a Fenian. I saw no others .at.that time but the prisoner. 'There had

-heen four there.at my house wanting liquor.to.drink before~-he came. :He was perfectly -~ - '

" “saber. 1 think I gave him a glass of cider. I think he had fo bicasfast. He liid down

and went. to sleepin my cider house. I'saw lots of arms.about the camp at Ni@wbiggixs.

=
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He said there were a dozen arms wheré he picked his up. Prisoner is hard of hearing.
He said he was hard of hearing. He had been in the American army—in the artillery.
Had lost his hearing. He said he did not know the Fenian watchword, and he was afraid
he would be challenved and shot. Hé said he had been with them the night before, and
got away from them that morning  According to his story, he was with them all night.
I think he said all night. - -
Re-examined. He said he had found the rifie about a mile down from my house.
T understood he was afraid of our force as well as the others, from his decafness.
Joseph Newbiggin, sworn. I have seen the prisoner before, I saw him in Mr. Stock-
dale’s cider house, about 9 in the morning. He was lying asleep. He woke him up. I
made a prisoner of him. I saw a Fenian rifle in the cider house which I understood

y belonged to him. Their rifles had bl'l"‘ht barrels, and were different from any 1 had seen.

The locks were marked “ Bridesburgh. A lots of them about after. 1 saw between
250.and 300 rifles destroyed, some were burned, some smashed against trecs. 1 supposed

~\they had more rifles than men. The rifle be had had a b'lyonct oir it. I did not hear

vhat he said. I cannot-say I heard him make any statement.

rifles from our farm. If T had scen any I should have taken them from hin:.
William Miller, sworn. 1 was at Stockdale’s on the morning of Saturday
The prisoner was there. He said he had no arms. btoclxdale handed

King, and said it was the prisoner’s, but not so loud as prisoner coy

e 2nd
rifle to
hearit. I

Captétx

ing Schoﬁeld sworn. I am a Lieutenant in the Welland attallon I saw

rifle brought out: 2
the conversatlon The W. C. on that afternoon. (McKenzie
objects that prisoner is not respousible for anything that was done after he was taken.)
The Crown answer they do not charge him with what they did, but offer it as evidence
from which their intentions in coming are to be inferred. (McKenzie further objects that
nothing they did while he was not present is evidence against him.) The Fenians attacked
the W. C. Battalion and the Naval Brigade at Fort Erie. The battalion was 54 men
and 3 officers. The Fenians were several hundred. Captain King was shot through the
leg, below the koee, and it has been amputated, and four others Fergus "Schofield was
shiot through the leg, which has been amputated ; John Bradley shot through the leg,
about the knee, and since amputated ; Robert Thomas and: John Haverton shot through
the legs, but not amputated. We were in uniform.

Case for the Crown. -

McKenzie objects there is no evidence on the first and third counts As to the third
count, there is no evidence he was in arms against Her Majesty. No evidence of his intent
to levy war. No statute in force. The statute in force when this offence was committed
was repealed.

Defence. o

John Hughes, sworn. I know prisoner. . I met him in New York city. He had
engaged last.April to work in Honeoye, in the state of New York. He left that on the
23rd or 24th May. Prisoner and I went to Rochester. Then we walked to Buffalo.
Priscner could not get work in Rochester. We went first to the Falls; then went to
Buffalo, and got there on the 31st May. Prisoner called on one James Dandridge, who is
a carver and 0llder, to see if he could vet work. Dandridge works with Teller 'and Corning.
I did not see Dandndge myself. Prisoner did ot get work there was no room for him

to work there. Dandridge-gavz him three dollars. As we were passing on to Buffalo a -

man beckoned to us. and asked if we wanted work. He said, * if .you want w ork you can
get it on the Erie and Ontario road, and a dollar a-day Canada money.” Junius was the
man who called us over. Two men gave us an order to pass over the ferry to Canada on
Thursday.” We went and went to the-superintendent’s house, but did vot see him. A man
asked what we came for. We told him, and he referred us to the fcreman, whom we saw.
We said we would work for a while at least. He sent a boy to take us to Smith’s, to ask
him to board us. We had supper, and slept at Smith’s that night. There was then no
excitement. Smith told his wife to get us breakfast, but while it was gettmn- ready the
Fenians came over-and eat everything up. I was going out, to go to the foreman’s, but
two men with guns prevented me. 1 remained over an hour, we could not get out. I
said I wanted to go to work. They said there would be no work done there that day,
except what they did. After we got out, I tried to fi d the foreman. I and Slavin were
partly in the woods, and laid down not far from Smith’s. "We wandered about all day.

s
Cross-examined. I saw the rifles on our farm. No stranger was allowed to t e’
]

>

I- did not hear much of -
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" T parted with S]avih at 5 P He ssid we had better get to some house, for i pickets

are thrown out we may- get shot. Isaid we had better get into some house and hide for

+ the night.. 'We went to the ferry; but having no money the ferryman would not take us

back. 1'saw hundreds of armed men about. I supposed they were Fenians. Prisoner-
left ‘me about 7 or 8 to sleepin a.barn. "I saw prisoner next in the tig “under arrest.
Prisoner was under ligtior on Friday. He got it at Smith’s. He could walk. . I saw arms. -
scattered about on Friday. Boys were picking them up.. We were kept in Smith’s an

~ hour and a half.

Cross-examined. 1 was taken prisoner by both parties. Slavin came on a ferry-boat, .

"not in a skiff. - No one paid our bill. ““We had a bill to pay.* We did not pay-our ferriage.

I .do not know-who paid it. - We went to the foreman; then to Smith’s. We got over
about 5 or 6 in the evening of Thursday, and slept at Smith’s. We got up at 5 a.M., and
first saw the Fenians threc-quarters of an hour afterwards. - I was arrested at.Fort Erie on
Saturday morning. I had not gone through a pond of water when [ was arrested.” It was
one mile and a half from where I parted from Slavin. . I slept out all night in the woods.
I had no pistol. Prisoner had no rifie. | 1 had wandered about all day, laid down in the .

- woods -sometimes. No guard on the ferry. [ had heard of the LFenians, but I did not

belong to them. [ am an Irishman. ~lbad known prisoner only from the time we left. 1

. was arrested between 9 and 10 on Saturday morning. I threw down nothing before I was

,,ﬁ

-arrested. ' '

James Dandridge, sworn. 1 residein Buffalo. I ami an ornamental designer, ‘and*
work with Teller and Corning. - I know prisoner. 1 first knew him in 1857 or 1859.

Prisoner was a preparer of picture frames for gilding. He was 4 steady man, a first-rate
-, worker. ‘We worked together in Boston in the same shop. I next knew him at Baddu
" Ferry, in the army of the United States. I next saw him on the 31st May last, at Buffalo. -

He called to see if I could get him work where I was. I gave him. the address of another

; gilder.” He did not get work. " I gave him' three dollars to help him, being out of means

and out of work. He had said he thought he could get work on a railway. I advised him |

* to get it, and work .his way to Toronto, where he. could get work at his own business. I

 know Toronto workmen. They did not use wachinery .at his branch of business.

" He left to go to get work. He is not a man likely to join this.-. He is sympathetic and

kind friend. - He left at three in the afternoon, saying he would look for work.
Cross-examined.- I am an Englishman. Have been in the United Stategggixteen
year§:* Buffalo-had then a great many people, Fenians. I asked him if he was®%né. He

-said he was not. I gave him three dollars, and that was the last I saw of him.

_ Mrs."Apa Smith, sworn. I live in Fort Erie. I lived there on the 1st of June last.

| My husband keeps 2 hotel there. I saw prisoner and Hughes first at 5 p.x.<on the evening,

E of the 31st.of May. There was a boy who.brought them to my house : he was a stranger.,

The boy said he had been sent by Mr. McLeod to get these men to board, for they were
going to work on the railway. McLeod had sent others. They had several drinks they -
paid for, some they did not. They had supper. -We had only four or five boarders there.
Hughes said to' Slavin not to pay for the drinks. I then askéd my husband if it was right.
He said, yes, if they are going to work to-morrow. -We had been paid for'a few drinks
they had in the forepart of the evening. Prisoner went to bed'about 10 in the evening. I
‘saw them next morning about 5 o’clock. ‘We were routed up by being-told the Fenians were -

- there. I awoke them, and they"got up. It was-about 5 o'clock. ~The Fenians got to our

house about 5 o’clock., They came in and ordered breakfast. They said they would arrest
every man. They placed a guard over every door. I got breakfast for thém. - They said
I must get it. They did not leave me much! The Fenians said to Slavin and -Hughes, -
who were cutting up, and saying they were not Fenians, “if you do not shut up, we will
take you prisoners.” Hughes-and Slavin were the prisoners of the Fenians, and T heard -
them say. they were not Fenians. One of them, the prisoner or Hughes, said there will be
no work done here, we had better go to the other side. 1 bgard them say they had been
hired- by McLeod to go to work next day. He used to hire men. I thought they had
been drinking. They got breakfast at 8, both.. T waited on prisoner myself. T did not
see them after 20 minutes past 8. I saw men of Fort Erie on Friday afternoon. carrying
rifles to the Custom-house. Rifles and canteens.were lying-about all Friday and Saturday.
The parties who brought me here were looking for McLeod. - o

' Cross-examined, Slavin and Hughes were broaght to my house by a boy. They

" toldyme so.” They had. been working on that road the week before. I think they were °

working, on the road the same_ week. . Some of the men boarded .with us. One man by
the name of Mack, used to board a-week or twp before ‘this. I cannct mention one man °

." - who boarded with us on the 31st Mays I 'did 6t see McLeod for a week before that time,

nor since. ' Slavin and Hughés said they had Been sept by a mamby, the name of McLeod.”

-~ R 1
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Hughes, I think, said so in Slavin’s %;esence. The four or five who boarded. with-us then

.axere not railway workers, ' They were not ‘engaged, at that time. “The only two that J¢ft
" ourhouse on -the 1st-June were -Slavins and Hughes. “The wen who cape across were
Fenians. Slavins and Hughes said, they were. po ‘Fenians, and were trying to make. theit
.way.out, -The Fenians would not let them. “While the Fenians were at breakfast they
avere kept prisoners. -They-took breakfast with a-few of the Fenians. I knew of nothipg
tokeep them there after breakfast. The prisoner atid ‘Hughes did not leave till 10 o’clock.
I ‘heard one say to the other, you had better keep. the three dollars. - Slavin, I think,
~ spent 50 cents after this. “"We trustedsthem on the faith of their working on the railway.

fhe Fenians' went away between 9 and 10. ‘A few, remained abolt. It 'was towards

.evening the arms were scattered about. 'The guns -had bright barrels. Our house was .
. searched for Fenian arms on Sunday. -They found nothing but me. 1 did not see Slavin
.or Hughes. ' ' . o b, ' )

. Re-examined. Neither Hughes norSlavin had-arms, and seemed strangers. Itisnpt .

" .usual to remember names. People did ‘board- there, although T do not remember their

mames. My husband kecps . the tiine of the boardets. I attend to the kitchen and bar

' sometimes. . » ' L

. S - * 'Defence. ' . ‘

Verdict “ guilty ”’ on the 2nd count, * not guilty ” on the st and 3rd counts.

5 McKenzie moves in arrest of judgment on the following grounds : o
R .That it appears on the face of the indictment, that the offence-charged against the

" JFisoner was"committed in the county of ‘Welland, and the indictment therefore could not
be ‘legally preferred against him under the statute 29 & 30 Vict., cap. 4, sec. 3, in this

- ®ourt. It being a Court for the United counties of York and Peel. The authority of the

. statute being restricted to single counties, and that the verdict and the indictment ave
.dllegal. ‘ ! . ’

' +2. That the prisoner is charged in the 2nd count with an offgnce’ different from that
created by the statute against citizens of a foreign State, and arffuthorized by theZ statute
against such citizens. . That the offence charged in the 2nd count of the indictment, was
committed on the 2nd ddy of June, and before the passing of the Act passed on the
10th August, 29 & 30 Vict., cap. 4. ' Lo '

Mr. McKenzie meant, he says,"to take the same objections as was taken in the
'Queen v. Parry. .The Crown say they so understood it, and ho has the same ground here
taken. [ do not see anything in the objection taken in arrest of judgment. ‘

~ Sentence, that the prisoper be executed on the 13th day.of December next. :

S : (Signed) ~J. 'W. 'WILSON, J.C. P.
.. . .

Cory of Jﬁ,dge WiLson’s N%bes in the QUEEN v. WitLiaM HAYDEN.

.- Indictment under the Fereign Aggress'io.n Act.

/
A,

John Metcalfe, sworn. ‘I am a private in the Queen’s Ownz T was at the battle of
Ridgeway, on Saturday, the 2nd of June, at about 7 .M. The Queen’s Own, the 13th
Battalion, and the Caledonia Rifles and the York Rifles—1 think, all Canadian volunteers,
and all in- uniform—we were attacked by the Fenians at Lime Ridges; I cannot say the
number, but in considerable force. They were armed : they fired on us, - I saw Ensign
McEacliren wounded, in front where I was, and T saw him dead afterwards. T saw a min
shot dead by my side. The force which we met were embodied, and in arms, and called
themselves Fenians. I saw prisoner in gaol. ' I made'no threats; no promises. I gave
him the usual caution. He said he was an American ;citizen ; used to work on steam-
boats, and a native of Louisville, Kentncky. . He had no home; he last came' from
Buffalo. Great Britain and the United States are at peace. and were so then.

.Joseph Newbigging, sworn. . I live near Fort Erie; “am a son of Thomas Newbigging,
©n the morning of the st of June, 1866, about daylight, I saw the Fenians come from
- the state-of New York, and cross in four canal-boats, towed by two j;ugs,«aﬂth’e’y’_—_lp@ded

. on. this side, at the Shingle Dock, or Lower Ferry. They appeared to be 700 or 80D “Kg
were in plain clothes ; some had green tunics; spme American unifql-g; undress ; some
partly trimmed in green. ‘They carried arms, and were drmed. T saw_the prisoper that
dax, between 5 and 6 in the evening. He was dressed in plain clothes ; a green veil .
ahout his neck. He had a cartridge-box, stung by a belt. around his waist. “He had g g3,
Penian rifle and bayonet. - He rode a roan-coloured horse, which I ldgrnt belonged f¢7the - "

M. B. Railway Company. He spoke to Cranmer Ricely, who stood near me. . He sajd,
. “give me the rest of that money.* He piiﬂed qut ‘his .pocket-b(SOk, and said, “I have
’ L. - . * » . R4 .

L)
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but very little left ; I gave you nearly all’ I had Bbfore »*  The prisoner said, You have
lots of money.” He gave prisoner 80°0r'85 cent; in'10 and'5 ‘cent pieces. Ricely asked
him if he would not Leep the boys away. . Pnsoner said he would now he had something-
tortreat- them with. That was' the first’and last time I‘saw’ him. . This happened at .
Ricely’s honse, which is 1} mile" from where'they landed. I was there at tea. He'is' "
a farmer there. 1f was between 5-and 6 -in the afternoon. We were sitting outsxde, w1th

- ome William Miller. - The prisoner rode to the’ gate, and we went to meet him.

Cross-examined. ' Most of’ them were armied. Some wore green tunics, but most had? .
civilians’ clothes. Prisoner- rode down towards the Shingle Dock when he left the lane”
leading from Ricely’s-house. I saw prisoner in Toronto; I picked him out at once.
Ricely’s house is about two miles from" the Fenian camp.. There is no'road across from
his place to the camp. You go by the river road and Anderson’s road, which is over’
2 miles; straight across would be 14 mile. He was alone. No work going on the rpad.
Fifteen horses. belonging to the N. 8. Railway Company, -at’ pasture at Mr O’Conoell’s,
near Fort Erie, were taken by the Fenians., This was one of them: Ricely said in-
prisomer’s presence that he had- been'there four times that. day before for' money. The
rifle.he carried .was: the same as the Fenians carried’; they had steel ‘mounting g/and bright
barrels. Ours have brass mounting. They'left- our* farm in the night of the “Ist of J une.
-When I saw prisoner ‘the. main body'were onour farm. I had Just gone from there to
Rieely’s.

)C’}eor«e Graham; sworn.. T hve 3 milés' from Fort Erie; on the Anderson road, half a
mile beyond Rigely’s.: 1'saw the prisoner‘on: Friday, the Ist of June, about 5 p.y. 1 AW |
prisoner, as'1 supposed, first’ at“Ricely’s! . I saw him on a black<roan horse. He passed
_me riding furiously. I saw him afterwards standing at, a shoemaker’s shop, in front of my
place. T put my cowynp, an&l\weut rover t him.. He was arined with a rifle, having a
. bright ‘barrel and a- Hayonet ﬂ\e%({ the sanfe'kind of rifle the Fenians had. He asked me
what I was. I sdid, “ An Englishman.” He said, “ We have-come over, and the country is
taken; the hated Saxon rule i, extinet.” He asked for a quarter of a dollar. I said
quarters were scarce. .He said, £ ..) Get: it?” in'a‘commanding tone; #1 w ant to get some- -
thing to drink.” I went to my house, and-got it, and gave it'to him. He gave it to a
little girl there. He left then. " He. appeared to be a little uinder the influence of liquor. -
Heshad-a kind of green veil or sashround his‘néck. . -

Cross-examined. [ saw him-on Sunday next.’ I' recognized him at once; but I did -
not!point’ him ‘out—another ‘man did it. I‘live-half a mile beyond Ricely's. He was '
alone at the times I saw him. He was a little under the influence of liquor. He said,

. “The country is taken ; the Saxon rule is extinet.” "It was after he said this, I think, he
- asked:for the.quarter. - I do not know when'théy left the camp. I heard the ﬁnng when'
they withdrew the pickets. [ saw prisoher néxt ’m July.

Re-examined. He was not much intoxicatéd} he knew what he was saying.

William Miller, sworn. - I live 5 miles below Fort Erie, on the bank of the river. - L
wasateMr. Ricely’s 14 ‘mile back' from’ the Lower” Ferry, on the Anderson’s road. I had "
heard-of the Fenians crossing. I saw’prisuner four times on the Ist of June; first at
Mr:-Ricely’s:. He rode up to'the gate; andcalléd me up, and asked me to get him - -some=-
thing to eat. This was about 2 o’clock. He was'on horseback ; had a rifle and bayonet -
such-as-the Fenians use. 1 got him something to eat, and he went: away. In about three--
quarters of an hour he came back, riding and’ arthed as before. He rode into the yard,
dismounted, turned the horse loose, came up to Rl&ly, and asked for 2 dollars. He said, -~
« ] want to treat myself.” Ricely gave him some money ; hé asked what they had come

- over for. Prisoner said, “ We have come over to take Canada;” or, ¢ We have taken it; -
and ‘we are going to free Ircland.” I understobd he meant the Fenians. Herode awdy, .

_Abbut an .hour after he came back;. .as before.” He wanted' the rest of that money, the;:’ (

- saidy Rlcely gave him more money.. ‘He tas on horseback, and armed. Iafterwards

_ saw-him- going in the direction of the camp.. I saw othérs straggling about. ~ One of i

the«times. he was there, foun others came.and, wanted somethmo to eat—they ‘were 11
armed—and igot.it. After they finished,. they tum.ed to. pnsoner, ‘Hud asLed if fbat wab 7s

. satisfactory: He said it was, 'y

Cross-examined.. These,men went away before he did. I cannot say they recogmzed ¥,
eacli other. They. talked together vqlth the ﬁsoner while they were there. Ricely talked 7
with them. I thought, he. was a,. httle in ‘Ii uor.”."He sat. his horse very well. F did ‘ngt.” i
- knew his talk was, wild., 1. thxpk he had all his senses about him: I do not knoyw when,_;

¥ herwas arested next 8ayy. h;x;}m gao here i Jily. I recogmzed him at ane, aqa; s
- fewsatkers.. I haye.nq, dOllkP he,i ,,.IP?,I}-_ _ v ;
- Gasaufor-the .Crown. o o

.
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s A . Defence.. . <. S
o McKenzie reads affidavit, by consent, of character. Good. Was a soldier in the
N United States’anay in 1863, . , - ' < .

‘ ' ‘McKenzie objects to my charge, on the grounds. taken in-Parry’s case. I should not -
SN have told the jury that it lay on-the prisoner to show-he had business there. I should not

' have said, * Can there be any doubt prisoner was at Lime Ridge or Fort Erie 2’ I should
have told the jury that his riding up and down 2 miles from the camp was strong evidence .
that his object was private plunder, and that the Crown had to show by direct evidence

i ‘ that prisoner was connected with the Fenians. 1 did not tell the jury that it lay on the

prisoner to show he had business there, except in illustrating how a man may relieve .
himself from imputation; and I told the jury that a man needed not, unless he chose, to
give any account of himself, ' CL o '

Verdict, Guilty. - ' A -

McKenzie moves in arrest of judgment: That it appears on the face of the indict-
ments that the several offences charged against the prisoner were committed in the county
of Welland ;-and the indictment could not be legally preferred against him in these
United Counties, under the 29 and 30 Vict., cap. 4, sec. 3, in this Court, being a Court"
for these United. Counties—the authorily of the statute being confined to one county
AR. and R.158, Rex v. Hewitt); that the prisoner is charged in several counts of offences
different from those created by the statute against citizens-of a foreign State; and in the

i ~ third count he is charged with having committed a direct-act of hostility against the

“ : Queen not mentioned inthe Act at all ; that it appears that the offences were committed

- on the'lst and 2nd June, 1866, before the passing of the statute 29 and 30 Vict., cap. 4,
sec. 3. ) : ‘ ' .

Sentenced to be executed on the 13th day of December next.
: : (Signed) 'J; W. WILSON, J. C. P.

Cory of Judge WivLson’s Notes in the Queew v. Danizr W#ALEN.
' ‘Indictment under the Foreign Aggres_sip:i Act.

PRISONER is put upon his trial—on the first juror being called, McKenzie for the
prisoner challenges the array, and the prisoner himself challenges the array; and his
gounsel states on the following grounds. They are filed. Noon. Court adjourned till

P.M. ' . : -

2 p.y.  Court opened. _ ‘ : ' E

I have overruled the allowance: of the challenge to the array. McKenzie tenders a
bill of exceptions to my ruling, which I decline to receive.

5 p.m, * Court adjourned till 10 a:M. to-motrow.

10 a.M. Court opened. , '

‘ McKenzie moves to quash the petit jury list,.or to put off the trial until next Court
- € Oyer and Terminer, or for a rule on the Attorney-General to show cause why the: jury
nel should not be set aside, or why the trial should not be put off fo enabie prisoner to- -
e to quash. the.jury list. See motion paper. Motion refused. = , ‘ _
McKenzie moves for aprecept to summon a jury-de meditate lingue, and it is granted. |

the precept was being prepared he declined to have it.. . :
hn Metcalfe, sworn. Describes the affair at Ridgeway, the same as his evidence

(4
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ky Whalen’s case. The United States and Great Britain are at peace. :

A e seen the prisoner at the bar. 1 conversed with him. I made no threats, no.
4y . He said, = I am an American citizen ; I was kopp at Singsing, Jackson county,
5 - v York. .- L live a portion of mytime in_ Adjala, Albion, and Tecumseth. I left

AN

-

g L ?;fEMaX last, tlobgo to 'Igelan::l to liberate her. I crossed over with several
o SR . e 1o canal, oats. '« was wounded 5t Lime Bridge.” I subseguentlyszi‘{
« uc rigne shoutder, the nec, 554 the left.ear. A wound made by one bail.

1¢ he had the wound. - "4o'caid the reason they retreated was that the officer

.ight/about face’ mstead of forward ; and the fire Was so heavy they could

K . . lying wounded in the
This he told ¢ ot Port Colborne, while he-was Iy bed. I
and 200" o called Partell were, wounded and lying in the same be

This was in-the

Al - 1ad. Partell answered, about 1,000 men. 108 VL S "
3 N ,a.n¥ ;:ﬁzdh;ﬁo-co:lmanded them’; Partell answered, 'COII(:ne'lhodNbeé:n.irll
W'I‘ qeﬁ‘ére he was wounded.- He said in the neck. Both said tbeyha

WO C : -given the wrong word
arm, " ‘'ny. Prisoner, with an oath, said their officer had- given , ¢

"agi. - 1 the fire was so heavy they ha‘d‘to retreat. |

oo s Bpen

t three years ago, and went to Cler,(and in Ohio. 1 left Cleveland for Buffalo

¢
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Cross-exammed He seemed at ease when the prisoner spoke to me.. I did not then
see -prisoner’s wound. It was then bound up. This was about 7 a.M., on Sunday. The
‘battle happened the day before. ~ Fle said- the fire of our troops was so heavy, we ‘were
. obliged to run. The memorandum in the book was written by Dugald C. McNab, who
~was in gaol for receiving ‘moneysunder false. pretences. 1 did not, to my. knowledge

or.recollection, use harsh words against the prisoners. I said if they were not punished
I should lay down my arms. I said I should not take prisoners at another raid. McNabb
asked me to go with him, and I went.

’ Alexander Lawson, sworn. I livein Port Colborne (McKenzie ObJ&CtS to his evidence ;
his pame is not on the Indictment), overruled. It is on the Indictment. I was at the
battle of Ridgeway. 1am a civilian, but I accompanied the troops to Ridgeway. I was
made a prisoner by a Fenian, by order of an officer. A Fenian officer there gave ‘me this
~ paper. Itisread. I went in search for wounded men to help them. T saw the prisoner ;
. was wounded. I washed the wound. He was shot through the shoulder, neck, and left
ear. He was in a farm-house with other wounded Femans Sentries were at the door;
but there were some of the Queen’s Own there. The prisoner had a blue jacket, llke the
American uniform, trimmed with green. The officer had the same. I saw pnsoner s coat -
which he claimed as his, and I saw where the ball went through it.

Cross-examined. I was with prisoner half an hour at first. I went for assistance and
- brought waggons down, and went with them, and they brought the wounded men- up. Isaw
him then in bed He wanted his coat, and I went and hunted it up, and he said it was his.
This is the coat I described. - He did not seein to suffer at first, but in the evening he- did. He

said his name was Daniel Whalen.: He seemed to be suﬂ“ermg when he was.in the waggon.
. He seemed then weaker than he was at first. [-did not see him again till I saw him in
gaol. I went to the gaol and asked to see Whalen. The turnkey filed them against the
wall, thirty or forty. I could not recognize his features, for when I saw him he was all
over blood; but I picked him out from the wound in the ear, and when I saw it I said
this is Whalen and it was. I was in the fire. I might have been wounded. I did not
hear of any wounded who did not belong to one or the. other. I saw persons in civilian’s
dress about there, and I heard bullets. L . : .
Case for the Crown. " :

- Robert B. Lynch, sworn. Iam a prisoner in gaol here. My home is in Louisville, -
Kentucky. I wasina commercial house. I wrote several letters to my employer, who .
was to fevise them and publish them in-the Louisville papers. 1 was not specially
employed by the papers. I was in Canada.in; June last. Iwas in the employment of

" James McDermott, of Louisville, who .wag -Assistant-Adjutant-General of the "Fenian
brotherhood in the State of Kentucky ;.and I.was sent by him to report the progress of
the affair in'Canada. .1 saw the prisoner at the bar on Friday afternoon, the 1st June,
1866, between the Lower and Uppér: Ferry on the river bank. He was walking with
Mr. Lavm from Cleveland, a railway “contractor who has works om the~-North road.
Prisoner was ‘introduced to me by him. The’ pnsoner was not armed.” Very few Fenians
were there.
John Denun sworn. T have been in gaql. smce June, in Torc nto. I hved in Buﬂ'alo.

L work at the rolling-mill at B. V. I°was in Buffalo on the 3lst of May. He was
. drinking," and not sober.. He did not assent at that time to tome over.. He said his
father and his friends lived in Canada, and he would not go to fight against them. This
" was between 7 and 8 p.m.. He was then pretty drunk He did| not appear to belong. to
the Fenians. '

Cross-exammed Idid not see him on this side till he
uniform. on. I do not know how he came over.

R#B. Lynch, re-called. I do.not know whether he was a| Fenian. He had plain
clothes.. This was between2 and 3 o’clock. Lavin had nothing to do with the Fenians.
He was walking with Lavin, and did not appear to be with the Fenians there

Cross-examined. .The prisoner was sober.,

. John Metcalfe, sworp. . I have no recollection of the prvso er saying he never fired
a shot. "~
McKenzie takes the same exceptions.to-my cha.rge as in.O*
Verdict ‘“ Guilty.” - -
. On being asked why, &e., . '
McKenzie moves to arrest Judment on the same groun s"’ as taken in Hayden’s

me to- gaol. " He had no

eil and Parry s cases.

. case.
Sentence to be executed on the 13th day of December next.
‘ (Signed) . J W WILSON J.C.P.

. &e case of Hayden for above objectmm

[82] .
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‘Defence.

McKenzie reads affidavit, by consent, of character. Good. Was a soldier in the
United States’ anay in 1863.

McKenzie objects to my.charge, on the grounds taken in Parry’s case. I should not
have told the jury that it lay on the prisoner to show he had business there. I should not
have said, ““ Can there be any doubt prisoner was at Lime Ridge or Fort Erie 2 I should
have told the jury that his r1iding up and down 2 miles from the camp was strong evidence
that his object was private plunder, and that the Crown bad to show by direct evidence
that prisoner was connected with the Fenians. 1Tdid not tell the jury that it lay on the
prisoner to show he had business there, except in illustrating how a man may relieve
himself from imputation ; and I told the jury that a man needed not, unless he chose, to
give any account of himself.

Verdict, Guilty. ’

McKenzie moves in arrest of judgment: That it appears on the face of the indict-
ments that the several offences charged against the prisoner were committed in the county
of Welland ; and the indictment could not be legally preferred against him in these
United Counties, under the 29 and 30 Vict., cap. 4, sec. 3, in this Court, being a Court
for these United Counties—the authority of, the statute being confined to one county
(R. and R. 158, Rex v. Hewitt); that the prisoner is charged in several counts of offences
different from those created by the statute against citizens of a foreign State; and in the
third count he is charged with having committed a direct act of hostility against the
Queen not mentioned in the Act at all ; that it appears that the oftences were committed
on the st and 2nd June, 1866, before the passing of the statute 29 and 30 Vict., cap. 4,

sec. 3. )

Sentenced to be executed on the 13th day of December next.

(Signed) J. W. WILSON, J. C. P.

Copy of Judge WiLson’s Notes in the Quesn v. DanieL WaALEN.
Indictment under the Foreign Aggression Act.

PRISONER is put upon his. trial—on the first juror being called, McKenzie for the
prisoner challenges the array, and the prisoner himself challenges the\array; and his

gounsel states on the following grounds. They are filed. Noon. Court adjourned till
P.M.

2 p.u.  Court opened.
I have overruled the allowance of the challenge to the array. McKenzie tenders a
bill of exceptions to my rulibg, which I decline to receive.
5 p.m.  Court adjourned till 10-a.m, to-morrow.
10 am.  Court opened. - 5
McKenzie moves to quash the petit jury list, or to put off the trial until next Court
€ Oyer and Terminer, or for a rule op.the Attorney-General to show cause why the jury
nel-should not be set aside, or why the trial should not be put off to enable prisoner to
& 'e to quash the jury list. See motion paper. Motion refused. ~ j
¥ McKenzie moves for a precept to summon a jury de meditate lingue, and it is granted.
% the precept was being prepared he declined to have it.

" bn Metcalfe, sworn.  Describes the affair at.Ridgeway, the same as his evidepce
inQy Whalen’s case. The United States and Great Britain are at peace. .
Q'€ seen the prisoner at the bar. 1 conversed with him. I made no threats, no
Q He said, “ I am an American citizen ; I was Lorp at Singsing, Jackson county,
York. 1live a portion of mytime in ‘\djala, Albion, and Tecumseth. I left

-

Janada abowlt three years ago, and went to Cle~ ; i left Cleveland for Buffalo
n the 30th$‘ of May last, to ,go to I}"elani to.ﬁl)aet:;lt;nl(él:m Ilcrf)ssed over with several
t};e;izzdl:: i t'E:' 1€ 1n cana L b.o_até. « was wounded gt Lime Bridge.” I sul()l'seguentlg g:lvlv
s had toly B . .uc ngnt shoulder, the.n"_'f.{, and the left ear. A wou(tlxd mat lfatyt k:)enoﬂicel.:
stang, , [] vight about face 'qteqd of forward; and.the . hded in the

L ? ¥ 1°his he told [0 at Port Colborne, while he was lymgthvgogame bed. I

ﬁ%‘/ nofj #0d 207 ner called Partell were wounded and lying 1o

000 .men. This was in -the
¥ : &g pris v »,any they had. Partell answered,.afb)t;;xtteul 000 e colonel O'Nell. T
& d k ner. Lasked who c((l) r:xlmarll_;le(::ige;; ;che neck. Both said they had been u‘i
: here he was wounded. He said in the . 1 & i
¥ ﬁ\;‘:f* n;. Prisoner, with an oath, said their officer had-given the wrong

{ the fire was so heavy they had to retreat.
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Cross-exammed He seemed at ease when the pmsoner spoke to me. I did not then
see prisoner’s wound.. It was then bound up. This was about 7 a.m.,on Sunday. The
battle happened the day before. - He said the fire of our troops was 80 heavy, we were

obliged to run. . The memorandum in' the book was written by Dugald-C. McNab, who .

was in gaol for receiving money under false _pretences. 1 did not, to my knowledge
.or _recollection, use harsh words against the prisoners. I said if they were not punished

1 should lay down my arms.. I said I should not take prisoners at another raid. McNabb -

asked me to go with him, and I went.

" Alexander Lawson, sworn. ‘I livein Port Colborne (McKenzie objects to his evidence ;
his name is not on the Indictment), overruled. "It is on the Indictment. I was at the -
battle of Ridgeway. Iam a civilian, but I accompanied the troops to Ridgeway. I was
made a prisoner by a Fenian, by order of an officer. A Fenian officer there gave me this
- paper. Itisread. I went in searchfor wounded men to help them. I saw the prisoner ;.
was wounded. I washed the wound. He was shot through the shoulder, neck, and left
ear. He.was in a farm-house with other wounded Femans Sentries were at the door;
but-there were some-of the Queen’s Own there. -* The prisoner-had a blue Jacket hke the
American uniform, trimmed with green. The officer had the same. I saw prisoner’s coat
. which he claimed as his, and I saw where the ball went through it.

Cross-examined. 1 was with- prisoner half an hour at first. I went for assistance and

" brought waggons down, and went withi them, and they brought the wounded men up. Isaw

him then in bed. He wanted his coat, and I went and hunted it up, and he said it was his.
This is the coat I described. He did not séem tosuffer at first, but in the evening he'did. He
said his name was Daniel Whalen. He seemed to be suﬂ'ermg when he was in the waggon.

' He séemed then weaker than he wis at first.” I did not see him again till I saw him in
gaol. * T went to the gaol and asked to see Whalen. . The turnkey filed them against the-
wall, thirty or forty. I could not recognize his features, for when I saw him he was all
over blood ; but I picked him out from the wound in the ear, and when I-saw it I said
this is Whalen and it was. I was in the fire. ‘I might have been wounded. I did not -
hear of any wounded who did not belong to one or the other. I saw persons in civilian’s

" . dress about there, and I. heard bullets.

- Case for the Crown

Robert B. Lynch, sworn.. Iam a prisoner in gaol here. My home is in Louisville, ..

Kentucky. I was in a commercial house.- I wrote several letters to my employer, who
was to revise them and publish them in .the Louisville papers. * I was not specially
employed by the papers. I was in Canada in June last. I was in the employment of
James - McDermott, of - Louisville, who -was Assistant-Adjutant-General of the Fenidn
. brotherhood in the State of Kentucky ; and I was sent by him to report the progress of
the affair in Canada. /1 saw the prisoner at the bar on Friday afternoon, the 1st June,
.1866, between the Lower and Upper Ferry-on’ the river bank. He was walking with
. Mr. Lavin, from Cleveland, a railway contractor who has works on the.North road. .
Prisoner was introduced to me'by him. The prisoner was not armed. . Very few Fenians
were there.
X John Dénun sworn. T have been in gaol since June, in Toronto. I lived in Buffalo.
I work at -the rolling-mill at B. V. 1 was in Buffalo on the 3lst of May. He was
drinking, and not sober. He did not assent at that time to. come over. He said his
** father and his friends lived in Canada, and he would not go to fight against them. This
was between 7 and 8 p.v. He was then pretty drunk. He did- “not appear to belong to
the Fenians.
Cross-examined. I did not see hlm on this side fill he°came to gaol He had no
uniform on. I do not know how he came over.
: R.B. Lynch, re-called. I do not know whether he was a Fenian. He had plain
. clothes. This was between 2 and_3 o’clock. Lavin had nothing to do with the Femans
He was walking with Lavin, and did not appear to be with the Femans there. '
Cross-examined. The prisoner was sober. :
John Metcalfe, sworn. ‘I have no recollectlon of the pnsoner saymg he never ﬁred
a shot.
McKenzie takes the same exceptlons to my charge as in O*Neil and Parry § cases.
Verdict ** Guilty.”
*On being asked why, &c., .
McKenzie ‘moves to arrest ]udment on the same grounds"‘ as taken in Haydens '
case. :
Sentence to be executed on the 13th day of Decembier next.
(Signed) J.W. WILSON J.C. P

' . &e case of Hayden for above objections.
821 , . : K
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OzsEcrions referred to in the cases where they are noted.

Mr. McKenzie's objections in Parry’s case are as follows :—

1. That his Lordship should have’directed the jury that in law there was no evidence
that the prisoner was an American citizen within the meaning of the Act, and that the
Crown should show what constituted a citizen of the United States according to the laws
of the United States.

2. That he should have directed the jury that there was no evidence that the prisoner
entered Upper Canada, with others, with intents to levy war against the Queen, or entered
it at all with others; consequently he could not be convicted on the first count.

3. That he should have directed the jury that the prisoner could not be convicted on
the second count unless it were proved that he! took up arms or was in arms, or was
actually armed, in company with others, in Upper Canada, with intent to levy war on the
Queen’s province, without being armed being msufficient.

4. That he shouid have directed the jury that the prisoner could not be convicted on
the third count unless the jury found that the prisoner committed a direct act of hostility
in assaulting or attacking, with other persons, armed and arrayed in a warlike manner,
certain of Her Majesty’s subjects, with intent to levy war against the Queen ; that the
prisoner must have been present during an attack and taking a part before he would be
gilty on the third count.

5. That he should have told the jury that the prisoner could not be convicted on the
present indictment for being present, aiding, assisting, and comforting the alleged raiders,
as there is no count in the indictment charging him with such an offence.

6. That the prisoner being chdrged in the indictment as an American citizen, no duty
was cast on him to withdraw or give notice when he found a breach of the law was
contemplated, although it might be otherwise if charged as a British subject ; and that

there is evidence he withdrew when he found, the law was about to be violated.

% 7., That he should have directed the jury that unless there was evidence to show, or
frém which they could infer, an intent on the part of the prisoner to levy war against the
Queen, he Gould not be convicted on the present indictment.

* 8% That there is no legal evidence to show that the prisoner, or the persons assembled
at Fort Erie on the 1st and 2nd of June, intended to levy war against the Queen; and for
all that appears in evidence, their object might have been the redress of a private grievance,
which might be a great riot, but not a levying of war against the Queen ; and that he
should have directed an acquittal of the prisoners on the ground that there is no evidence
to- show the intention alleged in the indictment; and that the prisoner cannot be
convicted without proof that the prisoner intended with force to dethrone the Queen,
destroy the Government, or subvert some public law or institution, or to effect some public
object; and that he should bhave explained to the jury what would constitute levying
war against the Queen. "

9. That the Imperial Act 11 and 12 Vict., cap. 12, providing for offences against
the Queen similar to those alleged against the prisoner, must override the Provincial Act
which was passed previously to it, and under which the prisoner is being proceeded

against,
‘ (Signed) - J. W. WILSON, J. C. P.

Osjecrions referred to.

In O’Neil’s case Mr. McKenzie moves to quash the indictment :— .
1. For misjoinder of counts. That under the first three counts he is charged as an
American citizen under the 1st clause of the Act.
2./That be is charged in the fourth and fifth counts as a British subject under the
2nd clause. That in the sixth count he is charged with high treason. A man cannot be
. citizén of a foreign State and a British subject at the same time. There cannot be distinct
0 ?nces charged in the same indictment.
3. That on the indictment it appears the offence was committed in the county of
elland, and the prisoner cannot be tried on an indictment found in this Court, being
for the united counties of York and Peel. The words, used are ‘ county,” not “ united
" counties.” A J
a(SZ)n motion of Mr. McKenzie, the prisoner is-allowed till to-morrow to plead.-——He
pleads. ‘.
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No. 19. ‘

‘Copy of a DESPATCH from Lieutenant-General Sir J. Micues to the Right Hon. the
Earl of Carnarvon.

9

Montreal, December 13, 1866.
{No. 7.) (Received December 28, 1866.)
My Lorp, . (Answered, No. 127, January 7, 1867, page 883.)
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch No. 108% of the

* 24th November, addressed to Lord Monck, and announcing your decision with regard to

- s

instructions from your Lordship.

the commutation of the sentences of the Fenian convicts Lynch and McMahon.

Before your Lordship’s despatch reached Lord Monck, he had granted a respite till
the 13th March to Lynch and McMahon, and also to the other Fenian convicts now under
sentence of death in Toronto.

Lord Monck will explain personally to your Lordship the reasons which induced him
to refrain from immediately promulgating the decision which you communicated to him.

I shall accordingly leave the convicts in their present position until I receive further

I have, &c. :

(Signed) J. MICHEL, Lieutenant-General,

The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, - Administrator of Government.
&e. &e. &e.

-

No. 20.
Corx of a DESPATCH from Lieutenant-General Sir J. Micazx to the Right Hon. the
"~“Earl of CARNARVON. :
(No. 15.) Montreal, December 21, 1866.
My Lorb, . (Received January 2, 1867.)

1 HAVE the honour to report to your Lordship that the trials of the Fenian
prisoners taken in Lower Canada in the month of June last, commenced at Sweetsburgh
‘o the 18th instant. R

The first case was that of Thomas Madden, a British subject, who was charged with

“ feloniously joining himself to persons who had entered Lower Canada with intent to levy

war on Her Majesty.”

His trial was only concluded to-day, and I have just learned by telegraph that he

has been convicted and condemned to death. -I shall not be able to send any details of

the evidence to your Lordship until the next mail. ~
’ I have, &c.

-
-

;
>
7

_(Signed) . J. MICHEL, Lieutenant,Govemor, * ©** 4

v Administrator of Government.
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon,
&e. &e. &e.

No. 21.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Lieutenant-General Sir J. MicuEL to the Right Hon. the
; Earl of Carnarvon. .« .

Montreal, December 27, 1866.

WNo. 17.) (Received January 15, 1867.)
My Lorbp, (Answered, No. 133, February 2, 1867, page 84.)

IN my despatch No. 15t of the 21st December, I reported to your Lordship that the
trials of the Fenians taken in Lower Canada had commenced, and that one case had
ended in the conviction of the prisoner, Thomas Madden.

The convict was sentenced to be executed on the 15th of February, 1867.

"I beg to transmit for your information a copy of the evidence on which he was found

It shows that Madden was taken with arms in his hands, and that his comrades, if
not he himself, fired on the policemen who were endeavouring to arrest him. His case,
therefore, is still more serious. than those of Lynch, McMahou, and others, who were
convicted at Toronto of a crime similar to Madden. K

2

No. 19.

* Page 82.

No, 20.

No. 21.

1 Page 65.
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* Page 82.

Incl.in No. 21 ’

.

_ . Two more prisoners have -been convicted at 'Sweetsburgh'hsincé the conclusion of
Madden’s trial ; one of them, Thomas Smith, was indicted as a citizen of a foreign state,

the other, Michaél Crowley, as a British subject. I have not yet received copies of the -

evidence in- these cases. Smith has been condemned to death, and sentence on Crowley
has been deferred, but no doubt he will be left for execution. : .

. Bearing in mind, however, the decision to which your Lordship came with respect to
the convicts Lynch- and McMahon, as’ communicated to Lord Monck in your despatch

No. 108* of the 24th November, I do not intend to allow the penalty of déath to be’

nflicted on the prisoners who have been condemned at Sweetsburgh until I shall receive
further instructions from your Lordship. S E

I therefore now beg to refer the case of -Madden for the consideration of Her
Majesty’s Government, and in dealing with the other prisoners I shall be guided by the

" measure of punishment which shall be awarded to him.

Whilst I thus place the matter in your Lordship’s hands, I think it my duty to state.
that on grounds of public policy it is my opinion that none of the convicts should suffer
the extreme penalty of the law. ) o '

. C 1 have, &c. .
(Signed) J. MICHEL, Lieutenant-General,
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, - ' Administrator of Government,
&e. &e. &e. '

N

" Inclosure in Nb. 21.

Province of Canada, District of Bedford. .
In the Court:of Queen’s Bei:ch, Crown side.—December Term, 1866,
‘Wednesday the 19th day of December, 1866. -
Before the Honourable Mr. J zstice JomNsoN.
"' The Quezn v. THomas MabpeN.

<

On indictment for (being a subject of Her Majesty) feloniously joining himself to pef:;bns
.who had entered Lower Canada with intent to levy war against Her Majesty.

Evibence aT TriaLn.

'William Stewart Holsapple, sworn. Resides in St. Armand’s, is a farmer. _In the
month of June, I think the 5th, I went to St. Albans to ascertain what I had heard by
rumour, that.an invasion of Canada was intended. I met a person who told me to-take an

a number of persons called Fenians, they were so called there. Some were armed; some
were not armed. There were several hundreds of these Fenians. . Some were armed and

-

_opposite course, that is to say, to East Highgate, where I went. At East Highgate I saw

some not. One of them offered to sell me his gun. °I saw them moving towards Franklin -

Centre, East Highgate is six miles from Frontier Line. The last I saw of them that day
was at Judge Hubbard’s, there were eight of them .under his wood shed. I counted at
East Highgate 276 of these Fenians ; they were together on the east side of the bridge.
There were others on west side whom I did not count. These people were armed with

. guns, bayonets, swords, carbines, and revolvers. I counted thirty-one guns that seemed to
~ ~be new American pieces, such as were used in the United States army in the war. On -
. leaving East Highgate for Franklin, they were in the straight road to the Province. The

persons I saw in Judge Hubbard’s barn were not armed. I saw these Fenians in a- body

of 200 or 300 the following day, marching towards Canada. I'saw them again on Friday, .

the 8th of June. I met them in small numbers near my house in Canada, at night. On -

" the 9th, early in the morning, I went to Pigeon Hill. I saw three persons coming out

of Oliver’s store ; two of them had a basket. On Saturday the 9th, I visited, several

‘houses at Pigeon Hill, and found they had been pillaged. "I went to Pigeon Hill because

the report was rife that the Fenians had the previous day ransacked the place, and carried
off the goods of the inhabitants. Another reason was that they had entered my own
house. My house was broken open on the 8th. When I saw it, they had not damaged

the house much. Some things were missing; my. carriage-house was broken open,’and a

" saddle and other articles taken away. - The place generally at Pigeon Hill, had.an extraor-

dinary appearance ; furniture was broken, glass and crockery scattered about the houses, .

I conversed with the three mensaw at Pigeon Hill, on the evening of the Sth. They

N ) U .
e . , .
i r
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first inquired if there were any horses at Krantz’s, my neighbour, then if I had any.
They said they wanted horses to form a cavalry corps. I asked them what for. They
said also, they were going to form an Irish Republic in Canada. I said I had no more,
horses ; they had already two colts, but they wanted better ones. One of them went to *
the barn to look for horses; another advised me to go to the hill and take the oath
of allegiance to the Irish Republic. 1 said, No. "Two of them were armed, the third may
have been, but I saw no arms on him ; one who represented himself as the leader of the
party, had a gun. These people were strangers to me. I was born and brought up near
Pigeon Hill. It was the inhabitants of the place at Highgate that called these people
Fenians. I had heard the name bef(])re, and seen it in print. I understood it meant the
nume of some persons who were banded together for some purpose. '

o (Crown produces Paper No. 5.)
I received this paper from my father, on information from one Alpbeus Stephenson.

(Witness ordered to stand down.)

Alpheus Stephenson, sworn. I got this paper on the 8th of June. I got it in the
village at Pigeon Hill, from Colonel Edmund Rice, to give it to Mr. Holsapple. I gave
it him. Coloncl Rice I never saw before. I did not see any military equipments about
him. This looks like the paper. I only got one paper from Colonel Rice. I have no
doubt this is the-paper, Paper read.

Copy of Paper.

¢« Head Quarters, 1st Div. Irish Army, Camp in the Field. June 8th, 1866.

“The Irish Republic promises to pay W. Stewart Holsapple 100 doliars for value-
received, six months after., ' : '
“J. H. WiLson.”

Mr. Holsapple is recalled. At Pigeon Hill on the 9th, I saw, besides the three I
have mentioned, a number of persons coming from the south. I think the first squad
consisted of eleven or thirteen. I don’t remember which. They went into Carpenter’s
tavern. A few moments after they went in, one of them came out and asked mé to tell
him the way to get into Carpenter’s cellar.

George B. Baker, Advocate, sworn. I lived at Nelsonville last June. On the 6th
or 7th, ti.cre was a rumour about the Fenians were coming. I went towards the line and
found the houses abandoned. I proceeled across the line and-found the village filled with
Fenians ; part were armed, part unarmed. Some had muskets, some swords, and some
pistols. They were encamped on the village green. They moved off in the direction of
Canada. We started (Mr. Whitman and myself) to go to Cook’s Corners, and overtook
these po@:lf on the road. As we came near the line we heard the order sent back to
bring up the rear-guard; we drove on and passed more of them, and saw that part of
them had come into Canada, stacked their arms, and hoisted a green flag. The body of
the flag was green, and there was some figure and device on it that I could not distinguish.
This was about a quarter of a mile on this side the line. There was a guard on the
line, and the sentry asked us if we had passes. The guard that halted us were armed with:
muskets and fixed bayonets. We had no passes, and the sergeant said it was doubtful if
we could go on without passes. We asked where we were to get them, and he said at
head-quarters. 'We found anotherguard stationed about a quarter of a mile on this side of
the place where the flaz was hoisted. We were halted also by this' guard and asked for
passes. Having none, the sergeant said he must put us underarrest. 1asked him for what,
and he said for the purpose of sending us back to head-quarters. I asked him the object,
he said he had no explanations to make, his orders were positive. He then ordered one
of the men to take our horse by the head, and called another man to seat himself in the
buggy, and told him to take us back to the Colonel. The man in the buggy with us,
was armed with a gun and a bayonet. The head-quarters were on the other side; we
met the column advancing towards Canada in martial array, four deep, and commanded
by officers. We met this column close.on the line ; the Colonel was walking in the rear
of the coluron. The guard in the buggy told hith”he had us as prisoners. The Colonel
I think told the Major to march-the men down towards the line, and to establish his
head-quarters in a building just on the line. The Colonel said his name was Contri; hé
was dressed in a fantastic uniform. He expressed regret to inconvenience us, but said
he must adbere to military riles. That they were going into Canada to occupy the
country, and could not release us except on parole. This conversation took place-on the
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other side of the Jine; he said they wanted horses, they had the soldiers, and they were
not robbers, but soldiers. A part of the column passed the line just as we didj; 1
endeavoured to count the column as we passed. I think there were abdut 600 of them.

Colonel

Contri pointed to the flag, and said it was already hoisted in Canada, and they

hed proclaimed the Irish Republic. This was said a little on this side the line. -
Cross-examined. Never saw the prisoner at the bar before, to recognize him.

Robert L. Tittemore, sworn. Lives at St. Armand, about two miles from Province

line, did so in June. I was at home on the 8th and 7th of June. There was a public

on the 7th that the Province was to be invaded by the Fenians. I had seen them

on the other side of the line at Franklin, on the 5th. I saw one band of twenty men

-t
|

armed ;
of them

o g

some of them were singing and dancing. The people called them Fenians. Some
had sabres, some guns, some large revolvers. I know the people of Franklin

very well. The armed men T saw were strangers to the place. On Friday the 8th, I saw
armed men at Pigeon Hill, at about 11 o’clock in the day: I had gone up to see what

was going on, having heard the Fenians were there. I saw two men armed, and leading a

horse.
men in
did not

I saw William Butler's door broken open; as I stepped in I saw four armed
the house. T had never seen them before; I supposed them to be Fenians. I
speak to them. As I came out of the door, I saw five or six men with guns;

four men rode up saying they came from Clarenceville, they joined us. We ran away,
and they fired at us; we proceeded, and they hailed us again and fired another shot.
They fired at us a third time, not long after that; 1 heard the ball whistle over my head.
I went to one William Smith’s, and was there when these same“six men came there ; they

ordered

the family out of the house, made a demand tor the wounded cavalry. They

aid they had shot two British cavalry soldiers, and they were secreted in the house.

}

hey then asked if there were any red coats secreted about the house ; T understood they
meant British soldiers; I answered, No. They said, don’t you lie to me, if you do, I will

blow your brains out. They then made me prisoner, and said they would take me to camp.

0

e of these men called himself Captain Murphy of the Fourth-Cavalry ; he gave orders
) toE)ne of the men to go to camp, and tell Colonel Somébody to forward his forces, the red

coats were in sight. The man left, and Captain Murphy then pateled me ; he sat on his
horse with his sword drawn, and administered a sort of an oath to me to the effect that I

wab not

to harbour British soldiers, and not take up arms against the:Fenians. He took

me| under the protection, as he said, of the Irish Republic, and offered me a pass. He

o

said if I broke my parole, he would hang me up to the first tree.. He said when he was
leaving, that he would be through there in a fortnight or three weeks with a large army.

! gaw in
of them

the course of the day, fifteen or twenty Fenians near, my place; they were most
armed, and under the command of this Murphy. The next day, the 9th, I saw the

houses at Pigeon Hill, they had been ransacked.

nev

Cross-examined. I did not know any of the people Isaw on the 8th of June ; T had
seen them before. I knew two of the men, who said they came from Clarenceville.

I thought they were Fenians because they were strangers and had arms in their hands, and

had hear

d it reported. On the 9th, the main body of the Fenians left Pigeon Hill. They

were [there in the worning ; they left in the afternoon. :
evi Scott, sworn, Lives at Dunham.Flats. On the 7th of June, I had heard of the

Fenians

coming. I went down to Cook’s CoriieFs, and saw a body of them. Some thirty,

I shoyld think, came in. They marched three deép, and seemed to kave officers to command
them.| The citizens nearly all left. Two of the Fenians wanted to speak to me, that they
were dfter horses, but would not take mine. I stopped,and they tock my horse. They
said they intended to take Canada and murch on Montreal. I went to what they called
their head-quarters on this side the line. The guard stopped me, and took me down to

Gene
said th

!

Spears. It was on the high road I was stopped. I saw Colonel Contri. He
General was very busy that night, but if I came in the morning he would see me.

I saw armed men at the camp. The next morning Isaw a flag. The head-quarters were

at Eccl
Contri i
wanted

" house, about a quarter of a mile on the Canada side. The next morning Colonel
troduced me fo General Spear, who acknowledged the introduction, and said they
orses, but would nor keep mine, and-ordered it to be given back. I got the horse

in Courtnay’s possession (a Major Courtnay) -at Eccles’ place. They gave me a pass,

(Produc

three da

s 1t.)

‘“ Head- Quarters, 1st Div., I. R. A., June 8, 1866.
uards and patrols will pass Levi Scott through the lines and return. Good for

ys.
4 (Sighed)- “James B. Lvons,
‘ Maj. and Pro.-Marshal.”
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I met three more Fenians near Frelighsburg. They were armed and drunk; they
pushed me off my horse rand rifled my pockets. One of them snapped his carbine at me,
- and another struck me with his sword. '
hero Cross-examined. *Was a witness before Grand Jury. Stated there what I have said

Reuben Martin, sworn. Lives at Dunham Flats. Lived there in June. On the 7th
I went to the lines on the road from Cook’s Corners to Franklin. I was stopped about
half a mile on this side of the road by a guard of six oreight men all armed. They wanted
to know my business. 1 said we wanted to know their intentions. The officer referred us
to Colonel Contri. 1 never saw but one of the men before. They were strangers in that
part of the country. They formed four deep, and took us to Colonel Contri’s.” Mr. Rykerd
told him the inhabitants were much alarmed, and we wanted to know their intention. He
said he expected to pay for what he took if he could, but that the Irish had been down-
trodden by British power, and they had come to make war upon the forces of the Province,
but not on the inhabitants. He refused to parole me, but paroled Rykerd and Coburn. I
learned, indirectly, that the reason for not paroling me was that he thought me a soldier.
Soon after Rykerd and Coburn left. General Spear came across. -There was a general
cheer when he came. The force collected on the line marched over immediately after the
arrival of General Spear. They were 500 or 600. They called themselves the Fenian
army. They had several flags, small green silk flags. There was a harp, and some letters
on the flags. They marched in military array.

Cross-examined. Was a witness before the Grand Jury. I do not known when the
lEl‘enians left the Province. I understood they left on Saturday, but I do not know the

our.

Frederick John Parker, a Custom-house officer at Frelighsburg. I was there on the
7th. 1 left because I was obliged to do so by this Fenian raid. I returned next morning,.’
My house was disordered when I returned. I left again on the 8th, and returned on the
10th. I found the house ransacked, and property taken away; every drawer and box
broken open, and almost everything stolen. My flag was stolen. It was a British ensign
bought by subscription for the village. Custom-house office also entered; stamps and
other things removed. The royal arms were split to pieces. The Fenians came to
Frelighsburg on the 7th.  Frelighsburg is 21 or 3 miles from Province line by road.
~ There were upwards of twenty marching in military order, and commanded by an officer,
and armed with rifles. I learned on Saturday evening that they had left.

* Cross-examinéd. I heard late on Saturday that our troops were coming, and the
Fenians were running away. I have received from Government the amount I claimed for .
damages to my property by the Fenians. '

William Thomson. Lived at Pigeon Hill,. Saw the Fenians on the 6th of June
between Franklin and Highgate, about 800 to 1,000 of them; they were marching. I
asked them where they were going; they said to Slab city (Frelighsburg), The majority-
of them were armed, and they were marching in imperfect military oider. On Thursday,
the 7th, I saw about 100 Fenians at Cook’s Corners ; about 50 of them were armed; some
bad halters for horses, and swords. 1I.saw some afterwards at Pigeon Hill; they were
" armed ; they left late on the 9th. I recognized some of them from having seen them at
Cook’s Corners.

Cross-examined. Some Fenian prisoners were taken by our forces on Saturday ; the
main body left on Saturday. I saw no large body of Fenians after troops came up on
Saturday, only small parties of six or so.

Robert Oliver. Was at Frelighsburg on the 7th. Saw Fenians arrive about 7 o’¢lock
in the evening; there were 22 marching in order; they were all armed. They came from
Cook’s Corners by road leading to the United States; they had carbines, swords, revolvers,

d rifles. I saw them plundering stores—Lansberg’s and Smith’s stores. They got a

flag at Smith’s store; they said they had a flag now, and cheered and made a row. The
first myan I met called himself a Captan of Cavalry; he told me not to fear. A guard was
placed at the bridge. The guard were armed with guns and fixed bayonets; I saw them
fire at a man crossing the bridge; I don’t know the man. The guard would not let us go
ane way or the other until they chose. .

Cross-examined. I got back on Sunday. T heard on that morning the main body of
the Fenians had left on Saturday. The houses in Frelighsburg were abandoned, and any
one might have plundered them.

Re-examined. The people abandoned their houses because they were afraid of the
Fenians.

Noah Sager. Lived at Pigeon Hill in June. I was not there when Fenians came. I
was in Franklin; went there on Ist June. I saw Fenians on 5th at Franklin Centre,

&L



- Colonel Contri, he ordered me to go-to the Adjutant’s office. I was afterwards sent to -

“subsequently relcased.
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fifteen or twenty. at first, afterwards more. - The public said they were Fenians. Some of
them were armed. I saw a number of them on 6th in Hubbard’sdbarn. - They said they
were coming to take Canada, and establish a Republican Government. I saw 700 or 800
Fenians encamped near Eccles-on Thursday the 7th/ It was called the Fenian camp.
Sentries "were .posted, and I saw officers commanding. - I was taken-prisoner. I met

‘General Spears. I asked to see Colonel Connor, who had given me.a pass, and I was

.

‘Cross-examined. I never saw the prisoner before. I returned to Pigeon Hill on
Saturday night. T understood previously the invaders had left. ‘ : ,

~

Thursday the 20th day of December, 1866,
' Present :—The Hon. Mr. Justice Jounson.
THe QueeN v. THomas Mappex.

Evipence~—continued.

j Peter Yates, sworn. Lived in-St. Armand’s, near Pigeoii Hill, in —J une last. On the
7th in the forenoon a §quad of 7 came to my house. I had heard previously the

Fenians were coming. - They told me not to fear, they would huft no one who did not

resist them, but ‘only those who did. They asked for milk; one man, apparently the
leader, said, not to be alarmed, unless resisted, but those who resisted wotld be made

. prisouers of war.. They did not want to hurt any body or injure property. They came to

fight the British Governmetit, and they were going to give us'a Republicaii Government.
He said, T suppose you would not object to that? I.did not assent. He added, I suppose-
you may not avant it, byt the people in.general would-like 2 Republican' Government.
Other_squads cayne, and we had pretty similar conversations, and they avowed the same

in’é&\tion, adding, that they wanted to whip the Ted coats. They said, England made-all

our laws for us, arid they were not ‘going to allow it. I dissented, and to convince them:
showed them a volume of our statutes. They added, when I told them our Governor * .
© was an Irishman, that we.had one other renegade Irishman, and if they caught him they

would string him up. - They said it was MiT McGee, oné of the Ministers of the Crown.

They.said, on one occasion, they understood we were going to' have a confedération. of the .

.« Provinces, and thereé was to be.an English Prince on the throne, and they were not

-

‘armed, as well as those who came previously; they had various arms and equipments,
such_as guns, swords, and cartridge boxes. In the course of the two or three days I

should think I -saw 200.or 300 of these men in different directions. I gave them food.

B 4 " ‘ %

under compulsion. They offeréd mo violence to me. .

. Crosé-éxaminéd.. I ceased to fear them after I had become acqqainféd with them.

I saw them make no use of their arms beyond shooting at a scarecrow behind the house.

On Saturday they mostly left. I only saw six on that day. . :

. Thomas Russell Roberts, sworn. -1 live at Philipsburg, 3pd am a practising attorney.
I went to Pigeon Hill on the ‘7th June, to ascertain something definite respecting the
Fenians, who-I understood;had come into-the Province. By Fenjans I understood a body
of armed men who had invaded the Piiyince from the United States with hostile design.
The ‘people were much alarmeq. jn the'yillage. 1%aw a number of these men, they were

. - armed with sabres and had belts on." *I en d  into conversation with one of them, who
. appeared ‘to be a sort.of Jeader.  He seemed very intelligent. I spoke to him of his
- . - travel-stained BPP'%; I said, most of the women had left from fear, and we are

uncettain of your Mefigns.  He réplied, we pretend to be 2’ Government, and shall ‘carry
on war on the prifieiples that govern civilized warfare. We. shall

' not plunder from
the people; .we consider poor ‘people our friends. Something was

k

- "hOme. . M

.. Cross-examined. - Iundgrstood'fhe"'Fenfﬁns left the Province on Saturday, 9th. L
.. . Alpheus. Stephenson, sworn. -Lived at Pigeon ‘Hill 7th, 8th, and 9th June. The’
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said about horses.”
He said, our orders are that the first-man who brings a horse jnto-camp shall be shot. -

' He meant the Fenian camp at Eccles’ house. He said, Quebec. is a strong place,.but may -
. be taken. While this conversation was going on, a bystander said\some more were
- coming: I got into my buggy. There werethirteen. They were all armed and straggling ~ -
along ;' they were all together in a straggling squad. They were strangers. I then went

going to allow that. I saw more of thése men on the 9th at my house; they were - -

-Fenians came on the 7th at three. . The last I saw of theq was on Saturdsy the Oth, at -
» ‘ 7 N » ] . N o

ot



e 71

about 11 o’clock in the forenoon. They were plundering people’s houses. I saw the
plundering going-on on Saturday morning. I saw about 16 houses at Pigeon Hill thai
had been plundered.

Cross-examined. I saw most of the houses when they were being plundered, and
saw the Fenlans going from house to house. ]/ﬁw them by twos and threes. The main
body left on Fuday mfrht and Saturday morning. [ saw the prisoner there on Friday
morning (8th). I saw a person named l{od"els after he was arrested. He is now
dxschar"ed 1 saw him with a ncighbour’s horse. He was getting the horse ready to
mount, "and subsequently mounted him and rode away. I saw a person who gave his
name as Colonel Rice.. He gave me a receipt’ or paper, which T handed to Holsapple.
I was a witness before the Grand J ury.

Questlonl Did you tcll the Grand Jury that you saw Colonel Rice ?

Questionobjected to and overruled.

Humphrey Chadburn, sworn. I live at Frelighsburg. Several of the Fenians were
scarched by me at St. Armand station after theu arrest. . I searched one Terence
McDonald, oné of the prisoners. It was about 2 oclock in the afternoon. I found on
him the medal T now produce. _ c : .

Anthony Sewell, sworn. In Government policc. Was so on 9th June. I knoyw
the prisoner. I\went down to Cook’s Corner on the 9th June, having been told there were
some Fenians‘at Eccles' house; aboutya dozen in number. I proceeded to the place
with Asa Ry kd\d and Levi Traver. I got out of the buzgy at Eccles’. The Fenians
stopped me, and asked me where the hcll I was going? 'They were armed with sabres,
carbings, and rifles. I,pulled-out my revolver, and’ told them that was where I was going.
One of them, nbt in custody, brought his rifle to the present.  We both fired. The
prisoncr run and fook his position on the right. I cast my eye on him, and I saw he
had his carbine at the present. e was 'n'mcd with a carbine and a sabre. I raised my
revolver to his side, and shot him. Prisoner turned round toTun across the road ; I shot
him again in the back. He mas making for the wood. 1 pulled again, but mxssed fire.
I run after prisoner to wood. [ fell “and hurt my knee. Ryl\exd came up. I told
him to take my revolver, as prisoner was in wood. He took my revolver, and "brought
prisoner back. When we got into the wageon thete were more shots fired from Eccles’

hOllaL‘;"db we drove!off w1th the prisoner. As we went to Pigeon Hill, I saw the guides-

going up to Eccles). We then had the prisoner in the waggon. The prisoner asl\ed me
fo throw him out o}' the waggon into thc ditch, and let him die. He was in grcat pain
from his wound. *~ * -

Closs-c.\ammed\, I don’t know how near the Province line is to Eccles”. We were
at Eccles’ house. On Saturday afternoon I head the Fenians were retiring. I saw no
Fenians there after 12 o'clock cn Saturday. When I got to Eccles’ the I‘emans among
whom was the prisoner, were standing on theroad. W hen 1§ rst saw the Fenians, I thou"ht
they were, some of them, trading theu arms. I know there were threc or four guns in thc
lot, and the prisoner ad a carbie and a sabre. After .1 fired the shot at the first man,
he was taken away, I believe by his comrades, but my attention was particularly directed

to W. Cadden. \

' Asa Rykerd. Lives at Dunham; was therc on 9th Junc. I went to Eccles’, about
half a mile from the lines, with last witness and Traver. When we got within about three
rods of Eccles’ we met Mosgrove, who told us that we could take the whole party, ag only
three guns were loaded. ¢

Confirms Sewell in every particular, and adds, that while Sewell was rinning after
prisoner a shot was fired from Eccles’ house at him or Traver.

‘When Traver and T got into wood we -found prisoner ; he sugieréd. We took
bim, and put him in the bu While we were doing this the Fenians came out of
the house, and fired at us. Wo met thcf‘ruxdes. The road was barricaded near Eccles’
house.

Cross-examined. The Fenians, when we met them, were in the road near Eccles’
house. I think there were seven standing'in the road, others in house. All seemed to
-have arms who were standing in the road. May have been a dozen or so.  Mr. Mosgrove
said he had bought a gun, and was trying to-buy another. The party all started when
they saw Sewcll ﬁum repcated shots, I understood Sewell to say, as we got to Eccles’,
after getting out of the waggon, he wanted to be shown the last Fenian. “He addressed
this to the l‘emans One of them said, * What in hell do you want herc?” T went to
Pigeon Hill to see’ United States’ guard that had been placed near the line, as I understood
to prevent the Fenians recrossing. I heard they were leaving on Saturdav

.Asa Rykerd recalled. I did not see the prisoner searched.

James Mosgrove, sworn. Lived in St. Armands last June. I was at homc part of the
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time, and at Frank]m and at the Fenian camp near Eccles’ house. ThlS was on@aturday

. afternoon, the 9th.- I was with the Fenians near Eccles two or three hours. I saw

the prisoner with them all the time I was there. Some" were armed. When I fitst saw
the prisoner he was sitting on a log near the road, with four or five others. One of them
was marching as a sentry, “and ordered us to halt. He then ordered us to advance. We
advanced and sat down. There was one Edward Hurtney with me. The prisoner asked
him if he was an Irishman. He said he was. ' The prisoner spoke in Irish to him. He did
not-understand it,and the prisoner damned him and-said he was no Irishman. The prisoner *
began to complam ‘that their officers had deserted them, and took his carbine and drew the
hammer back, and asked me if I'saw that. I told him I did. He said, ¥ Ireland would

. never be free as long as that went back.” There then came up another squad of four of

five more, and ordered these to leave, for that they had been fired on, and the enemywas -
coming.” THis squad came from Cook’s Corners. One of them said, pointing to prisoner, -

.~ «This is my Captain, I will obgy him.” Prisoner said nothing. They passed down to the

line. - Prisoner and his squad remained.” I went down to the lines, the; Americ¢an troops

.were there, and the Fenians, when they saw them, began breaking their arms. I asked.

thé man who called prisoner his Captain, to sell me his gun. “He spid he would for
14 dollar. He told me to keep out of the.way of the rest of “the Femans, or they would,
take it from me. Hurtney wanted also to-buy a gun from tlthemanc aHurtnev asked -
me if I had any money. T told him I had 2 dollars in Aufrericah mondg. I gave it to
him, and he went back; and 'm:er a while -he-came back, angegaid he could do nothing
with them. I went to prisoner withthe 2 dollars, and tried tobuy his carbine, Hew ould
not sell it for 2 dollars, so I left to go home. -After a few rods 1 met Rykerd, Traver, and
Sewell. | Sewell was o'e(:t:mw out of the waggon, and asked me if there were any Fenians there.
I said, yes. We went back and one of' the Fenians ordered us to halt. - Sewell said some-
thing T did not hear. 'A Fenian drew his gun, and Sewell drew his pistol, and ‘both fired.
I kept my eye on both, and could not tell “who-fited first. The Fenian then started for
Eccles’ house. I ran after%him and, threw him down - He called out, and others: rushed
out of Eceles’ house. I went back to waggon. shoufd think Sewell fired SIX or seven
shots. T did.not count.thém. T was engaged at.the time in a struggle with the other
man. There might be a-dozen or more Fe enians at Eccles After pmsoner was fired at, he

ran towards the-west.

Cross-examined. The pers’ousl ét on the road commltted no violence on me at .
first. .They called on us to E&t. I did not hear Sesvell say, “I want to sce the last
Fenian.” The Fenian spoke firss On the.7th, three- squads came'to my house for victuals,
and got them.

Levi Traver, svorn. I know the pmsoner I saw him near the Fenian, camp on the
9th June, near Eecles’. Mr. Rykeld and I, on the 9th; in the afternoon, went to see the

- Fenian camp. Sewell asked me for a ride. '] teferred him to Rykerd, and he got in. We

drove near the camp. There were a number of men standing in the road, whom I
supposed to be Fenians. . I did not know them, He {Sewell) jumped out of the waggon,

-and commenced firing ; he commenced as soon as he could walk .up to.them. T did not

hear ‘what was said. There were other r>'uns fired before we left. I was 3 or 4 rods from
the place where the firing was. After ﬁrmfr ceased, I saw.a.man running across the fields.
I think the prisoner is the man. (Conﬁrms Rykerd and Sewell.) . Thmks the prisoner was -

" one of the persons they called Fenians ; he was among them.

Cross-examined. At this time, as I was told, the main body of the Femans had left.

-4 George Tilbury, sworn. I am a trooper in the Royal Guides. | On the 9th Juiie was A

with them in the part of the country where the raid oceurred. We went to Cook’s Corners
and fo Eccles’. 'We met Sewell near barricade. . Was with prisoner and another man in
waggon. We were led by’ Mr. W. Coney. At a turn of the road we came upon a body of

- Fenians, who fired on us. We captured a prisonér. I‘belicve his name is Smith.

Cross~e\:ammed I should think there were a dozen or so of the Fenians. '
“Charles J. Schxller, sworn. .I saw the prisoner brought to Montreal on the 11th June;
I was present in 'the gaol, in Montreal. The statement made by the prisoner respecting

. his name, place of blrth &c., was made in my presence. It was also put down in

writing, according to the ruies of the prison.  He stated hé was born in Ireland ; his trade
wag that of a shoemaker ; and that he had recently come from Bridgewater, in the state. of
Massachusetts, and was a single man.
Cross-examined. I was present whén this statement was reduced to writing.
Re-examined. There are six other prisoners under accusation of- the same offence

. as the prisoner: Edward Gilgan, Terence McDonald, Edward Carroll, Cornelias Owens,
. Michael Crowley, and Fenton Holmes. N

~__Bills found 6th December mstagnt The bills werc submitted to. the Grand Jury one
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by one, and returned together. The investigation before Grand Jury lasted three days.

Twenty-one bills against prisoners for an offence charged to have been committed on the

- 7th June ; they have been the subjects of a nolle prosequi. Six bills were found against

five other prisoners. - ' W : '
. Verdict, Guilty. ‘ .

- Sentence, Death, 15th February, 1867.

- Sweetsburg, December 26,.1866. oo T
I (Sgned) . F. G. JOHNSON, J. 8. C.

 No.22. - - - " Neon

Extracr f"rom a DESPATCH from the Officer Administering the Government to the
‘ Right Hon. the Earl of Carxarvox, dated Montreal, December 31, 1866.

: : : " (Received January 15, 1867.5
IT is my intention now to proceed without further delay to eémmute - the sentences
- of all-the Fenian convicts who have been condemned to death, including those recently
convicted at Swcetsburg, whose cases I referred for the cobsideration of Her Majesty’s - .
Government in my despatch No. 17* of the 27th instant. I shall take this course, asT & pyge 6. -
. think it is of the. greatest importance that the sentences of all should be announced at the ‘
. same time. ' ' - \ &
. In determining the terms of imprisonment to be awarded to the convicts, 'my Council
and myself will be guided as'far as the circumstances of each case will permit by your -
Lordship’s decision with regard to Lynch and McMahon. :

R - . <
{ .

_ No. 23. | o ' No. 23,
Copry of a DESPATCH from Lieutenant-General ‘Sir J. MrcukL to the Right Hon. the
o " .Earl of Carxarvon. - T
‘ Montreal, January 4, 1867.
WNo. ) - . ' (Reccived January 25, 1867.)
My Lozn, . .. (Answered. No. 134, February 2, 1867, page 84.)
I HAVE the honour to inform you that I and my Council have tdken into conside-
ration the cases of the Fenian convicts who have been .condemned to death at the ‘late
trials at Toronto and Sweetsburg, and that it has been determined to commutg the capital
“sentence in every case to imprisonment for twenty ‘years with hard labour in the Pro-
vincial Penitentiary. ) C S
The crime of which all the prisoners were found guilty was of so grave a nature that
it was not considered advisable, for the present at least, to make a distinction between
them, nor to award a smaller amourt of punishment to any than was decided on by Her
Majesty’s Government for Lynch and McMahon.  ~ '
The documents commuting the sentences on the convicts—seven in Canada West,
and three in ‘Canada East—received my signature and approval yesterday, but there
are other legal formalities necessary, and thesc.cannot be completed till about the 8th
- instant. ’ :
Until that time, therefore; I am obliged to postpone the publication of your Lordship’s -
despatch No. 108* of the 24th November, in order that nothing may be surmised fromits  * Page 82.
reference to Lynch and McMahon respecting the probable fate of the other prisoners till .
- they can be.legally removed to the Penitentiary at Kingston. . : AR
This precaution is necessary with regard to those recently convicted at Sweetsburg,
as they are now in Bedford Gaol, at a’distance of only fiftecn miles- from the fronticr of
the United States, and an attetnpt to rescue them might possibly be made, if it became
‘known that they were likely to undergo so severe a punishment, as that of twenty years’
imprisonment. . o C ;
. I intend to make special provision for the safe keeping of the prisoners in the Peni-
tentiary at Kingston, by stationing there some volunfeer militia in addition to the ordinary
garrison of -regular troops. : ' S

S ——

, ‘ I have, &c. :
. = (Signedy . J. MICHEL, Licutenant-General,
The Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon, - < Administrator of Goyernment.
- &e. &e. &e. ' ' e - et
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Despatches from the Secretary of State. ‘ 7

P . No.l. : ‘ No. 1.
Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. Epwarp Carpwerr, M.P., to Governor-
/ General the Right Hon. Viscount Mowck.
(No. 56.) " )
My Lorp, L Downing Street, June 16, 1366.
I HAVE thehonour to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship’s despatch No. 43%  « pyge 1,
of the Ist of June, informing me that a body of 600 Fenians had crossed the frontier and
established themselves in the village of Fort Erie in Canada.
) I have, &c.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.
&e. &e.  &e. '

-~

No. 2. No. 2.

Copy of a DESPATCH frem the Right Hon. Epwarp Cazpwerr, M.P., to Governor-
| : General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck. : '
(No. 63.) : .
My Lorp, - ’ Downing Street, June 22, 1866.

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch No. 45¢ of the 4th  + Page 1.
of June, respecting the attack recently made by a body of armed Fenians on the village .
of Fort Erie in Canada West.

' I have, &c.

Th(lz Right Hon. Viscount Monck, ) (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.
. &e. &e. &e. o

. .
jL No..3. ) No. 3.
Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. Epwarp Carpwery, M.P., to Governor- °
i General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck. B
No. 67.
’EVIY Lom)). Downing Street, June 23, 1866..

| I HAVE received with great satistaction the intelligence conveyed to me by your”
despatch No. 474 of the 8th of June. i -

i T do not doubt that the judicious preparations for defence which were made by the
Civil and Military Authorities in Canada, will prove effectual in securing the Province
against any further attack on the part of the Kenians; and I learn with great pleasure
the admirable spirit displayed by the Administration and people on this occasion, and
the. great zeal shown by the Volunteers in meeting with promptitude the outrage
committed upon the peaceable country of Canada. -

I have communicated your despatch to the Earl of Clarendon, and I have no doubt
that his.Lordship will instruct Her Majesty's Minister at Washington, to express to
Mr. Seward the gratification which Her Majesty’s Government fecl at the friendly and
effectual co-operation of the Government of the United States. in repressing these
unjustifiable invasions of British Territory.

1 Page 3.

) I have, &ec. :
The Right Hon. ViscountjMonck, v (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.
&e. &c. &e. ‘ .




No. 4,

+ Page 7.

No. 6.

§ Page 4.

ecrcoce pa
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~—  No.4.

Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. Epwarp CarpweLL, M.P., to Governor-
General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxcxk.
(No. 69.)
My Lorp, Downing Street, June 29, 1866.

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge your despatch of 14th instant, No. 54.*

T approve the c/durse pursued by your ]ﬁordship, and am glad to find that the reports
of the officers-referred to negative, as far as they are concerned, the reports which had
been made to Majt/)i'-General Meade.

, J ‘ I have, &ec.
The Right Hon. Yiscount Monck, (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.
&e. 8/»’0. &e. ’ ‘
/ M o

N6z 5.

Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. .Epwarp Carpwrrz, M.P., to Governor-
General the Right Hon. -Viscount Moxcrk.
(No. 71.) )
My Lc,lu)/ Downing Strect. June 30, 1866.

T HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship’s despatch
No. 334 of the 14th of June, enclosing copies of reports addressed to Licutenant-General
Sir J. Michel, by the several officers whose names are noted in the margin,j relative to the
recent Fenian invasion at Fort Eries

Hér Majesty’s Government deplore the loss of life which has thus occurred, but they
congratulate you on the complete discomfiture of the large and comprehensive plan of
attack which had been arranged. )

" Her Majesty’s Government unite with you in the tribute you pay to the energy and
good faith exhibited by the American Government on this occasion, and they confidently
trust that the efficient measures which have been adopted by both the United States and
the Provincial Governments, will secure British Territory from any further attack.

Your account of the spirit which animates the Canadian people, of their appreciation
of the free institutions under which they live, and of their loyalty to the Throne, is in
the highest degree satisfactory, the cheerfulness with which they suspended their
industrial occupations in order to serve in the ranks of the Volunteers, and the zeal which

"they exhibited in the service, reflect the greafgst credit upon them.

I shall have much pleasure in bringing under the notice of the Secretary of State
for War, the testimony you bear to Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel and the officers
under his command, in the able disposition of the troops both Regulars and Volunteers,
and I will not fail to call the attention of the Lords Commanders of the Admiralty to
the praise awarded by yeu to the Officers of the Royal Navy quartered at Quebec and
Montreal. -

T will also bring under the notice of the Secretary of State for War the name of
Colonel McDougall, the Adjutant-General of Militia, whose services have been so highly
appreciated by you. - ‘

I have, &e.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.

&e. &e. &ec. :

No. 6.

Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. Epwarp CarpweLr, M.P., to Governor-
General tiie Right Hon. Viscount MoNcK.
(No. 72.) “
My Lorp, Downing Street, June 30, 1866.
I HAVE received youi despatch No. 51§ of 11th instant, in- which you inclose
copies of two Acts passed by the Legislature of Canada, authorizing respectively the-
summary imprisonment 6t persons charged with certdin oﬁ};nccs against the peace of the
Colony, and the trial/in Lower Canada by a Militia Gentral Court-martial of persons
levying war against Her Majesty in that Province.
I rely on your discretion for the use you will make of thesc extensive powers, and do

1 Colonel Peacock, Lieutenant-Coloncl Booker, Licutenant-Colonel Denis, Captain Akers, aud Colonel Lowry.
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not_doubt that you will have.recourse, in every case infwhich it may be possible to do so,
to the ordinary tribunals for the punishment of offenders.
w2 I'hope that the total failure of the recent senseless attempts to disturb the peace of
the Colony will have relieved your Government from all apprehension for the future, and
will enable you to deal with the persons who have fallen into your hands with deliberate
consideration of the various reasons which should affect your treatment of them, and
without incurring any appearance of precipitation or undue severity. o
I have, &c.

The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, (Signed) EDWARD CARDWELL.

&e. &e. &e. ’

No.fi.
Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of CArNarvox to Governor-
General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck.

(No. 4.)
My Lorp, _ Downing Street, July 7, 1866.

I OBSERVE that the recent Act of the Canadian Parliament, authorizing the trial
by Militia Courts-martial, of foreigners and others who are guilty of, or accessory to acts
of aggression or hostility in Lower Canada, has formed the subject of a communication
from my predecessor in this department.

This Act, which is copied from an Act passed in 1838 for the protection of Upper
Canada and is made applicable to the Lower Province, is of an exceptional character and
to be justified by the exceptional circumstances of the time. I shall advise Her Majesty
to leave it to its operation. At the same time, 1 am unwilling to lose any time in
cxpressing my earnest hope that recourse will not be had to any but the usual tribunals
for the trial of .offenders.

‘When in 1838 a similar Act was passed for Ugper Canada, the gencral condition of
the Province was in many respects a very critical .one. Such happily, I understand from
your Lordship’s despatches, is not now the case. Thanks to the loyalty of all classes in
Canada and to the good faith and- co-operation of the United States authorities, all
aggression from their territory has been baffled and no immediate danger appears: to
threaten the peace of the Province. There remains doubtless, some natural resentment
on the part of those who have been exposed to so wanton and criminal an outrage, but |
am confident that your Lordship and your advisers are fully alive to the wisdom of
moderation in such a case, and of confining the punishment of the offenders as far as

practicable within the limits of what may be required for the protection of the Province .

now and in the future.

But -under any circumstances Her Majesty’s Government consider it on cvery
account to be desired, that the persons concerned in this insane and lawless enterprize,
should be tried with all deliberation and should not be deprived of any advantages which
can be claimed under the ordinary forms of law. And it would be to them a cause of
serious regret if any step were taken from which it could be inferred that the British
authorities were either unwilling to await the ordinary cause of justice or distrustful of
the spirit in which it would be administered. ) ~

I have, &ec.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, (Signed) CARNARVON.
&e. N &e. &Cm

No. 8

Copy of DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of Carsawvos to Governor-
' General the Right Hon. Viscount Monck.
®o. 7.)

My Lorbp, Downing Street, July 11, 1366.

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Lordship’s despatch No. 55%
of the 14th June, in which you bring to my predecessor’s notice the patriotism and
devotion exhibited during the late Fenian disturbances by Canadians resident in Chicago,
who on hearing’of the seizure of Fort Erie, gave up their various employments in order
to return to Canada to offer their services for the defence of their country.

You also report that a large number of Canadians, resident in New York, expressed
. M
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Inclo. 1 in No. 9.

) Inclo. 2 in No. 9.
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to you, through Her Majesty's Consul, their willingness to abandon their several occupa-
tions in that city, o assist in the defence of Canada against Fenian attacks.
I cannot’espress to your Lordship téo strongly, the high sense entertained by Her
. Majesty’s Government of the spirit and loyalty thus evinced, and I trust that such
patriotic conduct will go far'to prevent the repetition of such criminal attempts as have
recently been made at Fort Erie and St. Albans.

I have, &ec.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, ~ . (Signed) CARNARVON.
&e. &e. &e. .
K"?
‘< No. 9.

Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of Carxarvox to Governor-
. General to Right Hon. Viscount Moxck.
No. 18))
My Lorp, - Downing Street, August 4, 18G6.
I H.AVE the honour to transmit to you the copy of a letter from the Secretary of
State for War, inclosing one written by the directions of His Royal Highness the Field
Marshal Commanding-in-chief. cxpressing his high appreciation of the gallant and
energetic behaviour recently exhibited by the Militia and Volunteers of Canada.
I am desirous of adding that it is most gratifying to me to be the medium for making
this communication to your Lordship.

- I have, &e.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, s (Signed) CARNARVON.
. &e. &e. &e. :
:_ Inclosure 1 in No. 9. )
. * - Sir E. Lucarp to Mr. Erziot.
Sir, . War Office. July. 26, 1866.

t AM directed by Secretary Lieutenant-General Peel to transmit to you, for the
information of the Earl of Carnarvon, the incinsed copy of a letter which has been received
from the Horse Guards expres-ing the high appreciation by His Royal Highness the
Ficld Marshal Commanding-in-chict of the gallant and encrgetic behaviour shown by the
;)To]unteers and Militia of Canada, on the occasion of the late Fenian attack upon that

rovince.

Lieutenant-Greneral Peel requests that Lord Carnarvon will communicate to the
Governor-General the sentiments expressed in this letter.

I have, &c.
T. Frederick Elliot, Esq., (Nigned) EDWARD LUGARD.
&e. &ec. &e. .

Inclosure 2 in No. 9.

.

Lieut.-General. ForsTeRr to the UNDER-SECRETARY OF STATL FOR WAR.

Sik. Horse Guards, July 21, 18G6.
WITH reference to the several reports wiien have been received from the General
Officer commanding in Canadz. relative to the Fenian movenent in that Proyinee, and-
to the measures taken by the Colonists forrepelling qny Fenian httack, T am directed by
~ the Field Marshal Commanding-in-chief to request that you will acquaini the Secretary -
“of State for War that His Royal Highness having observed the alacrity, loyalty, and zeal
shown by the Voluntecrs and Mifitia forces or Canada in having come forward for the
defence of the Colony on the lale irying vccasion in support of the troops, is very
desirous of expressing to the forces his full appreciation of their gallant and encrgetic
behaviour, and the very greai gratification and satisfaction he has thereby experienced ;
and His Royal Highness trasts, therefore, that Lieulcnant-General Peel will see mo
objection to the necessary communication being made by him to the Colonial Office with
the view to His Royal Highness’ sentiments, as above expressed, being made known

\
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through the proper channel to the Volunteers and Militia of Canada lately employed
against the Fenians. |

I have, &ec.
(Signed) W. F. FORSTER.

1

The Under-Secretary of State for War.

No. 10,

Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of Carxarvox to Governor-
. General the Right Hon. Viscount Moxck.

(No. 33.)
My Lorp, Downing Street, Scptember 13, 1866.

1 HAVE to acknowledge your despatch No. 112* of the 15th of August,.inclosing
copics of the Acts intituled respectively “An Act to amend an Act of the present Session,
intituled ¢ An Act to protect the Inhabitalits of Lower Canada against Lawless Aggres-
sions from Subjects of Foreign Countries at peace with Her Majesty; ™ and < An Act to
amend the Ninety-eighth Chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper Canada.”

. One effect of thesc Acts iy to give an indefinite retrospective operation.in Upper
Canada to the 3rd section of the Act 22 Vict., cap. 98, itsell a re-enactment of the
3rd section of 1 Vict., cap. 3; and in Lower Canada to the 3rd section of the Act 29 Vict.,
cap. 2. ’

d The giving retrospective operation to an enactment which has been in force since the
first year of Her Majesty's reign, though open to objection of principle, can hardly have
any practical consequences. But to give such an effect to the recent Act of 29 Vict., is
a matter of substantial importance. Under the law as it now stands a man might

. - v . 4 .
apparently be punished as a’felon for an act which was not a felony when it was
committed. Such a retrospective law is liable to serious objection, even as regards Her

- Majesty’s subjects; dnd in its application to foreigners would be inconsistent with
recognized principles of international law.

Probably this consequence of the law now forwarded escaped the attention of.your
Goverument, But care must be taken to avoid the embarrassments to which it might
give rise, and I have to instruet you that neither of these Acts must on any account be
enforced in cases where they would have a retrospective operation. :

It will not be possible for me to submit them for Her Majesty’s sanction without
such modifications as will relieve them from the objections which 1 have described.

1 have, &e. .
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, iSigned) CARNARVON.
&e. &e. &e. :

4
L

No. 11.

Cory of a DESPATCH from thé Right Hon. the Earl of CarNaRvON to Governor-
Genaral the Right Hon. Viscount Monck.
(No. 101.)
My Lorp, . Downing Street, November 23, 1866,
I HAVE had under my consideration your d&patches Nos. 154 and 165,1 dated the
6th and 18th October, and I have the honour to inform you that Her Majesty’s Govern-

* Page 34.

No. 10,

NO- 11.

+ Pages 35 and 36.

ment se¢ no objection to the course which “your Lordship and the Canadian Government .

have adopled, and propose to adopt, with regard to certain Fenian prisoners, under the -

Acts intituled respectively “ An Act to amend an Act of the present session, intituled
¢ An Act to protect the Inhabitants of Lower Canada against Lawless Ageressions from
Subjects of Foreign Countries at Peace with Her Majesty, ” and < An Act to amend the
Ninety-eighth Chapter of the Consolidated Statutes of Upper Canada.”
. I have, &ec.
The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, (Signed) CARNARVON.
&e. . &e. &e.

-

/
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" No.12. - ' No. 12,
Cory of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earliqf* CarNARVON:to Governor-
‘General the Right Hon. Viscount Monck. ,

. (No. 108.) ; , , ,
. Mx Lorp, / Downing Street, November 24, 1866.
' I HAVE received your telegram stating that you have reserved the sentences of the

. Fenian convicts, and referring me to Mr. Seward’s communication to Sir F. Bruce upon
* Page 37.  this subject. I have also received your despatch of the 3rd November* and the Reports of
; Fenian trials. « . S i
Mzr. Seward; I observe, applies for a record of the judicial proceedings, and I infer
" from the papers before me that this request has been granted. : ‘

I approve’ of your having done so. At the same time, having regard to-all the
circumstances, I ain anxious to guard myself from assenting to the proposition that, this
request could have assumed the form of & demand founded upon_strict international
right.An.-application—by the prisoners Counsel through the United States’ Consul in
Canada, who has had all facilities granted him, might have secured for Mr. Seward all
that he desires, and would have been more in accordance with ordinary usage. ‘

. But whilst thus ready and anxious to afford the convicts in question every chance of
interposing any plea for delay or extenuation which may be fairly open to them through
the p/r/oper authorities of their country, I am bound to protect the administration of
justice in Canada from any claim of supervision which might on a first perusal of
Mr,'Seward’s words be thought to attach to them. Such language- might possibly be
¢onstrued into a claim on the part of the United States’ Grovernment to investigate into

P ol and to sit as a Court of Appeal upon the judicial proceedings as carried on in an English
o Court in Canada, and with all the safeguards and sanctions of English jurisprudence.
/ I'am satisfied that no such claim could be intended. It would be, indeed, & preten-
/ sion that the United States’ Government would_probably be.the first-to reject;-not—only———
o = heeanse-armationsso jealous of its own honour would scrupulously abstain from any request
‘ a compliance with which would be inconsistent-with the rights and dignity of an inde-
/' pendent State, but because the practice and jurisprudence of the two countries on such a

/ question, are, I believe, almost, if not quite identical. ¢

/ " After a careful perusal of the trials in Toronto, I am convinced that not the faintest
/ shadow of an imputation can, in the opinion of any reasonable person, rest upon the
perfect fairness of the proceedings or the justice of the verdict. Not only was there no
curtailment of that full measure of, liberty and means of defence which is so essential an
element in the criminal jurisprudence both of the United States and of Great Britain, but
every privilege that could D¢ conceded to the prisomers appears to have been allowed.
The case of the Crown was {emperately stated, the whole Court concurred in the delays
i which were asked and granted, and I observe that even the prisoner Lynch bore witness *
to the fairness and impartiality with which his case was tried. )
) Her Majesty’s Grovernment are requesicd to grant an amnesty to these prisoners.
- - They have carefully considered the question. They cannot shut their eyes to.the very
. heinous character of the offence. 1t was neither more nor less than a wanton and lawless
attack, with the avoived .object of carrying fire and sword into an unoffending Province. -
It has indeed, providentially, proved to be as fruitless in its result as it was wicked in its
design, which contemplated not only murder and rapine in Canada, but.the possibility of
embroiling two friendly nations in an unnafural was.
_ Her Majesty’s Government are not insensible to the resentment which the people of
Canada must feel. They have submiited, and submitted cheerfully, to great sacrifices of
‘their time and their professional avotations. = Property has been destroyed, trade injured,
and, I grieve to'think, valuable lives have heen lost. , ! )
Nor, again, have the course which the associates and the sympathisers with these
uanhappy criminals adopted, the language which they are reported to have held, and the
idle threats of 'retaliation said to have been used by them, rendered it easier either for
, the Canadian people or Her Majesty’s Government to overlook the grave character of the
o —-"offéncer - - . ' ~ : S
- But taking into account the fact that nearly six months have now elapsed, and that
,, , nothing has occurred in the interval to detract from the complete success which crowned
/ the efforts of Her Majesty’s troops and of the Canadian Volunteers in suppressing the
. ' \/ Fenian invasion, and readily accepting the opinion of yourself and your advisers in favour
. of clemency, Her Majesty’s Giovernment are disposed to hope that the ends of justice and’
: ‘ wise policy may be secured without recourse to the extreme penalties of the law.
I have therefore thought it my duty to recommend to Her Majesty to extend Her
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prerogatlve of merey to the prisoners Lynch and Me Mahon, now lying under sentence of
death, and to commute that sentence to twenty years of penal servitude or 1mpr1sonment
as the law of Canada may warrant you in assigning.

Tt is only to be hoped that this act of clemency on the part of Her Majesty may not
be misunderstood, and that the punishment to which the capital senterices have been
commuted may be of sufficient severity to warn others of the still graver consequences to
which they will inevitably render themselves liable by a repetition of such insane and

o

criminal proceedings. But if unhappily this hope should be disappointed, all such persons

must be prepared to be visited with the extreme penalt1es of the law.
"~ I have, &c.

. The Right Hon. Vlscount Monck, ' (Signed) CARNARVON. .

L

upon the disposal of these prisoners.

. &e. &e. - &e.

i NO 13

R S
I - —

COPY of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of CARNARVON to Governor- -
General the Right Hon. Vlscount MONCK ‘
(No. 109.) ‘

My Lorp, .. Downing Street November 24, 1866. -
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge. your despatch No. LSS"‘ of the 3rd of November,
accompanied by various documents in, the cases of Robert B.-Lynch and the Rev. John.

MacMahon, lately convicted of felony at Toronto.

1 have in another despatch conveyed to° you the views of Her Majesty’s Government

1 have, &e.

The Right Hon. Viscount Monck, . . e (Slgned ,-CARNARVON.

&e. &c. &e. ' ' ,

/

No. 14.,
Copry of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of Carnarvon to the OfﬁCel

P

Administering the Government. o )N

‘(No. 121.)

SiRr, a Downing Street, December 28, 1866
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of Lord Monck’s despatch No. 2047
of the 1st December, inclosing notes in the trials of five Fenian prisoners recently convicted

.at Toronto

' s t : I have, &c.
S ‘ - (Signed) CARNARVON.
The Officer Adminis?ering the Govérnment. , .

-~

mn OR No. 15.

COPY of a DESPATCH from'the nght Hon. the Earl of CAIWARVON to Lleutenant-
General Sir J. MicnzL.
(No. 127.)
Sir, Downing Street, January 7, 1867.

I HAVE the honour to ‘acknowledge the receipt of your despatch No. 7} of the
13th December last, respecting the decision of Her Majesty’s Government i in the cases of
the condemned Fenian prisoners, Lynch and MacMahop.

"You will have been.informed by my telegraphic despatch of the 28th ultimo that [
considered ‘necessary the promulgation of my despatch on the subject, No. 108§ of the
24th November. .

* .7 TIhave, &e.
Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel, . . .(Signed) - CARNARVON
- &e. &e. ' &e. . ' ’ .

4
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No. 16, ' . , 'No. 16.
o Cory of 2 DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of CARNARVON to Lieutenant-
: . General Sir J. MicHzL. ‘

(No. 133.) ' :

. / Siz, Downing Street, February 2, 1867.

* Page 65. | I HAVE had before me your despatch No. 17* of the 27th of December, requesting
instructions on the case of Thomas Madden, a Fenian convict, on whom capital sentence
was passed.

I approve of ypur not havmg allowed the penalty of death to be mﬂlcted on-this and
’ the other prisoners who were condemned at the some time. I have, however, carefully
, considered the evidence in this casc, and I'am of opinion that under all the circumstances
‘ .1t will_be right that you should commute Madden’s sentenee to the same.term of twenty
vears of lmpnsonmcnt or Penal scrvitude, as may under the Canadian law be fitting, as has

alrcady bcon 11‘ :ed for the conths L\"nch and MacMahon

. A - T have, &ec.
. L1cutenant-Gé.xeml Sir J. Michel, LT (Sxo‘ned “CARNARVON.
. ©&e. &c &e. ) s )
, — Nt
No. 17. L. No. 17. S S ,
Com of a DESPATCH from the Right Hon. the Earl of CAR\IARVO\I to Lieutenant-’
. . General Sir J. MicuzL.
(No. 134) ‘
: Sir, Downing Stleet Februmy 2, 1867
+ Page 73. I HAVE bad the honour to receive your despatch No 7t of. the 4th of January, .

1

. reporting that you had determined, with the advice of your Council, to commute in cvery

. case the capital sentence passed on Fepian convicts at the late trials at Toronto to penal
servitude for twenty years.

The particulars of these cases must have been fully within the cogmzance of yourself

and your Council. The trime of which all the prisoners were found guilty appeared to you

"><_so grave that it would not, for the present at least, be fit to make a distinction between

Eem, or to award to any of them a smaller amount of ,punishment than was'decided upon

» for.-Lynch and McMahon, I see no reason to doubt the correctness of the (,onclusxon at

.wlnch you and the Council have amved . vl
. Co- . I have, &c.' .
"\ /Lieutenant-General Sir J. Michel, ‘ (Slgned ) CARNARVON.
e &e. . & &e. L L , Do
t
B , ‘
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